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The year 2023 marks the start of fully implementing the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National
Congress. Over the year, under the strong leadership of the CPC Cantral Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping
at its core, the China Development Bank (hereinafter referred to as CDB or the Bank) implemented the
qguiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress, the Second Plenary Session of the 20th CPC Central
Committee, the Central Financial Work Conference, and the Central Economic Work Conference. With a
deep understanding of palitically-oriented and people-centered financial services, CDB unswervingly fulfiled
its responsibilities and missions as a bank for infrastructure, balanced development and security, continued
to deepen refarms, and made substantial efforts to carry out themed political education. CDB always rooted
its actions in the overall national interests, supported China's key industries and under-developed sectors,
and achieved new progress in tasks of all aspects, making positive contributions to the national social and
economic development. At the end of 2023, the CDB group’s total assets stood at RMBT8.65 trillion. With
a group-wide net profit of RMB87.417 billion, it achieved high quality development % suppesting natienal

strategies. r
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Supporting infrastructure development in keeping with the Bank's mandate. CDB continued to focus
on its mandate as a bank for infrastructure and kept improving its internal systems, mechanisms, and
policies that are compatible with the building of a modern infrastructure system. CDB adhered to the
market-based and rule-of-law principles, actively explored and innovated service models for infrastructure
investment and financing, and continued to increase investment and financing support for infrastructure,
with loans of RMB1.51 trillion issued to the sector throughout the year, Focusing on the major projects of
the national "14th Five-Year Plan", CDB contributed to the implementation of a number of strategic projects
that benefit the economy and people’s livelihood, such as the Yangtze to Hanjiang Water Diversion Project,
the Pinglu Canal, and the East-West National Computing Network, bringing into full play its role of a leading
bank for infrastructure.



PREAMBLE 3

Improving resource allocation for better performance and efficiency in supporting national strategies.
CDB supported self-reliance and self-improvement at higher levels and high quality development of
manufacturing, helped to step up the implementation of innovation-driven development strategies, and
vigorously promoted technological innovation and basic research. CDB was among the first to support
subsidized housing, renovation of urban villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate
emergency needs, and took the lead in delivering a number of such projects. CDB helped to strengthen
resource security and advance national regional strategies, and improved quality and efficiency of green
finance to drive substantial progress in ecology-oriented development (EOD). CDB undertook 60% of the
country’s special facility to ensure the delivery of presold housing, helping to “guarantee the delivery of
presold housing for the sake of social stability and livelinood.” It learned and applied the experience of the
Green Rural Revival Program to help promote rural revitalization. It provided on-lending loans for micro and
small businesses, and implemented the policies of deferred repayment, interest waiver, and higher credit
lines with lower rate for student loans. It accelerated the implementation of the RMB350 billion financing
window to support high quality Belt and Road cooperation.

Strengthening risk management and never compromising on the bottom line of risk control. CDB
optimized its vertical risk compliance management mechanism, strengthened the comprehensive risk
management capabilities of its affiliates, continued to strengthen risk penetration management across
subsidiaries, enhanced risk prevention and contral in key areas, comprehensively screened out hidden risks,
and insisted on early identification, early warning, early exposure and early disposal of risks. It continued to
manage risks In a proper manner, made greater efforts to recover non-performing loans (NPL) after write-offs,
and improved the quality and performance of risk management and mitigation. It launched the Year of Internal
Control and Compliance to raise the awareness of law-based and compliant operation across the Bank.

Upgrading internal governance for continuous improvement of governance capability and
management. CDB faithfully carried out the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee
and the State Council on reforming and improving policy-based finance and delivered reform measures.
It deepened the integration of Party building to corporate governance, revised the working rules of the
Party committees across the Bank, formulated working instructions for senior management, and improved
the business perfarmance evaluation on executives, the duty performance evaluation and accountability
system for senior management, effectively turning its institutional advantages into governance effectiveness.
Besides, CDB systematically optimized its credit system and mechanism, thoroughly carried out the
Digital CDB strategy, and continued to improve operational service capabilities, striving to further refine its
professional operation and management.

The year 2024 marks the 75th anniversary of the founding of the People's Republic of China and the 30th
anniversary of the establishment of CDB. The Bank will adhere to the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on
Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, and implement the new development philosophy
on all fronts in a comprehensive and accurate manner. It will comprehensively carry out the major plans
and key tasks proposed by the Central Financial Work Conference, strengthen and commit to its mandate
and mission, and promote the development of technology finance, green finance, inclusive finance, elderly
care finance and digital finance, to give better play to its unique role in the financial system with Chinese
characteristics, support high quality economic and social development with premium financial services, and
make new and greater contributions to the building of a stronger country and national rejuvenation on all
fronts through a Chinese path to modernization.
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IMPORTANT NOTICE
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AT 4P E €l £ v fE N E PR SR 450 T 4 5 A92023 5 M SRS B LU B TR S5 (SHLEAN)
SARBFENEFREDEN T, FHAFEXRREELME RS,

The Board of Directars reviewed and approved this report at the third meeting in the 2024 financial year (the calendar year as adopted
by the Bank) on 26 April 2024,

The Bank's financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2023 are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP has audited these
financial statements in accordance with Auditing Standards for the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and International Standards on
Auditing, and has issued an unqualified auditor's report with respect thereto.

EAIER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ATMIZT1994%E, REREREY . ARESRAS. IHFELFEAMGHNIBABLE. BAERIEAM
NEAFRESHIM.

Established in 1994, the Bank is a state-funded and state-owned development finance institution. As an independent legal entity dirgctly
overseen by the State Council, it Is dedicated to supporting China's economic development in key industries and under-developed sectors.

EEPLER: ERFRRIT (& FRIRT)

EEEN B CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (485 : CDB)
HEEREA: IR

SEf s A AERET4,212.4812 7T

SEA itk IEERTEBEXEXIRAE18S

B B4R A - 100031

Big: 86-10-6830 6688

fEH: 86-10-6830 6699

oy L1k - www.cdb.com.cn

Registered Name in Chinese:

Registered Name in English:
Legal Representative:
Registered Capital:
Registered Address:

Post Code:

Telephone:

Facsimile:

Website:

B S F 4587 (shortened to FFE5RT)

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (abbraviated as CDB)
ZHAD Huan

RMB421,248 million

18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
100031

86-10-6830 6688

86-10-6830 6699

www.cdb.com.cn
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(84 : ARF10ZITRE 4L Bilion RMB or %)
L b o=t SR i 2 2020 2019
BEE ot 18,654.5 18,243.1 17,167.9 17,103.6 16,504.6
ERBRRIRR  Advarces o Custorers 14,904.5 14,474.9 13,2625 13,049.9 12,2005
g <l ——— 0.58% 0.78% 0.84% 0.79% 0.95%
ipritnin AN 4.66% 4.28% 3.80% 3.38% 4.24%
o A 16,974.8 16,637.5 15,629.7 15,623.0 15,110.8
N i 12,724.3 12,126.0 11,480.4 10,722.1 9,735.8
& 23'5?“% 1,679.7 1,605.6 1,538.3 1,480.6 1,303.7
ciiss g NP 87.4 84.3 80.8 118.8 118.5
ARRRE 11.65% 11.37% 11.66% 12.08% 11.71%

Capital Adequacy Ratio

FE1: AEERE (IR A0SR RIS T REM L SHENSS, BENRAN ARGTEMBTLAIEFOE,
AABRMIRR.

F2: LRPBEAFERZHBAGERTRIELEEEZAS (UTHRRRRES ) BLRTERERDE (517) ) FHIMN
EH . FREFANNEES FEEREFAAAR EEAXYBAASHOR.

Note 1: All the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting
Standards and, unless otherwise specified, the consolidated dala of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Note 2: The capital adequacy ratio in the above table has been calculated in accordance with relevant regulations including the Administrative
Measures for the Capital of Commercial Banks (for Trial Implementation) issued by the former China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (CBIRC). Unless otherwise stated, the capital adequacy ratio is a consalidated figure.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

19635124

2 2018118
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963 November 2018
i oim A EE, BT, T a2 19664E06 A 2023%F065
TAN Jiong Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President M June 1966 May 2023
ZEFIE HEER a3 1968502 8 20235078
LI Chunlin Government Agency Director M February 1968 July 2023
B #EEGW =5 19685128 20245038
LIAO Min Government Agency Director M December 1968 March 2024
Ry AEES ko4 1971507 B 20235044
GUO Tingting Government Agency Director F July 1971 April 2023
SRR WEED T 19585054 2017108
ZHANG Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1958 October 2017
i3 = ERES 2 19664035 20174108
ZHANG Shenghui  Equity Director M March 1966 Qctober 2017
WOk fRinES L2 19664501 B 20224F02H
TAN Long Equity Director M January 1966 February 2022
BEE AR * 1968401 5 20235058
GE Rongrong Equity Director = January 1968 May 2023
SRR AL g kig: s k74 19704108 2023%05H
ZHANG Lusong Equity Director F October 1970 May 2023
ARE IR TS =} 1966084 2023507 H
FAN Kejun Equity Director M August 1966 July 2023
B JEAR k-4 19774058
YAN Lijuan® Equity Director F May 1977
3 NE IERR IS a2 19724E04 8 20215028
ZHANG Hul Executive Vice President M April 1972 February 2021
ESNER; 3 FIERS'S B 19684E03 F§ 20225E108
WANG Weidong  Executive Vice President M March 1968 October 2022
g AT g 1972407 B 2023F128
XIE Taifeng Executive Vice President M July 1972 December 2023
TRk A iTie B 19684127 2024504 7
WANG Kebing Executive Vice President M December 1968  April 2024
i 2 5 EliTi& 5 19724088
CHEN Mengmeng® Executive Vice President M August 1972
K ETEHy = 19655128 20225108
LI Huachang Secretary of the Board of Directors i December 1965  October 2022
HEE HEEHITE % 196548114 20204095
YANG Baochua Chief Audit Officer F November 1965 September 2020
AWEH HELEE 3 19644E08F 202145048
LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer M August 1964 April 2021
E aEREE L= 19664088 20225108
WANG Zhong Chief Risk Officer M August 1966 October 2022
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_FullName Title of Position In Office
BEEE. SEERR
Directors and Senior Management Members Leaving Office
EHEER RIFEEHE, MUTER. 7 w 19635018 20195125 —2023%028
DU‘(ANG Weimin Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President M January 1963 December 2019—February 2023
TR PATIEW . BlTIR = 1969404 B 20224108 —2023%08 8
XU Shouben Executive Director, Executive Vice President M April 1969 Oclu!?er 2022—August 2023
EHR ApEALH L3} 1963506 8 20195058 —20234%07H
LIAN Weiliang Government Agency Director M June 1963 May 2019—July 2023
R Bl E 19634098 20224507 A —2024403H
XU Hongcai Government Agency Director M September 1963 July 2022—March 2024
Z=RE4A BpEEE £ 196874028 20174108 —2023404 5
LI Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017—April 2023
2iEH i B 1963F04 8 2020408 F —2023503 8
WU Zhenpeng Equity Director M April 1963 August 2020—March 2023
R M AR L 1968465 2019201 § —2023%€058
ZHANG Yong Equity Director M June 1968 January 2019—May 2023
®INB R AR T 8 2 19635054 20214088 —2023%06 4
CUI Hanzhong Equity Director M May 1963 August 2021—June 2023
E U3 AT a8 1976504 A 20214E09H —2024501 4
LU Jin Executive Vice President M April 1976 September 2021—January 2024

“&RAE{ERENR".
* Please refer to the Changes to the Board of Directors and Senior Management in this chaptar.

EE.SEERREH

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BR FREKATEE. SEPERGRTLADLSHRLSEE, BHATATK, A5 LENR2E8E, LiEH
ATTR, PEERBITRITR, PEX A (£H) 2203, RFEXXERARGAIIITESHERBITNITES.
T, PERIVRTRIESK. 1T

ZHAO Huan is Chairman and Executive Director of CDB. Previously, he held various positions succeassively in China Construction Bank
(GCB), including Deputy General Manager of Corporate Business Department, Depuly General Manager of Xiamen Branch, General
Manager of Corporate Business Department, General Manager of Shanghai Branch, and Executive Vice President. He also served as

Executive Director of China Everbright (Group) Corporation and China Everbright Group Ltd. and concurrently Executive Director and
President of China Everbright Bank; and Vice Chairman and President of Agricultural Bank of China (ABC).

iR BIEEK ATES. 7K. BEFERTEBEEESTITR(EHIME) TK, ZEAATITEK, PR
KEERERATESK, PERGT REHMTITK, PEIHRTITES. BT K, BNEARBAREE, &
BAFREMRR, RMNEREE. GBI, ARUID AR BIE (F) .

TAN Jiong is Vice Chairman, Executive Director and President of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy General Manager (acting general
manager) and General Manager of Bank of China (BOC) Tibet Branch, General Manager of BOC Yunnan Branch, Chairman of Bank of
China Investment Management Co., Ltd., General Manager of BOC Guangdong Branch, Executive Director and Executive Vice President
of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC), Vice Governor of Guizhou Provincial People’s Government, member of the
Party Leadership Group of Guizhou Provincial People's Government, member of the Standing Committee of CPC Guizhou Provincial
Committee, Head of the United Front Work Department of CPC Guizhou Provincial Committee, and concurrently Deputy Secretary of the
Party Leadership Group of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference {CPPCC) Guizhou Committee.
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FEN NIERRARIUZERARBED, REATHREHES. CAMKELSLARIYEERSBTE. kTS
BEATK, TERAHCE. T, TERE, RMALSES . MK,

LI Chunlin is Vice Minister of China's National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), and concurrently CDB Government
Agency Director. Previously, he served as Deputy Direclor-General of Shaanxi Provincial Development and Reform Commission; member

of the Standing Committee of GPC Municipal Commitiee, Deputy Mayor, Deputy Party Secretary, Mayor and Party Secretary of Yulin; and
member of the Standing Committee and Secretary-General of CPC Shaanxi Provincial Committee.

BIR DEVHOEIESAK, SREATREHESE. @EPERLNLHATEET. FF, HHREBRK, P24
SINEDREOERK, PRMEERESHDAFREE.

LIAO Min is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Finance (MOF) and concurrently Government Agency Director of GDB. Previously, he served
as Deputy Director-General and Director-General of the General Office of China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC), Director-

General of CBRC Shanghal Office, Director-General of Bureau IV of the Office of the Central Leading Group for Financial and Economic
Affairs, and Deputy Director-General of the Office of the Central Commission for Financial and Economic Afiairs.

BT MEHHAEARK, REATASES. SEFESRBUE BT, K, GATTK. H LI,

GUO Tingting is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Commerce (MOFCOM) and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously
she held various positions successively in the MOFCOM, including Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Department of
Finance, Director-General of Comprehensive Department, and Assistant Minister of MOFCOM.

KR HMEES SEPEARBTUHEMNKRLERRS, PEAREFRETESAANTESSHFHE, hE
ARBRITERMTHI TR, KABRITK, PEARBTTKEE, FEARTEOSRIREK.
ZHANG Xiaohui is Government Agency Director of GDB. Previously, she was People's Bank of China (PBC) Chiel Representative for

the Americas, Senior Advisor to China's IMF Executive Director, Director-General of Department of Financial Markets and Department of
Monelary Policies of PBC, Assistant Governor of PBC, and Dean of Tsinghua University PBC School of Finance.

KER BRUNES. SEERMLEEBERKEIFNTK, EBLEIFHIK. T, PEARBITEEMNAE
WERAR, BRINCEERSESH .
ZHANG Shenghui is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he was Depuly Director-General of Balance of Payments Department of the

State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE), Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Supervision and Inspection
Department of SAFE, PBC Chief Representative for the Americas, and Chief Accountant of SAFE.

HE RNES. SEVBESEEXMGPORETT (RITKE) , M E E ORI EE, VRSHEIEE
K. — R E .
TAN Long is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he held positions in MOF successively as Chief Accountant (Deputy-Director-General-

Level). Depuly Director-General of the Treasury Payment Center, and Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of Tax Policy
Department.

EET BUNES. SHEPEIHRTENES, PRICSEFERFELAITETINER—HE T 514
B IRREEEEEARAINRIES, A EREARNERAIND AERIISERETLAIDES.
GE Rongrong is Equily Director of CDB. She used to be Equity Director of the ICBC, work for Central Huijin Investment Ltd. as Deputy

Director-General of Banking Institution Management Department | and Senior Advisar, and serve as Independent Director of ICBC Credit
Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd., and Director of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. and Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd.
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B RANES. BERERAETRECADFRSNAATFHHERSMNAAK GRS FELEHE.

ZHANG Lusong is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, she held various positions at China Investment Corporation, including team leader
and senior manager of Legal & Compliance Department and then Senior Advisor.

ARNE BOES. SERREARBFEREHNTRERSENLORTHMSHAESK, MBEERLIFLINR,
BAFRIMNESHIZI B K, —RKMNF .
FAN Kejun is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he served as Depuly Director-General of the Department of Administration and Finance of

the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the Macao SAR, and worked in the MOF successively as Depuly Inspector of the
Department of Agriculture, Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of the Department of Natural Resources and Ecological Environment.

EFE RS (ERAESSTEREMEENNZE) .. BEPEARRTHOATEIEE TR R,

YAN Lijuan is Equity Director of CDB (pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities). Previously, she served as
Deputy Director-General of the General Office and Level Il Inspector of PBC.

KB RITK. ZETBRTEACFRLBILLE. 2428, RGERH (AF-RLH) 52812, BEHHTAT
K. LERE, BMELTRITE. T, RREER (HFREH) 228, aRARERNIG BTN ( RIFHRD
NE) BEE (EE).

ZHANG Hui is Executive Vice President of CDB. Before joining CDB, he worked in the Bank of Communications of China as Deputy
General Manager and then General Manager of Asset Preservation Department; Deputy General Manager of Risk Management
Department (Asset Preservation Department); Deputy General Manager and Disciplinary Secretary of Shanghai Branch; Deputy General
Manager and then General Manager of Guizhou Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department (Asset Preservation
Department), Chief Risk Officer and concurrently General Manager of Risk Management Department and Director-General of Office of
Case Prevention Leadership Team.

FPH BfFE. 2HERFREFERESHEREK, BRSELERIEIBK, RITHTTE, BBk
HFEEWEE, ERT LTI, JIHEHTITIR.

WANG Weidong is Execulive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of
International Finance Department, Deputy Dirsctor-General of International Cooperation Department, General Manager of Shenzhen
Branch, Director-General of Administration Office of International Finance Deparlment, General Manager of Chongging Branch, and
General Manager of Jiangsu Branch.

HER BFK.SETFEISRTALZATCRANESRSEENANZLE. BEE, WILE {717 IKEE,
BT, DAEEME IAFEMITK, SRLFS2 K.

XIE Taifeng is Executive Vice President of GDB. Previously, he worked at ICBC serving as Deputy Director-General of the General Office
and concurrently Deputy General Manager and then General Manager of the Brand and Service Management Department, Assistant
General Manager and Deputy General Manager of Hebei Branch, Director-General of the General Office, and General Manager of Jiangsu
Branch, and Chief Business Officer successively.

ERK ETR. BEXRRHMEBE (HABSE) BB, MBEELETEEK, MEIEFIK. KRWR. —R
IR, RESITRIBPREIRE (3R)  BFRSHRINFGRLOREE (38, TRHITHE) . EE (GR), ERITK.

WANG Kebing Is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy Director-General of Tianjin Municipal Finance Bureau
(Tianjin Local Taxation Bureau), Then, he held positions in MOF successively as Depuly Director-General of the Department of Treaty and Law,
Deputy Director-General, Inspector and Level | Inspector of the Budget Department, concurrently Vice President of China Remote Learning
College for Accounting, Deputy Director-General (acting Director-General) and then Director-General of the Government Debt Research and
Assessment Center, and Director-General of the Department of Finance of MOF.
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BER BTK(FRASSFERSBRESIWZE) . STPERIVERBITIHE HFETK, FEtiEa
BEMTITR, WREHITITIE.
CHEN Mengmeng is Execulive Vice President of CDB [pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities). Previously,

he worked successively at Agricultural Development Bank of China (ADBC) as Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Branch, General
Manager of Guangxi Branch, and General Manager of Shandong Branch.

FUE EFSUBANEERRLE. SEERFARITTFEZRERE. MAFRER, 2ES5ERIBK.
Bk, TEEMTORK, GHEESEK, ERFSMERATLATHEEK. 28, ERALETASEE K.

LI Huachang is Secrelary of the Board of Directors and General Manager of Human Resources Department of CDB, Previously, he
worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of Project Appraisal Department Ill, Deputy Direclor-General of Executive Office,
Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Legal Department, General Manager of Henan Branch, Director-General of Loan

Management Department, Chairman and President of CDB Capital Co., Ltd., and Director-General of Human Resources Department of
CDB.

BEE BFEHE. FIHELEE. SEERFLARTUSREIRK, BEEERRK, MERBK, hiELREL
EHEMATESK, BRARBTHEITEF K.
YANG Bachua is Chief Audit Officer and General Manager of Audit Department of CDB. She worked successively at CDB as Depuly

Director-General of Finance and Accounting Department, Director-General of Operations Departiment, Director-General of Finance and
Accounting Department, Chairperson of the China-Africa Development Fund (CADFund), and Director-General of Audit Department.

NEBE HFELSE LFLARBLLE. BEERFTRARITT RESTHTK, FTF_BRIBK. BK, 2 lLER
K IERREBK.

LIU Peiyong Is Chief Business Officer and General Manager of Business Development Department of CDB. Previously, he worked
successively at CDB as Depuly General Manager of Guangdong Branch, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Project

Appraisal Department Il, Director-General of Large Corporate Client Department, and Director-General of Business Development
Department.

EFP HEAEE. NREERSELHE. SEEARFLRTAERABK. BTN AETHEEK, EEhOEE,
EEMEBERK. M)A FHEK, BEBR K.

WANG Zhong is Chief Risk Officer and General Manager of Risk Management Department of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at
CDB as Deputy Director-General of Human Resources Department, Full-time Deputy Chief of Assessment and Evaluation Team, Director-

General of Operations Center, Director-General of Information Technology Department, General Manager of Sichuan Branch, and Director-
General of Treasury & Financial Market Department.
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EERZFENR

CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BATEFL202BFE T RLWHNESHAEREBEEVARE, BEERTRIESK. TES. Tk
BAFEEE2023FE S RAWHIAR, HBFEERTHEES. SRTHEER2023FF LREWHE
it, EEIGEIEATHETEE, BATESS2024FEFE RS WHENER, BIRBIXRTHEES. 2XTESES
20224 /RS WHINBE H REARSMESNELE, SES KERBERTRINESE. 2X7EFEZ2023
FHETRSWHEWER FRERSME EVEE, ARRIEERTRINES. GRTESS2024FF RSV
WEE, BTREEETRNES, HERAEEFEREMEENNZE. 2RTESS2023FF HRASWE
WEEHEEREREENNERE, HHREBERTETK EATEFL2024F B —REWF VB HKER
SRMENNEE, TRKETETRTK. BRTEFEL2024FE RS WEIGEL , BRBRIBERTREITK,
HERBFRGFEREHE EVZE.

RAERABEEATIESK QITEE. (TK. BTFRARBEERTATES. BITK. EERFES  FR
WARFEERTHENR R RIFM. KB BB RERERTRNGES. WHEFBRERTRITIC

As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, TAN
Jiong was appointed as Vice Chairman, Executive Director, and President. As reviewed al the third meeting of the Board of Directors in
2023, GUO Tingting was appointed as Government Agency Director. As reviewaed at the seventh meeting of the Board of Directors in
2023, LI Chunlin was appointed as Government Agency Director. As reviewed at the first meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024, LIAO
Min was appointed as Governmeant Agency Director. As reviewed at the eighth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2022 and approved
by the national financial regulatory authorities, GE Rongrong and ZHANG Lusong were appointed as Equity Director. As reviewed at the
second meeting of the Board oi Directors in 2023 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, FAN Kejun was appointed
as Equity Director. As reviewed at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024, YAN Lijuan was appointed as Equity Director,
pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities. As reviewed at the 10th meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023
and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, XIE Taifeng was appointed as Execulive Vice President. As reviewed at the
first meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, WANG Kebing was appointed
as Executive Vice President. As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024, CHEN Mengmeng was appointed as
Executive Vice President, pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities.

OUYANG Weimin no longer served as Vice Chairman, Executive Director, and President. XU Shouben no longer served as Executive
Director and Executive Vice President. LIAN Weilliang, XU Hongcai and LI Chenggang no longer served as Government Agency Direcior,
WU Zhenpeng, ZHANG Yong and CUI Hanzhong no longer served as Equity Director. LIU din no longer served as Execulive Vice President.

FEFHHER

ANNUAL REMUNERATION

ARAFMEERE ATATAFIW“BERB(PRE/C W ATAFMEEGTHZE)NGT, FHESHRBERE
i SE FHAEAM A A G ERBERTERNABHOREAFTABRFEHFELINFHFN G RUITERE,
REFERZSHY REMECABSHNZSASTE, SEFSMER, BEEARTERNETEREFHE
AITEA MG 0. 20235, FRITFEIR L AUE M0F A 38 ABA FHNGEBEH N RMIIE.

Remuneration for executives. The remuneration policy for executives of the Bank is kept in compliance with the Provisional Standards
for the Remuneration of Executives of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities. Comprising an annual base salary, an
annual performance-based salary, and term incentives, their salaries are calculated in accordance with the base figure and performance
evaluation results released by the competent state authorities every year. Their remuneration plan must first be adopted by the CPC
CDB Committee and then presented to the Committee on Human Resources and Remungration of the Board of Directors for review. It
is filed with the competent state authorities and announced on the official website of the Bank after approved by the Board of Directors.
In 2023, their annual base salaries and annual performance-based salaries were paid in strict compliance with the above-mentioned
standards and regulations.
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FITEE. SREEAR2023F EFHMIER

Remuneration of Directors and Members of Senior Management in 2023
(#{: At 10 Thousand RMB)

N 05,83

B i 18.77
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director

W BB, PTES, TK 54.69 15.81
TAN Jiong Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President ) ;
3k ¥E &){7ic

ZHANG Hul Executive Vice President 58.07 18.46
FUR RBliTiE .
LIU Jin Executive Vice President 58.07 18.46
FBR EliTd

WANG Weidong Executive Vice President 50.07 18.48
U5 FIERRIS

XIE Taifeng Executive Vice President 14,77 511
=y THLSHB

LI Huachang Sacr:tary of the Board of Directors 123.85 21.57
HEE HEEITE

YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer 123.92 21.07
WiEEm HRIEE

LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer 123.85 20.62
E BIRMAKRE .

WANG Zhong Chief Risk Officer 123.85 21.06

E1:RBEARBXMNE, B2015F1 AR, FITAFTAFBRBMBE( PREMEL R FAFNELETHENGT, BBl
b3 0

2 RTMEEEMERAT P RERITHRAFH .
S RBEERFRME, KT AFANEREEAR2023F HAHIMAETATIZD, 50 00 TE KT8 BTRE.

Note 1: Since January 2015, in accordance with the government regulations, the remuneration for executives of the Bank has been kept in
compliance with the Provisional Standards for the Remuneration of Executives of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities,
and has been paid hereby.

Nole 2: Govarnment Agency Directors and Equity Direclors are nol remunerated by the Bank,

Note 3: In accordance with the government regulations, the final remuneration of executives and other members of Senior Management in 2023
is still subject to final confirmation, Additional details of remuneration will be disclosed when they have been determined.

-
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RIFMER R THMERTH TR TOSHNIRE AR HMARR N, BFLIH . && . F4HMNE LS RE.
EEARE. D FEE%, 20234, AITHEMT AR SRR AZOMIFHEE, RErLLim o eusl, 2745
MHE EIEARE, FHH RS ORE—E R RRKANM® RS R TR, 5 3CREH R RR ML RE
. EFHMERAE, FEETEEER, AU RLHERER, (R(ERFARTHWMERIRFNIZ (202350 ) ),
BHIRFEEAENATE. FARECUVARARS EGHEFHHEEAZ TG, FHEELGUFTHWERNEAETESE
Ro RITLMA LI RBPIIEAXBORSRE, TORBRING, FEXRERE . BXETRE. K.
THAMEFRIES, LY EOMEELMNLES, A MR TURRIESER. A TIRKG, HAFRSEITRES
BEAAIXGEARES. BEAFEREN SRERTERME, FITM012FRBNRTRIGUFSE,
HRBIRSEN—EEATRELVESHE, £2 TRABIRITRIBTRM. 2023F , XITIHFENEFEETE
2 RIETHEAETHRRHAERARE, £HREFEEERGDRETHS.

Remuneration for the staff. Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures made by CDB to the staff; these include
salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits, social insurance, housing allowance, and annuities. In 2023, the Bank continued adopting
a position- and performance-based salary policy. The remuneration policy was improved to provide more effective management of
performance-based salaries. The Bank continued to give priority to staff working in the front line, holding key positions and having
excellent performance, in resources allocation, aiming to provide more effective incentives and restraints, With regard to remuneralion,
the Bank strictly implemented the regulatory requirements, constantly enhanced rules and systems, and issued the Operational
Procedures of China Development Bank for Remuneration Management (2023), effectively improving standardized management. It
continued to improve the mechanism for deferred payment of performance-based salary of executives and senior management, and
strictly implemented the administrative measures on recovery and deduction of performance-based salaries. The Bank joins local
government's social insurance schemes to fully pratect the rights of the staff and provide coverage in basic endowment insurance,
healthcare, unemployment, workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly to the premium in accordance with the threshold and
percentage mandated by local authorilies. Local social security depariments are legally bound to make elderly care payments lo the
Bank's staff members after their retirement. In addition to the basic elderly care, CDB, approved by competent state authorities, set up
annuity schemes for its staff in 2012. The accrued amount of annuity is based on a certain percentage of the total salaries and will be
paid as planned during retirement. In 2023, the Bank kept reinforcing the operation and managemant of annuities and actively adjusted
investment strategies according to the market changes, making every effort to ensure stable and sustainable operating income of
annuities,

RILIEMR
STAFF

HE2023F K, EMHBERT12173 A HPOO% A THEABRLL EZH, 78%MA THEMRERL £
=23 i

At the end of 2023, the CDB group had a staff of 12,173, of whom 99% held a bachelor's degree or higher and 78% a master's degree
or higher.
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AEhaIE
CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

AERELRIAR
OVERVIEW

FTRFERSEREEPHENMBEBRERIEITENRE BENASHEARALATAE, RESAAROR
P RERAT RN, BUNBNRSENE, HHRALTEEENAMENM. SABF R ERBESERA
FirER AEER, BHBRE, SERMWELRN TR Z+RE-FLL. RSB THELN. hREF TS
PHER, EDRPR. ESREARRBEGVLEEVEL. TRENRAEASHER, €50, LB . B2,
ERDNAETRERREERE, ERE FERE. AR SEEFERROREBENTFRLRE, HEE.
MEX. BEE. RURLEZNAS TURIARASHEAKANREGEHNE, RIEIRIKEREEFS52
A @ ARIILERE, SERe MESH. STER. DEERE. AUHE " NASEEAR, hEFREN
SBIETIRM RS,

EBRFNMEXONG. EREPRYEVIENEPE RS, REFTRESIRMELIEELBEEBIEF]
THE BY@STEERMEIRTR AERAEDETENS, BRERSSESFEAREARE, B20A
MEBTEMBEEH . ARM, BEEFBETEFCSRMARZE. BUNMFDICRE, BETRASDBEEH
HAPESEHEENERROEN, LIFREIRNDEFHHAPEFEHLT NI ATHHE, EHEMH
BFRIEF I AMBE N ARESRBEARNED TR BERURNECARE AL, SHNBENSHAERE, R
RS RETERE. LB PRI BLF et R IR M ECEE, M08 % RURBEEF R RN T 1E, 8
HIERRR, EERFSIEMNBUAES.

FERESENAENN ETRETRETENN, FEELEETEIRAREABNES MBHEELREE)
ERSVUBER E—FPPEREES . ENEALNRLRAAERAR . IR HFLSNBREEA R EIR G S S
HAE BFSNERAEEARMRFMAE. ARALBLELZNELHE ACHFREHEE. SAERARRE
RFNFAFRALGEERZ, FEREABEZMRARNSE . EHR2IT. ATREBFAITARRRESERNE
BT, MSLREIR TAIAHER . 2540, Rk K EN.

BUATABETRE. NENFESWANRAELH, BB WERR. RO RIYE, RiFR SR 808
HilE REEFSARRE. S —FPRETFFLRURTFERNELRENG, M EXIHEFER. 8N R
W BT REELMBEESE, MBERRBRERE AARTEAHENS NERBEAER. MBASAEE
BRI, R# RN SR EMER.

REWA, ATAEEXREASHEB IR AOEXLDEEMOVEN LHEREFEEAESR.

CDB keeps strengthening its governance system and governance capabilities in supporting national strategies, effectively integrating
the Party's leadership into corporate governance to make sure that major decisions are well-informed, the effectiveness of execution
is improved, and the systematic supervision is enhanced. It strives to improve the compliance and effectiveness of its corporate
governance. Strictly abiding by regulatory requirements and the CDB Articles of Association, all functions perform their duties in a diligent
and standardized manner. They implement the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress, the Second Plenary Session of
the 20th CPC Central Committee, the Central Financial Work Conference and the Gentral Economic Work Conference, promoting the
implementation of the major decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Gouncil on all fronts. The CPC CDE
Committee takes the initiative to play a leading role in steering the direction, managing from a big-picture perspective, and ensuring
implementation. The Board of Directors consclentiously fulfills its responsibilities as the main body that makes business decisions by
developing strategles, making decisions and preventing risks. The senior management strictly follows the instructions of the CPC CDB
Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors in making operational plans, strengthening Implementation, and enhancing
management. The Bank establishes and improves the democratic corporate managsment system based on the employees’ congress
under the Party's leadership to ensure that staff representatives participate in corporate governance in an orderly and law-based manner.
Through building systems and mechanisms, CDB continues to improve its corporate governance system with “rights and responsibilities
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clearly delineated, all functions performing their duties, businesses operated in a coordinated manner under effective checks and
balances", providing robust support for stable and standardized operation of the Bank.

Upholding and Strengthening CPC Leadership. CDB upholds the centralized leadership of the CPC Gentral Committee over finance
and keeps improving the system for the Party committee to study and deliver General Secrelary Xi Jinping's instructions, and establish
and refine the working mechanism for the Party commitlee 1o implement the decisions and instructions of the CPG Central Committee
and the State Council. It adheres to the fundamental principle of supporting real economy, develops a deeper understanding of making
financial services more politically-oriented and people-centered and firmly stays on the path of financial advancement with Chinese
characteristics. It consolidates the studies of the Party's innovative theories to enhance cohesion and forge the Party's soul across the
Bank with Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era. It carries out themed educational activities on
studying and implementing Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, and transforms the achievements
made through studying the Parly's innovative theories into the practices in supporting high quality development. The Bank makes of the
Party's polilical building a top priority and strengthens Party building in all aspects for continuous improvement. With in-depth reviews
over the central inspection and corrections against problems identified in auditing, the Bank also intensifies efforts to counter corruption,
enhance integrity and improve conduct so as to build a clean political environment.

Improving corporate governance mechanism. CDB revises the rules of work of the CDB Party Committee, strictly implements the
major matters deliberated and decided by the Party Committee, It streamlines the agenda of the Board of Directors and its committees,
and further clarifies their boundaries of power and methods of duty performance. It formulates regulations such as the administrative
measures of the Board of Direclors on duly performance accountability of senior management, the rules on the duly performance
evaluation of senior management, and the regulations on the business performance evaluation of executives. On that basis, it organizes
duty performance evaluation on directors and senior management and operation performance evaluation on executives in a standardized
manner, keeping refining the internal evalualion and incentive and restraint mechanisms. The Bank promotes the standardized operation
of employees' congress at the head office, all branches and majority-owned subsidiaries, effectively protecting the rights of employees to
be informed, participate, express and supervise.

Strengthening corporate governance and operation performance. It sirengthens the integrated arrangement of subjects and
proposals of the Board of Directors, deliberates on subjects and arranges meetings as per plans, and keeps refining the proposal
communication procedures to improve the quality of decision-making by the Board of Directors. It further improves the feedback
mechanism for the implementation of resolutions of the Board of Directars and opinions of directors, ensuring that there are relevant
records, supervision and feedback. It revises the regulations on information disclosure management to reinforce the information
disclosure management, faithfully performs information disclosure obligations, and standardizes the disclosure of major information. It
enhances special corporate governance training to improve the awareness of corporale governance compliance across the Bank.

In the reporting period, there was no significant difference between the actual corporate governance of the Bank and the normative
documents issued by regulators on corporate governance.

RARIBSR

SHAREHOLDERS

REBA. ATRFELEE L. SE2023F K, £TRALSHERAS EERLTE:

Within the reporting period, there was no change to the shareholders of the Bank. CDB's shareholders and their shareholdings by the
end of 2023 are as follows:

REEH
~ Shareholder
[ geis
Ministry of Finance

FRICEV/FFINGELS
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 34.68%

MR FAETREELS 27.19%
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. :

PEHSRELEENS 1.59%
National Council for Social Security Fund *

=
F‘O‘tzl 100.00%
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PRICERFEMFAELTREB(PEARKMNELQDZ)HEARHURBINEGTMRELT, RIBE SRS,
P RAARKRARREN DT ESEREWTEEBEAAFETHAEANS, TNEELBASREEE.

BRMRAFEERRELAIRKEB( PEARKNELAS X)) HERIMNCERELERIMNEREELT, =8
MEERIMNAE . R F. £ RRBRURE-SHEE, {ESE,

ZEHEARESEESRSEHSREESNEREENM.

The MOF is a macro-regulation body under the State Gouncll, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating
fiscal and tax policies, and exercising fiscal supervision. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government to perform the
responsibilities as an investor of central state-owned financial capital in a centralized way,

Central Huijin Investment is a wholly stale-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions,
and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial assets,

Bultonwood Investment Holding Company is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, investing in domestic and overseas
projects, equities, debts, funds, and loans and engaging in entrusted asset management and invesiment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.

BEES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EESHEM

Members of the Board of Directors

RREZSRMENC(ERFRRTER), ATHFFLH1STHAR, BIF3ENTHS (SHFK). 18558
FHOBRNESR. B, ATHREKARRIBE, BIEFLHITTEE, TESSFE: B0 00, $SEFHE
REARKEE. MEE. THH. ARRITSIERISBEAZABME, 015 56 EIR. 022, K, ARIE
FHRRBMER, 815 KES. BLE. BEE. RER. ARE, e . EEL20H: T4 E.

As mandated by the CDB Articlas of Association approved by the State Councll, the Board of Directors has 13 members: three Executive
Directors (the Chairman included), four Government Agency Directors, and six Equity Directors. The incumbent Chairman is ZHAO Huan
and Vice Chairman TAN Jiong; the Executive Directors are ZHAQ Huan and TAN Jiong; the Government Agency Directors are each
appointed by the NDRC, the MOF, the MOFCOM, and the PBC. They are LI Chunlin, LIAQ Min, GUO Tingting, and ZHANG Xiaohui. The

shareholders appoint ZHANG Shenghui, TAN Long, GE Rongrong, ZHANG Lusong, FAN Kejun, and YAN Lijuan® as Equity Directars. LI
Huachang is the Secretary of the Board of Directors.

"SR EIREDER .

* Please refer lo the Changes to the Board of Directors and Senior Management in the previous chapter.

HFESRR

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

FATEELRBAREREMR(BARFRBTER)DTRE. FE2NRNEEQE JEEENETEFE.
READE, FASRFTR. FHSRAR TELNBANREEITHR, ALRTEERERERSIES, st
ERRBZREE. FESEHUNRETE, FERSLTH, FASENNSTENELNEIAEGTH =,
EATE, REEE. ARRHSEEEEEE, A SREMN, —RIBRNSTHNEE BDLMMESE, IE
HHERMFETETY, FERES, ARNAGTHREKLESEETEENENEHE.
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The Board of Directors fuliills its responsibilities as per applicable laws, regulations and the CDB Articles of Association. Its responsibilities
include making annual financial budgets and statements, profit sharing plans, losses compensation plans, rules of procedures af the
Board of Directors and related revised plans, and policies and systems for information disclosure of the Bank. It reviews and approves
medium- and long-term development strategies, annual business operation plans and investment plans, annual plans on bond issuance,
plans on capital management and issuance of capital replenishment instruments, major projects, management rules on risk management
and Internal control, internal management structure, plans on the establishment, adjustment and cancellation of tier-one branches in and
outside the Chinese mainland, charters, annual working plans, and annual reports. It decides on the authorization to the Chairman and
the senior management.

EELIEF
Work of the Board of Directors
20234, A{THELANARHE PR BFRARNE, BWELERERTIERFLARESBEPRYMENTIE, B
2 EMLIEFLBCEEEREN, TEFLRTERAEMRMERTIRERA, RERSERER, FRIERN
B, RERERE. RREPRERENSAR, IRSEESYRLLEERE NRYALRTHRERREKR
BT FURE , A LD WHE S REME, BKEER, RULERR BEARNAIRE, NEXEES
MEHEE, MPREEZAFAR, MEYETMELR, HARERBMARNE , EHFRRITREEREAM
. ERSRSFAR . BHEARLBESARNKRSEHIEREHAR. 2EEAESSSWNR, FELFE
Eitkl. MEMEASLE2IMINE, IWHAEAETE, GERERGSTHILIRT, HAMBSIET. EEniT
ZEERET 0.
In 2023, the Board of Directors of CDB faithiully implemented the decisions and instructions made by the CPC Central Commitlee and
the State Councll, always making its plans and advancing its work in line with the bigger picture of the causes of the Party and the
country. In further studying and comprehending important instructions of General Secretary Xi Jinping, it focused on its mandate as a
bank for infrastructure, prioritized supporting national strategies, fulfiled its duties in compliance with laws and regulations, and made
prudent and well-informed decisions. It maintained the leading role of CPC CDB Committee, and supported the senior management
to strengthen operational management. CDB exerted greater efforts to research and decide on major matters concerning its reform
and development and promoted the implementation of the plans for reform of category-based management for specific accounts. It
enhanced strategic management and control, improved the business layout, refined the functions of internal organs, and strengthened
the vertical risk and compliance management. It developed reasonable appraisal targets and schemes and strengthened the financial
budge! constraints. It conlinued to enhance the incentive and constraint mechanism and promoted CDB to make new achievements
in supporting national major strategies, boosting development of real economy, and preventing, mitigating and resolving major risks.
Over the year, the Board of Directors convened 11 meetings, al which members reviewed 62 proposals, including the annual business
operation plan and financial budget plan, heard eight special reports on data governance, IT development and other efforts, and
deliberated on, among others, 71 reports on financial operation and business analysis.

EEEENERS

Committees of the Board of Directors

ATESSTERBERNKAEEERS §iTERE AKTEZFRAS XKXSRHNZERES. ABSFHIZE
RESNMENERS. EXNZRSRETELBNARIE HEESA K.

The Board of Direclors has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit
Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control, and the Commitiee on Human

Resources and Remuneration, all of which discharge their responsibilities as mandated by the Board of Directors and report to the Board
of Directors.

BEARNMBBERERAS TEAFHEFUEATRPARABNLETEHEER, RULSRERY SELEFE
S8 REAZRNGHERURESHERTER: MRSERSBEIANREBRETHR, @EBSRIIK
RENF.2023F, ATHBERARARFAEEZEASNRKWE, RAARAZLR. EEEEFATN, =&
WHHSRBRHE, MEAAER, FALBRINLBEFERK. SEBFORSW, WNTANER, IWEE TR,
BRAHEMITEREEEICIR.
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Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development
strategy and the overarching goal of business management of the Bank and provides suggestions on business changes; monitors the
execution of the annual operational plan, investment plan and the fulfillment of corporate social responsibilities: studies national strategies
and the supperting policies and advises the Board of Directors. In 2023, the committee strengthened strategic planning, dsliberated
on major matters of reform, development, operation and management, refined the classified management system, intensified capital
management, and handled existing risks in a prudent way. It convened nine meetings to review 27 proposals and hear special reports on
the implementation of business operation plans, and among others, investment schemes.

HHERS TEAFTHRABF T EZRRN RS, St kPR HIRANEE R ITHH 55, BB, 2
RN AERE T L, WEMEMIM IR TN T, IRHMBE N E S ERBINSE . 20034, KITHEIHE
REFHEBMFIET. ABRGRFH TEHR, ST HLEEEANMAEYY, AOABRHRSLWSRE
EARERFA , RIBIEDBRIZIT IRHIEY. SEBFI4REW, WII0TINE, IFRMEET. ABHitLE
AL 1R 1610,

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and approves medium- and long-
term audit plans and annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on
exlernal audit; and advises on the hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2023, the committee continued te supervise financial
operation, internal contral, and audit, evaluated the compliance and effectiveness of operation and management, and organized the
duty performance evaluation on senior management by the Board of Directors, promoting steady operation and improving the operation

quality and performance. It convened 14 meetings to review ten proposals and hear 16 special reports on financial operation, and among
others, internal auditing.

REEEZR| . FTEAFHUREEELE KESEEHLERKERERERAMNK. WiHRE. RAaR LS
HENBHOBHEIER, W RGBE, BRRRRRIERZEEN T EEHTE, REREREESBNASEHOER
Lo 2023F, ATHREREZERS B LGS LARNRZS ERSRABEEER, HUAREESZTE, BLUR
BUGITE, 52 LUEMEREDE. SEBFTREW, Wi 10MINE, ITRRKEE . SN EEL L mTRA.

Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the senior management in their
comprehensive risk management and control of various risks with regard to credit, market, and liquidity; conducts regular assessments of
risk policies, management, and resilience; and advises on how to improve risk management and internal control. In 2023, the committee
continued to coordinate development and security, improved the risk management system, refined risk management measures and tools,

and strengthened risk monitoring and early warning, making consistent efforts in promoting risk control. It convenad seven meetings to
review ten proposals and hear four special reports on risk management, and among others, compliance management.
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Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control. This committee reviews major related-parly transactions, handles the filing of
general related-party transactions and hears the report on the overall situation of annual related-party transactions. In 2023, the
committee kept improving the management of related parties and related-party transactions, promoted the development of an intefligent
related-party transaction system to improve the capability to identify and control related parties and related-party transactions, and

prevented the interests tunneling risk effectively. It convened two meetings to review one proposal and hear three special reports on
related-party transaction management,
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Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committes reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of
the Bank, proposes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and senior management, advises the Board of Directors on
remuneration plans and supervises the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and
senior management, and preliminarily examines the qualification of candidates for the directors and senior management and advises
the Board of Directors on the matter, In 2023, the committee brought Into full play its professional advantages, advanced its work by
strengthening the board building and senior management, improving performance evaluation, and gave advice and recommendations. It
organized duty performance evaluation on directors and business performance evaluation on executives by the Board of Directors, and
promoted the efforts to reinforce internal incentives and restraints. It convened nine meetings to review 16 proposals.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The Bank’s senior management includes President, Executive Vice Presidents, Secretary of the Board of Directors, and other senior
management members, They discharge duties in operational management as mandated by the CDB Articles of Assaciation and the
Board of Directors, and reports to the Board of Directors. In 2023, the senior management of CDB played its role in making operational
plans, ensuring implementation, and strengthening management, under the authorization of the Board oi Directors. It faithiully
implemented the instructions of the CPC CDB Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors, formulated working instructions on
senior management, and standardized and strengthened ils decision-making mechanism and working procedures for the management of
the senior management in line with authorization. It intensified operation and management coordination, improved the business analysis
and scheduling mechanism, enhanced the quality and efficiency of project development review, and brought into full play its counter-
cyclical and cross-cyclical role. It systematically improved the credit system and mechanism and continued to make credit management
more well-informed. It intensified penetrating management and witnessed significant progress in liquidation and standardization of
subsidiaries and affiliates. It concentrated advantageous credit resources to facllitate policy connection, and increased investment
and financing to support key industries and under-developed sectors such as major infrastructure, self-reliance in advanced science
and technology, and high quality Belt and Road cooperation. It continued to improve the comprehensive risk management system,
strengthened vertical risk management in both the head office and branches, intensified internal control and compliance management,
and tackled risks of key projects effectively, boosting its risk control capacity. It enhanced assets and liabilities coordination, promoted
risk prevention and resolution, prioritized cost-reduction and efficiency increase, and improved the quality and eftectiveness of operation
and management on all fronts, fulfilling the annual business objectives set by the Board of Directors.
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In 2023, GDB continuously strengthened internal control management. The structure for authorization management and mechanism for
differentiated authorization and dynamic adjustments were strengthened, and dynamic adjustments of basic authorization in branches
were carried out. COB summarized and verified the campaign to strengthen the internal control compliance of credit business, It
summarized and promoted the scenario-based defect analysis method for internal control compliance, and made the internal control
compliance management more scientific and "fefined across the Bank. CDB improved the internal control evaluation index system
for branches and enhanced the rating and scoring model of internal control efficiency, with a full coverage of all branches and major
business activities, It launched Year of Internal Control and Compliance and coordinated key tasks such as educational motivation,
management supervision, business line improvement, institutional guarantee and team building. It also circulated a compliance proposal,
held the competition for internal control and compliance skills, and conducted tour lectures on legal compliance for the front-line
employees, to improve the ability and legal compliance management awareness of all staff members, CDB further improved its internal
control evalualion system and carried out evaluations. According lo the assessment, no major defect was discovered in the internal
control system during the reporting period, pointing lo effective work in this area; improvements were made where necessary,
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INTERNAL AUDIT
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As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directars.
In 2023, CDB implemented the guidelines set at the meeting of the Audit Commission of the CPC Gentral Committee, mel regulatory
requirements, focused on salving problems, and laid stress on value increase. It carried out follow-up auditing of implementation of
five policies including CDB Infrastructure Investment Fund and its supporting loans as well as the reform of category-based business
management for specific accounts, ensuring that the major strategies and policy measures of the state produced their intended results.
Business operation and management auditing was carried out in eight branches both domestic and overseas to promote their prudent
operation. Special audits were also carried out for NPL transfer and write-off, capital management, implementation of the expected
credit loss method, and IT management to promote business operation compliance. CDB went all out to make corrections against and
held those accountable for problems identified by the National Audit Office, and implemented the long-acting mechanism for correcting
problems identified in audits, addressing both the causes and symptoms. In-office accountability audits were piloted to encourage
appropriate and prudent exercise of power. Public complaints concerning CDB's asset security were handled in a transparent manner,
coupled with follow-up checks and risk reminders. The Bank promoted the coordination of audits with disciplinary inspections, tour
inspections and other supervisory inspections to form supervisory synergy. It kept refining the integrated management of auditing,
improved the auditing system, and intensified process management of audit quality. Special efforts were made to enhance IT support
for auditing and promole the use of off-site auditing. It strengthened training and qualification management of auditors to raise auditing
efficiency continuously.
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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In 2023, CDB formulated the rules for related-party identification, integrating the requirements on related-party transaction management
into relevant business systems 1o further strengthen the standardized management. During the reporting period, the Bank's related-party
transactions were carried out in accordance with general commercial terms in compliance with laws and regulations. Such transactions were
priced according to fair commercial principles, and no behavior was found detrimental to the interests of the Bank and its shareholders.

At the end of 2023, the balance of credit related-party transactions of the Bank totaled RMBE9.026 billion, the total amount of service
related-party transactions reached RMB180 million, and the total amount of deposit and other related-party transactions amounted to
RMB146.127 billion, The balance of credit extended to a single related party (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged bank deposit
certificates and treasury bonds deducted) accounted for 2.40% of the total net capital at maximum; the total balance of credit extended
to a single related carporation or a group customer of an unincorporated organization (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged
bank deposit certificates and treasury bonds deducted) accounted for 2.40% of the net capital at maximum; and the balance of credit
extended 1o all related parties (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged bank deposil certificates and treasury bonds deducted)
accounted for 3.75% of the net capital, all meeting the regulalory requirements for related party transaclions.

For detailed information on relaled-party transaclions defined in accordance with Chinese laws, regulations and accounting standards,
please refer to Notes 10 to the Financial Statements: Related-Parly Relationships and Transactions.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
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In 2023, CDB conscientiously implemented relevant regulatory requirements for information disclosure and continued to intensify the
whole-process information disclosure management, with the focus on improving the information disclosure performance. The Board of
Directars and senior management of CDB took the initiative to fulfill their information disclosure responsibilities, strengthened overall
coordination and supervisory review o urge relevant functions responsible to faithfully perform their information disclosure obligations by
duly disclosing important information, so as to constantly improve the transparency of operation, It revised its administrative measures
for information disclosure, further standardized the information disclosure content, clarified the division of information disclosure
responsibilities, and specified work requirements and approval process for different information disclosure. It carried out training on
information disclosure to promote the implementation of measures. It formulated and duly released its annual report and sustainability
report, and standardized disclosure of major information on changes in the Board of Directors, accountability for and corrections
of problems identified in both internal and external inspections, and the utilization of the funds raised through green finance bonds,
accepting public supervision on its own initiative. The Bank also organized evaluations on the implementation of information disclosure
regulations to ensure there was no false or misleading information or major omission in information disclosed.
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In 2023, CDB faithiully implementad national policies, remained committed to its mandate, supported national strategies and contributed
to the perfarmance of the real economy. The CDB group saw an ROA of 0.47% and an ROE of 5.32%.
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INCOME AND EXPENSES
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In 2023, the CDB group made a net profit of RMBB7.417 billion, in which net interest income, as the leading source of the Bank’s
income, reached RMB160.313 billlion,
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Profit for the Year 87,417 84,340 3,077
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Al the end of 2023, the CDB group had total assets of RMB18,654.522 billion, growing by 2.26% year on year. Loans remained the
dominant assets, with RMB14,244.743 billion of loans and advances, up by 2.49% year on year and accounting for 76.36% of the lotal
assets. Total liabilities stood at RMB16,974.792 billion, up by 2.03% year on year. Debl issuance was the primary source of funding. At
the end of 2023, the group had a balance of RMB12,724.297 billion in debt securities, up by 4.93% year on year and accounting for

74.96% of total liabilities.
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INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
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In 2023, CDB faithfully implemented the guiding principles of the Central Financial Work Conference and the Central Economic Work
Conference, and integrated the support for infrastructure development with technology finance, green finance, inclusive finance, elderly
care finance and digital finance. [t increased medium- and long-term loans to support key infrastructure projects, and kept improving
the quality and efficiency of financial services to better support high quality development of the real economy. At the end of 2023, the
Bank witnessed its total balance of infrastructure loans exceeding RMB7.8 trillion, with over BMB1.5 trillion issued across the year. The
Bank channeled long-term funds across socisty to support modern infrastructure development and granted IDF-supporting loans totaling
RMEB170 billion.
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Networked infrastructure including transport, energy, and water conservancy

(F) ZiBiEMEMRE TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE
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CDB implemented the strategy of building China into a country with strong transport networks and the National Comprehensive Three-
dimensional Transport Network Plan, and focused on the medium- and long-term railway netwerk plan and national major regional
development strategies covering Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze River Delta, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,
and Chengdu-Chongqing economic circle. The focus of CDB's support was on the nationwide high-speed railway network composed
of "eight vertical and eight horizontal” lines and their connecting lines, inter-city rails in priority regions, integrated transport hubs,
and electrification and capacity expansion of existing rall lines. COB continued to support highway construction, and prioritized the
improvement of the national expressway network, including the construction of unfinished sections and the expansion and renovation of
congested sections, and 102 key projects prioritized during the 14th Five-Year Plan period. CDB advanced the transportation integration
in urban agglomerations and metropolitan areas, and vigorously promoted the construction of intra-city and suburban rails and urban rail
transit projects in cities with mare than 1 million urban population. Al the end of 2023, CDB's balance of loans to the highway sector was
RMB2,644.3 billion, and its balance of loans to the urban rail transit sector was RMB968.7 billion. CDB took the initiative o support the
construction of specialized port terminals, collection and distribution systems, public infrasiructure, and a national high-level waterway
network. In 2023, it gave priority to construction projects in major ports such as Tangshan Porl, Ningbo-Zhoushan Port, Yangpu Port,
and Beibu Gulf Port, as well as Pinglu Canal. It facilitated the construction projects in the civil aviation sector, increased financial support
for hub airport construction, relocation, reconstruction and expansion projects, and granted loans of RMB37.4 billion throughout the year,
with a focus on supporting projects including Dallan's new airport, Xiamen's new airport, Jinan Airport (Phase Il), and Shanghai Pudong
Airport Expansion.

(W) 7k F B85 WATER CONSERVANCY INFRASTRUCTURE

BEATHEREAKF TEMPBAMR . RAMHK KESEBESKANFBAY ., DHWBERKNER, 27K
REREHEN . 8 F20235F kK, KFIT U 570K E04,95512 7T, ®ERMBF1,22712Z7T, MWEFEAFHHFENIR
T1ER.

CDB gave priority to national water conservancy projects and under-developed areas in major national water conservancy projects
including projects for flood control and relief, rural water supply, and water ecological restoration, supported the construction of a
national water network, and improved the capacity to guarantee water security. By the end of 2023, CDB's balance of loans to the water

sector hit RMB495.5 billion, with RMB122.7 blllion of loans extended across the year, bringing into play its role as a lead funding source
for the sector.

(f) ®HZEiRHH ELECTRIC POWER INFRASTRUCTURE

BREMBRFRELNRL. IHLUMR . RE REATHABRENRENR, UEERKRLEHEN . 8 LRBE
EFEHREDEG. Bibs ERREDKBEFEERER, REVIHESRBREMED  TIRER B HEE
Big MEANERFFOEZSTIEXNLE R KNS TEAMRERER A —FZHFNEsRETBEM
RIEERMOTIEA R IFSE EM SIS, RIRACEN . BaERM . RA B ILE R A T2t mE 27
Gebis, iR RhREREMREM.

CDB supported the building of a new power system. It financed clean energy bases such as large-scale wind power and photovaoliaic
bases mainly in deserts and national water-wind-solar complementary bases and offshore wind power bases. Il promoted the
development of clean energy sources like hydropower based on local conditions, and helped improve the capacity to ensure traditional
energy supply. It promoted the construction of coastal nuclear power plants and participated in funding all nuclear power projects newly
approved by the government in 2023. It also provided vigorous support for charging infrastructure and issued a work plan 1o further
support a high quality charging infrastructure system. CDB also supported such projects as ultra-high-voltage (UHV) power transmission
corridors, strong distribution networks, and smart grids and the consolidation and improvement of rural power grids to help increase the
security and stability of the power system.
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(&) HSEMIZHE OIL AND GAS INFRASTRUCTURE
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CDB boosted the consiruction of the oil and gas production, supply, storage and distribution system and the improvement of
underdeveloped infrastructure, facilitated the development of a nationwide network to improve the national trunk pipeline network and
promote the connectivity of oil and gas pipeline networks. Throughout the year, RMB30.2 billion of loans were issued to oil and gas
pipeline network infrastructure, with prierity given to projects such as Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline 2, West-East Gas Pipeline 3, and West-
East Gas Pipeline 4.

o<
TR ER B RS AR ER &6

Infrastructure for industrial upgrading such as information, science
and technology, and logistics

() {EBEMIEHE INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE
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CDB supported the construction of network infrastructure for 5G and fixed broadband. It promoted the development of industrial internet
and digital transformation of the manufacturing industry, helping businesses to improve their quality and efficiency while reducing costs
and emission.

(¥R) REEMIEH SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY INFRASTRUCTURE
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With an aim to gather high-end innovation resources and improve the overall innovation efficiency, CDB taok the initiative to support the
building of Hefei Comprehensive National Science Center and Xi'an Science Park High-energy Sci-Tech Innovation Platform. It helped

to enhance original innovation capability and foster scientific innovation in key sectors by supporting scientific research facllities such as
national key laboratories and projects such as Tsinghua Science City, Xiamen Science City in Lianhe area and Jiuxikou area,
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T YiRERIgHE LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE
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Focusing on national logistics hubs and modern logistics systems, CDB provided financing supporl for projects including the integrated

pipeline corridor for long-distance transportation of bulk materials in Caofeidian, Tangshan and Hengyang International Logistics Port
(Phase I). The Bank has granted loans of RMBO.8 billion for logistics infrastructure in 2023,
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Urban, rural and agricultural infrastructure

(g ) 7 (B3%) ER%H INFRASTRUCTURE IN CITIES (COUNTIES)
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Centering on the key sectors identified by the national 14th Five-Year Plan, CDB focused on supporting integration of urban
agglomerations, urban governance, and urban green and low-carbon development. It explored market-based financing models to help
local govarnments revitalize stock assets, maximizing the synergy infrastructure, industrial facilities and operational and service facilities to
promote high quality development that is mutually supportive, integrated and interconnected. It intensified efforts to support infrastructure
construction by market-based methods to help build livable, resilient and smart cities, promoting people-centered new urbanization. At

the end of 2023, the balance of loans to the infrastructure sector in cities (counties) amounted to RMB1,079 billion, with a total of over
RMB280 billion of loans extended throughout the year.
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CDB provided targeted support to weak seclors and underdeveloped areas in agricultural infrastructure. It introduced special loans
for farmland construction and modern protected agriculture, totaling RMB100 billion respectively, and optimized resource allocation to
increase Investment. It offered quality and efficient financial services to accelerate agricultural modernization, prioritizing sectors such as
rural transport, energy, living space infrastructure, water supply, telecommunications and radio and television facilities, rural circulation
systems, and public facilities,
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CDB established a policy system to support dual-use public
infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs. It
strengthened institutional building, adopted differentiated
authorization, and improved project identification and pricing
management mechanisms. It helped to deliver pilot projects of
this kind, such as large suburban warehouse bases.
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MODERN INDUSTRIAL SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
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In 2023, CDB thoroughly implemented the instruclions of the stale on new industrialization, and sped up new
industrialization with a focus on building China into a manufacturing power. It made greal efforts to promote the
deep integration of technology and finance and provide largeted support to key national technology projects and
leading technology businesses, granting technology loans amounting to RMB230 billion across the year. It continued
to improve the structure of manufacturing loans and promoted the development of high-tech manufacturing. At the
end of 2023, CDB saw ils balance of manufacturing loans hit RMB1,189.9 billion.
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NATIONAL STRATEGIES FOR REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT
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In 2023, CDB actively implemented the guiding principles laid down in the important speeches delivered by General Secretary Xi Jinping
at meetings such as the Symposium on Advancing the High Quality and High Standard Construction and Development of Xiong'an
New Area and the Symposium on Promoting the Full Revitalization of Northeast China in the New Era, and released the /mplementation
Opinions on Supporting High Quality and High Standard Development of Xiong'an New Area and the Work Plan for Supporting the Full
Revitalization of Northeast China in the New Fra. It established a leading group for coordinated regional development. Centering on the
national strategies for regional development, including the coordinated development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the development
of Yangtze Economic Belt, the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta integrated development, the
Yellow River Basin ecological protection and high quality development, the Northeast China revitalization, and the rise of Central China,
CDB strengthened overall coordination, enhanced the guarantee of credit loan resources, and increased support for coordination of
major projects, elevating the quality and efficiency of its support for regional strategies.
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RURAL REVITALIZATION
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In 2023, CDB faithfully implemented the decisions and instructions of the GPC Gentral Committee and the State Council on consolidating
the poverty alleviation achievements and advancing rural revitalization in all aspects. It increased its financial support for "Agriculture,
Rural Areas and Farmers" and extended RMB534.5 billion of rural-related loans, achieving great progress in supporting rural revitalization.
It focused on priorily areas such as rural infrastructure, featured industries, and follow-up livelihood programs for relocated families,
and granted loans of RAMB276.2 billion to areas that have been lifted out of poverty. It adopted differentiated supporting measures and
granted Ioans of RMB59.3 billion to 160 counties prioritized in the national rural revitalization assistance program.
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The project of high-standard farmland and industrial integration development in Kaijiang, Sichuan adopts a *“farmlanc + Industry" model

to upgrade farmlanc infrastructure, increase agricultural preduction and income for farmers, and improve the rural living environment.
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PEOPLE'S LIVELIHOOD
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In 2023, CDB implemented national policies to ensure people's wellbeing and continued ta support subsidized rental housing and the
renovation of dilapidated housing and shanty towns, helping meet the housing needs of all peaple. It issued loans of RMB146.3 billion to
the housing sector for affordable rental housing; bengfiting over 480,000 households. It promoted'the pilot program for the rental housing
loans. CDB steadily advanced the renovation of shanty towns with projects that were implemented in a comprehensive, balanced
manner, and helped over 30 million househalds to move into new apartment buildings from shanty towns. It promoted the renovation of
dilapidated housing on all fronts, helping bring a better living environment for a total of 1.10 million househelds in old residential quarters.
It made great efforts to exlend special loans to ensure the delivery of pre-sold housing, helping to “guarantee the delivery of presold
housing, people’s livelihood and the stability of society”. It issued loans to the first for-sale subsidized housing project (Shuanglong New
Home Affordable Housing in Fuzhou Cily) and the first urban village renovation project in China (Dazehu Area Urban Village Renovation in
Wangcheng District, Changsha).

CDB made great efforts to provide financial services for the elderly care sector. Il supported the construction of inclusive elderly care
infrastructure, and actively promoted the implementation of the national strategy addressing population aging. It supported the high
quality development of private medical institutions and the development of medical parinerships, and helped promote the balanced
development of high quality medical resources, contributing to a robust healthcare service system. By the end of 2023, CDB had
provided a total of RMB70.7 billion loans to the elderly care sector, and RMB128.9 hillion to the healthcare sector.
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SRR LI E | AR, 767 5K,
Jiangtou Yiyang North Park Elderly Service
Center in Nanchang Economic Development

Zone, Jiangxi has 1,767 beds.
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Seeing culture and tourism as an economic driver, GDB financed conservation of historical and cultural cities, towns and villages, and
made plans for national cultural parks and cultural and sports infrastructure, to help improve people’s livelihood and build up China's
cultural sirength. CDB actively implemented the strategy of developing China into a leading country in education by focusing on priority
areas including educalional infrastructure and vocational education. The Bank provided lending in parallel with investment from the
Infrastructure Investment Fund to projects such as Qingdao Jimo Vocational Education Park (Phase Il) and Jingyang District Vocational
Education Training Base in Deyang to facilitate the high quality development of the education sector. At the end of 2023, CDB’s balance
of loans in the culture and tourism sector hit RMB131.9 billion, and that in the education sectar RMBT75 billion.

CDB further expanded the coverage of the student loan policies lo meel the borrowing needs of students with financial difficulties. It
losl no time to implement the policy of increasing cradit lines and reducing interest rate on student loans, waived interest, and deferred
principal repayment. It also supported CDB Suzhou Branch in issuing the first student loan in digital RMB. In 2023, CDB issued RMB59.9
billion student loans, supporting 5.63 million students with economic challenges.

CDB improved the coverage, accessibility and satisfaction of financing services for small and micro businesses through on-lending loans.
Issuing RMB377.9 billion on-lending loans throughout the year, it improved the quality and efficiency of on-lending loan policies and kept
reducing funding costs for the real ecanomy.
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Hong'an County Center Tor Student
Assislance Administralion in Hubei, whera

applications for homelown-based student
loans are being accepled.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT
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In 2023, CDB thoroughly implemented the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council on ecological
conservation. It look comprehensive measures lo improve the governance system for green finance, and integrated the environmental,
soclal and governance (ESG) concept into the policy framework and management process. It promoted national EOD projects and
supported priority areas such as regional pollution control and ecological protection and rehabilitation to boost the building of a Beautiful
China. It made great efforts to carry out the green low-carbon finance strategy, and continued to increase support for key areas of green,
low-carbon and circular development. CDB supported key ecological projects such as national forest reserves, comprehensive prevention
and control of desertification, and the Three-North Shelter Forestation Project, promoted the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”
strategy, and constantly practiced the Two Mountains Theory through development finance. At the end of 2023, CDB's balance of green
loans reached RMB2.5 trillion.

Making full use of the Carbon Emission Reduction Facility of the People's Bank of China, CDB continued to support carbon emission
reduction in priority areas and the green and low-carbon social and economic transformation. CDB issued RMB55.7 billion of loans for
carbon emission reduction in the year, achieving carbon emission reduction of approximately 15.38 million tons. It increased suppart for
pilot projects for climate investment and financing. As a bond bank, CDB issued the first green bonds in climate investment and financing
worth RMBS billion to explore a new model to support climate investment and financing, and pool funds for climate change response.
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CDB actively played its guiding role as'a DFl to promata high-standard, ststainable
and people-centered. development, Through financial eonngctivity, COB promoted

the physical connactivity of infrastrueiure, (he Institutional cannestivity of rules. and

indards, and jointly bulll” the *pacple-to-peopls. connectivity with the partnsr
couniries, Il has beecome an important financlal force that firmly supports the steady
and sustainable development of Bell and Road cooperation,
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Over the past decade since the proposal of the BRI, CDB has adhered to the principles of extensive consultation, joint contribution
and shared benefits, focused on financial cooperation and diversified collaboration, promoted the establishment of multilateral financial
cooperation mechanisms, and deepened multilateral and bilateral cooperation with both financial institutions from partner countries
and international financial institutions. It participated in international financial governance, and pooled financial services to form the
BRI synergy. By the end of 2023, CDB has Initiated multiple regional financial cooperation mechanisms such as China-CEEC Interbank
Association, China-Arab Countries Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association, ASEAN-plus-Three Interbank Cooperation
Mechanism, China-Africa Interbank Association, and China-Latin America Development Financial Institutions Association. It initiated or
participated in initiating 18 multilateral or bilateral cooperation funds, building sound platforms for financial exchanges among different
countries, injecting lasting momentum to improving the quality and efficiency of the BRI financial connectivity, and translating our shared
visions into results of practical cooperation.

CDB introduced RMB350 billion financing window and USD5 billion special facility for Global Development Initiative (GDI). It continued
to bring inta play the role of special loans for Belt and Road cooperation, witnessing important progress in a number of projects in the
seclors such as infrastructure, production capacity cooperation, financial cooperation, and people's livelihood, including Jakarta-Bandung
High-speed Railway in Indonesia, Lekki Desp Sea Port in Nigeria, Shymkent Oil Refinery Modernization in Kazakhstan, and credit line to
the National Bank of Egypt, which effectively promoted local economic and social development and achieved win-win results and joint
development for both China and partner countries. The Bank had provided quality financial services for over 1,300 BRI projects as of
the end of 2023, covering 118 Bell and Road parlner countries, which effeclively brought in to play the role of development finance in
leading and pooling domestic and overseas capital of all kinds to the BRI cooperation. CDB fully implemented the Common Frinciples
for Responsible Financing and the Green Investment Principles for the Belt and Aoad, incorporating green standards and environment
and climate risks Into overseas investment and financing evaluation, strengthening project cash flow and risk management, and providing
better financial services for Belt and Road cooperation.

CDB actively leveraged its advantages in “intellectual support” and “financing”. While engaging in investment and financing cooperation,
CDB took the initiative to build communication platiorms with governments, enterprises and people of partner countries to promote
policy and people-to-people connectivity. Over the past decade, CDB has held a total of 174 exchange activities for BRI-related
countries, covering 5,594 participants from 136 countries. Besides, CDB established the CDB BRI Scholarship, through which RMBG1
million has been spent to support 590 overseas studenls.
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In 2023, the Bank carried out annual monitoring and medium-term evaluation of the CDE Business Development Flan for the 14th
Five-Year Period, to promote the effective implementation of the Plan. It provided intellectual and Institutional support for priority areas
such as infrastructure, transformation and upgrading of manufacturing, green and low-carbon development, and balanced regional
development. |t strengthened coordination and cooperation with government ministries and commissions, local governments, and
corporate clients, achieving a number of results in planning and research, CDB established a working mechanism of leading groups of
sector-based research and advanced the development ot high-end national think-tanks. It joined hands with government departments
and international organizations to hold a training program themed “Graen and Low-carbon Devalopment and Sustainable Finance—China
and BRI Promoting the Implementation of the UN 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and the Paris Agreement" to share global
practices of green and low-carbon development and sustainable finance.
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In 2023, CDB adhered to long-term, stable, sustainable, and cost-controllable fund-raising strategies and provided strong financial
support for business development of the Bank, Over the year, CDB issued RMB2.25 trillion financial bonds, with a balance of over
RMB12 trillion bonds. International ratings agencies like Standard & Poor's and Moody's consistently rated CDB at the same level as
China's sovereign rating. It provided diverse investment products for the market. Il issued RMB8O billion floating-rate bonds on a regular
basis and successfully olfered RMB50 billion secondary capilal bonds and RMB21 billion themed green bonds for Climate Investment
and Financing and Environmental Conservation and Grean Development of the Yangtze River. It strengthened the interaction between
CDB bonds al the primary and the secondary markels, continued to carry out market-making support operations, and improved the
market-making evaluation system of CDB bonds, maintaining the leading advantage of CDB bonds in liquidity.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
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The purpose of CDB's capital managemenl is lo promole national development strategies, comply with capital management regulations,
and preserve and increase the value of state assets. CDB manages its capital in a way that supports, directs and guarantees the growth
of its business. In 2023, in line with the principle of preserving asset value and seelking modest returns, CDB strengthened ils capacity to
independently generate capital, and successfully ssued secondary capital bonds of RMB50 billion through market-based channels. With
its capital structure remaining stable, the Bank saw an increase in its total capital stock. Following Its capital management philosophy, the
Bank enhanced its capital restraint mechanism centered on capital adequacy ratio, and strengthened the role of capital restraint to guide
business development as mandated by the Bank’s mission. CDB carried out internal capital adequacy assessment process, developed a
group-wide management plan for capital adequacy ratio, and established a capital budgetary system. Capital management continued to
perform beller, providing capital support for fulfilling the development tasks while meeting the regulatery requirements.

As calculated in accordance with the Administrative Measures for the Capital of Commercial Banks (for Trial mplementation) and other
relevant regulations, as of the end of 2023, the Bank, on a consolidated basis, had a total capital of RMB1,912.305 billion, total Tier 1
capital RMB1,569.809 hillion, total Common Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,568.398 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.65%, Tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio 9.54%, and Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.54%. As for the parent company, the total capital was
RMB1,879.604 billion, both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,542.911 billion, capital adequacy ratio
11.52%, and both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.41%.
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CREDIT MANAGEMENT
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In 2023, CDB maintained a good balance between business expansion and risk management, and carried out credit exlension and
review efficiently. The total line of medium- and long-term credit in RMB remained at a high level, providing strong support for loan
issuance. With a fully improved credit structure, it focused on infrastructure and development business in priority areas, and promoted
credit extension for a group of key projects in the 14th Five-Year Plan and projects supported by CDB Infrastructure Investment Fund.
CDB deepened reform, formulated a scheme to improve its credit system and mechanism in compliance with the reform requirements
for strengthening its mandate as a bank for infrastructure, coordinated and streamlined the entire process of credit business, and
kept improving the well-informed credit management, to ensure that all business lines are closely connected, effectively balanced and
efficiently running. CDB followed fundamental principles and broke new ground, and took the initiative to explore new areas and business
models that are in line with its mandate as a bank for infrastructure. It effectively stimulated business development vitality, Focusing on
national strategies, CDB adopied a package of credit polices lo serve national strategic priorities, including differentiated authorizations
for subsidized housing, renovation of urban village and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs, the
broader infrastructure sector, and “one branch, one policy and one client, one policy” for a total of 25 branches in three batches. It
summarized and carried forward the credit cullure of “promoting national development and people’s livelihood, keeping exploring to
break new grounds while following fundamental principles, being honest, trustworthy, professional and progressive, and making prudent
decisions and taking dacisive actions". CDB built a team of high-caliber professionals, leveraged its advantages as an "expert bank”, and
prioritized improving the integrity, professionalism and capability of its credit review staff,
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INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS
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In 2023, CDB served as an underwriter for 103 clients, completing the issuance of 178 debenture honds for a total of AMB251.6 billion.
CDB mobllized financial resources on Ihe markels to help businesses access direct financing, support key national strategies, and
reduce financing costs for the real economy. CDB's intermediary services such as bill acceptance, discounting, re-discounting, domestic
factoring, and entrusted loans developed steadily, effectively meeting diverse financial service needs of market players. CDB generated
an annual business volume of RMBS50.4 billion, supporting key industries such as green development, transporlation, advanced
manufacturing, municipal facilities management and energy supply, and supporting key clients such as CHN Energy Investment Group
and ZTE as well as key projects like the urban renewal project in east Xingiao of Bao'an District in Shenzhen. It continued to implement
the national policy of reducing fees and cutting costs, and control the prices of financial services.
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In 2023, CDB strengthened the payment and settlement capacily on all fronts, and continued to improve the quality and efficiency of
operalion services lo salisfy the needs of customers. It handled settlement of RMB16 trillion in local and foreign currencies, clearance
of RMB218 trillion in local and foreign currencies, and settlement of fund transactions and bonds of RMB188 trillion throughout the
year. The Bank provided services for the construction and operation of major projects covering subsidized housing, renovation of urban
villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs, and took concrete measures to ensure smooth
operation, It fully strengthened operational risk control and compliance management, and strictly guarded the bottom lines of safe
operations and business compliance.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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In 2023, CDB kept deepening ils cooperalion with other financial institutions, took the initiative fo support national strategies, and jointly
boosted the development of the real economy. It ensured good performance in loan syndication, with more than RMB1.6 trillion of new
syndicated loan agreements signed, remaining China's top provider of syndicaled loans. CDB supported the development of priority areas
such as infrastructure, sci-tech innovation, advanced manufacturing, strategic emerging industries, and major regional strategies, rural
revitalization, and high quality Belt and Road cooperation. It kept enhancing on-lending cooperation, expanding the scope of institutions

for on-lending cooperation, and strengthening interaction with on-lending banks for greater a synergy. It made financial resources
accessible to the real economy and provided better and more efficient development finance services far small and micro businesses.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2023, following the CPC's guidelines on organization, CDB conlinued to improve the professionalism of its staff members. Answering
the call of the government lo stabilize employment, CDB recruited staff members from various channels and offered better career
development prospects to motivate staff members. Based on lis mandate as a bank for infrastructure, CDB further improved the
organizational structure of its Head Office, streamlined some departments, and established the Asset Preservation Department. It also
improved the staffing management mechanism for branches, streamlined the internal organs, and strengthened the allocation of staffing

resources. At the end of 2023, the CDB network included 37 primary branches and four secondary branches on the Chinese mainland,
one branch in Hong Kang, 11 representative offices in other countries, and six majarity-owned subsidiaries.
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STAFF TRAINING
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In 2023, CDB adhered lo the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characleristics for a New Era, thoroughly
implemented the general requirements for Party bullding and the Party's guidelines on organization for the new era. Based on educational
activities centering on learning and implementing the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress, the Bank focused on
improving political integrity and empowering and supporiing businesses with pragmatic and effective measures for joint contribution and
shared benefils. It promoted education and training for staff at all levels and of all types in a holistic way, striving to enhance the relevance
and effectiveness of such education and training and supparting the high quality development of development finance. The Bank held over
20 training sessions an theoretical studies and over 150 sessions on professional knowledge and skills throughout the year.
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In 2023, CDB delivered the strategy of Digital CDB and accelerated the promotion of key tasks for digital transformation. It supported
business and product innovation in priarity areas, completed the configuration of product and accounting parameters for systems in
relation to subsidized housing, renovation of urban villages, and dual-use public infrastructure thal can accommodate emargency needs.
It promoted reforms such as Ihe reform of category-based management for specific accounts and the reform of the credit system and
mechanism. Il successfully launched the new financial sharing system and the new core second-stage syslem cluster of CDB Hong
Kong Branch, and advanced key tasks such as "smart credit” and the new risk system cluster, It sped up the integration of business
and technology, improved the IT governance system, and continued to enhance its cybersecurity capabilities, constantly improving
its capabilities for independent and controllable IT operations. Efforts were made to improve infrastructure In the three centers in two
localities and ensure safe operations at important times, so as to provide strong IT support for business activities.
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SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd., with a registered capital of RMBB7.687 billion, was founded in August 2008. In 2023, focusing on its mandate and
the role of guiding investment in various specialized platforms, it supported strategic emerging industries and key areas of technological
innovation with national strategic funds. The company also provided more resources to support the development of key national strategic
regions such as Belfing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze Economic Belt, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and Bell and
Road cooperation. It continued to follow the guiding role of Party building and resolutely carried out rectification requirements identified
in inspections and audits, thus promoting its high quality development. It has made significant advances in preventing and resolving risks
in a continuous and effective manner, improving its operation and management performance, and pramoting business development. In

the year, its annual new investment exceaded RMB21,8 billion, and its net profit was RMB5.418 billion. At the end of 2023, its total asset
was AMB174.3 billion and the asset under its management was over RMB2686.5 billion,
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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CDB Securities Co,, Lid, was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company in August 2017, with
a registered capital of RMB 9.5 billion. In 2023, it made greal efforts to build itself into a distinctive professional investment bank. It
wor the Junding Award for Supporting Projects of SOEs in the Chinese Securities Industry by Securities Times, and the Best Securities
Company Supporting National Strategies by Financial News. Other honors won the by company include Outstanding Underwriter
Supporting National Strategies and one of the Top Ten Cases of the bond market supporting real economy by Shanghai Stock Exchange
(SSE) and Outstanding Bond Underwriting Institution by ChinaBond. In 2023, the company underwrote RMB361.9 bilion bonds, an
increase of 62% year-on-year, It was rated A in terms of the guality of bond business practices. At the end of 2023, its total asset was
RMB46.3 billion.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion, was listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in July 2016. In 2023, it has thoroughly implemented the new development philosophy and further grasped the political
significance of financial work and made financial services more people-centered, and provided high quality financial leasing services for
economic and social development. Through combining “financing” and “assets financing”, it continued to improve its capability to support
real economy and invested more resources in key industries and underdeveloped sectors such as technelogical innovation, advanced
manufacturing, green development, and medium, small and micro businesses, lo better support major strategies Including innovation-
driven development and coordinated regional development. By increasing efforts to the transformation and innovation of traditional
businesses, it optimized its structure of assets and liabilities and improved its capital strength. Its leading position in the industry was
continuously consolidated, which further improved the effectiveness of its support for the group's strategies. At the end of 2023, its total
assets were RMB409.695 billion.
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China-Africa Development Fund
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China-Africa Development Fund was established in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specializing in Africa
investments, with a total fund scale of USD10 billien. In 2023, CADFund, committed to Its mandate, advanced high quality development
of its investment business in priority areas such as the Nine Programs of the Eighth Ministerial Conference of the Forum on China-
Africa Cooperation (FOCAC). It committed USDBBO0 million for investment in Africa throughout the year, During the Third Belt and Road
Forum for International Cooperation, CADFund was selected into the Achlevements and Prospects of Belt and Road Integrity Building
as a typical case of clean investment. The cooperation achievements of CADFund were included in the List of Deliverables of the Belt
and Road Forum for International Cooperation, including the Green Development Investment and Finance Partnership participated by
CADFund as an initiator, and its subscription to Egypt's Sustainability Sovereign Panda Bond. At the end of 2023, its total investment
commitmenits in 39 African countries reached USD7.3 billion, which could mobilize USD31.6 billion of investments from China to Africa.
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CDB balances development and security, continuously improves the risk management system and mechanism, and optimizes the
methods and tools of risk management to improve its performance in risk management. It has strengthened risk contrel in priority areas

and taken concrete measures to relieve risk and recover losses. It continues to intensify efforts to prevent and resolve financial risks, and
firmly holds the bottom line of risk prevention.
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COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
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CDB practices comprehensive risk management following the basic principles of symmetry, full coverage, independence, and
effectiveness, establishing a robust risk governance structura, which waorks efficiently to keep risks under control at various levels. In
2023, CDB maintained its prudent risk appetite in response to the complexities, risks and challenges at home and abroad. It made
a special effort to strengthen its risk management system to create a clear governance structure and fully-developed procedures,
modernize the toolkit and carry oul effective monitoring. It refined its risk management system, processes and tools, and effectively
handled various sources of risks. A group-wide exercise was carried oul to identify, evaluate, and categorize risks, screen out hidden
risks, and determine responses, A CDB group risk appelite stalement was prepared and multi-layered risk appetite management
framework established for intensified risk appetite implementation. CDB continued te optimize the group's client management
mechanism, consolidated the whole-process business management, improved the tiered management mechanism, and diversified
risk management tools, to better support the development of the group's clients with risks effectively prevented and controlled., It kept
promoting the risk penetration management in subsidiaries and conducted evaluations on their capabilities of consolidated statement
management to execute strong guidance and supervision on the risk compliance line of subsidiaries. Risk awareness of the entire staff
was strengthened to enhance CDB's risk management capacity and promote a risk culture,
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CGREDIT RISK
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In 2023, CDB strengthened ils credit rating management, developed an ESG rating model, and applied the results in credit rating for
clients, It revised the operational procedures for handling major risk incidents in client credit rating, fully implemented the Measuwres
for the Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial Banks, and reconstructed its risk classification system. Annual credit
policy guidelines were circulated to guide the credit business in key sectors across the Bank, and clarify differentiated policies and risk
prevention and control requirements. CDB refined the early warning and management mechanism for credit risk and intensified the
application of big data and information-based measures in risk monitoring, constantly improving the timeliness and accuracy of risk early
warning. CDB intensified risk management in key areas, carried out quarterly reviews in branches, and monitored clients in high-risk
areas on a monthly basis, making its risk management more forward-looking and targeted. It implemented the work requirements of early
identification, early warning, early exposure and early disposal of risks, and strictly classified risks in accordance with the new regulations
on risk classification of financial assets. Key risky clients were put on a special list and plans were tailor-made to enable proactive
measures, CDB established and refined the mechanisms and system for defusing debt risks and took proactive measures to support
resolving local debt risks. It continued to improve the performance of risk mitigation and loss recovery and optimized the accountability
mechanism for projects involving majar risks. The Bank adopted classified measures for NPLs, both large and small, by customizing
resolutions one by one and assigning responsibilities to each person. It intensified dynamic adjustments with a focus on major NPLs and
adopted multiple measures for recovering after write-offs. It adhered to making selection after full comparison and disposal at proper
times to seize the opportunities to recover debt-expiated assets.
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MARKET RISK
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In 2023, COB kept a sharp eye on the developments in international and domestic financial markets, continued to observe and analyze
the macroeconomic landscape, established and improved the prevention and control mechanism combining regular management and
emergency response, with a prudent market risk appetite. It focused on the risk conditions in the monetary market, bond market and
other business areas, promoled the development of systems related to market risk closely following business needs, and coordinated
the integrated markel risk management across the group. The Bank dynamically tracked and analyzed the trends of exchange rate
and interest rale and intensified risk appelite implementation across the group. It formulated risk management and control strategies

consistent with its risk appetite, and actively took measures to mitigate and control exchange rate risk and interest rate risk, to ensure
that risk levels were controlled within target limits,
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In 2023, CDE consistently followed a prudent approach to liquidity risk management, and continuously improved its liquidily risk
management mechanisms, taking into account the sources of funding and purposes of financial services of a DFI. It constantly updated
stralegies in light of business growth and market changes and achieved a good matching and structural balance between the total
amount, maturity and schedule of assets and liabilities. The management framework covered the whole spectrum of CDB's services,
including the upper, middle, and lower streams, and provided multiple tools to monitor risks to ensure reasonable liquidity reserves. It
paid great attention to preventing varicus risks from tuming into liquidity risks and kept enhancing its emergency response capacity 1o
liquidity risks to ensure the bank-wide liquidity safety.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2023, CDB continued to improve its operational risk management mechanism and optimize its operational risk management tools. It
refined the basis and dimensions for measurement of aperational risk losses and specified the standards and contents of the operational
risk evaluation on new products. It carried oul a re-inspection on key indicators of bank-wide operational risks, revised the self-
inspection index system of operational risk and control for the entire bank and branches, and intensified the requirements for operational
risk incident reporting and management. In accordance with regulatory requirements, CDB launched the implementation plan for the
measurement of capital involving operational risks under the new standardized approach. It promoted refined management of outsourcing
risks, streamlined the procedures and management requirements for outsourcing activities, specified the standards for outsourcing risk
evaluation, and organized outsourcing risk evaluations,

BHR

COMPLIANCE RISK
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In 2023, CDB constantly improved the top-level design of its compliance risk management framework. The Board of Directors exercised
strategic decision-making and supervisory powers over the bank-wide compliance management; the senior management assumed
leadership responsiblliies in managing the critical tasks of bank-wide compliance management. The governance system of compliance
management was further improved to strengthen whole-of-procedure management. Greater efforts were made for compliance coordination
and pre-examination, in-process menitoring and reporting, and post-examination and correction to fully utilize the “three lines of defense”.

Corrections were made upon investigation across the group under centralized management to implement regulatory advice efficiently and
consolidate gains. A compliance culture was fostered thal encouraged all lo take responsibility and increase awareness.
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REPUTATIONAL RISK
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In 2023, COB improved the operation mechanism for the whole process of public opinion monitoring and analysis, response and
disposal, and feedback and evaluation to enhance its front-end research, judgment and investigation. It made great efforts to carry out
daily management of reputational risks and improved the efficiency of response to public opinions. By formulating response standards
and responding to appeals in & timely manner, the Bank praperly handled various public opinions and established a more posilive image.
Besides, it carried out compliance inspections, strengthened publicity and confidentiality management, and fulfilled the responsibilities for
reputational risk management.
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COUNTRY RISK
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In 2023, CDB kept improving the system for managing country risk and risks in international business; closely monitored and took
effective measures to respond to changes in the international political and economic landscapes; timely monitored and analyzed
incidents with country risk and risks in international business for early warning and reporting, improved the methods for setting country
risk limits, and strengthened country risk limits management, and classified risk control; fully executed strategies for country risk appelite

and managament; and systematically conducted speclal studies and quarterly reviews on major risks. Strong country risk management
provided support, incentive, and guarantee for the growth of CDB's international business.
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STRATEGIC RISK
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In 2023, CDB thoroughly implemented the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council. Making
high quality development a top priority, CDB stayed firm in returning to its role as a bank for infrastructure, focused on its mandate, and
prioritized the support for the development of infrastructure-related sectors. Il made great efiorts to accelerate the construction of major
projects including subsidized housing, renovation of urban villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency
needs. It translated the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Councll into its key tasks and reform

measures. Thanks to its continuous monitoring on the driving factors of strategic risks, no major strategic risk incidents cccurred during
the year.
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In 2023, CDB continued to strengthen its IT risk management system and improve the defense structure and management procedures.

It carried out IT risk evaluation, monitoring, control and reporting, and went all out to promote the development of business continuity
management system across the Bank, making great efforts to improve its IT risk management.
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In 2023, based on its role as a bank for infrastructure, as mandated by its mission to support national development and deliver a
better life for the people, CDB thoroughly implemented the guiding principles of the Central Financial Work Conference and the Central
Economic Work Conference, and fully play its role as a DFI to actively promote major national strategies, key industries and under-
developed sectors. It further grasped the political significance of financial work, made financial services more people-centered and
created economic, social and environmental benefits, It also made great efforts to develop technology finance, green finance, inclusive
finance, elderly care finance and digital finance, to provide high quality services for social and economic development and strong support
for advancing the Global Development Initiative (GDI) and implementing the UN 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

The CDB Sustainable Development Report 2023 shall be released to communicate the Bank’s approaches and practices In performing
corporate social responsibility and boasting sustainable development.
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Role Model for Central Financlal Enterprises (Financial)

China Banking Association
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2023 Bes! News on Innovative Development in the Banking Industry
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Bank of the Year for Infrastructure Development 2023

CRENE S ZRIR) China Urban-Aural Financial News

“EMIRE Z RN SRR 2 Case of Excellen| Practice of Financial Services lar Rural Revitalization
(EREFE)E Financial Computerizing

SRS N R A3 Fintech Application Innovation Award
hEEZMZSERMETIERS Fintech Committee, China Socisty for Finance and Banking
MEZENEREARE Achievement Award for Projects of Best Practice Value

I ESMCEE S Pl China Foreign Exchange Trade System
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2022 Best Post-trade Service Institution in the Interbank Foraign Exchange Marlat

Associalion of Development Financing Institutions in Asia and the Pacilic (ADFIAP)
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ADFIAP Outstanding Development Projects Awards 2023
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&it 2,893 (8.025)

2022#12A31H

CEFETAR
WA AR ( QEXARTHELR) 679,893 7,624 (15,349)
SMTE W FO ST HAAR 3,747 24 (4)
it 7.648 (15,353)
FESTETR
FRE 403,847 2,621 (2,986)
FHIAR “8,011 - -
it 2,621 (2,986)

&it 10,269 (18,339)
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(2) EWLH

(i) szl

FEAFAAEEREENAREHSHUNLANBERDFTEHRE. BEVHRE AXEFALFOATTRILEBES, 55
Fo A nfER " RIFER . F20235 12831 BB XAEH AR T75.42127T (202246 12F31H . ARMB2.62Z3T).

ALHAEM T AN AN E BTN B B R AN PR TIL R MEEHRE P IIAGEN RS LIRS
BAER.

(i) iRz

FENHAHEERSEMAEEHSROHNEFRTHHTEMEM, HEWMT B AR EAFRBE LS S o HARTHRAR
fHk, A X ETHEERSEMNEMCEEHSHEMAEZREGHESEREE. ¥ENMAALGTEFASIEREM
HEEHERATETAOME. B, JIREHREN VS F023FE 128 EMHENARESHART55.00Z5 2022412318 .
ARM173.96/Z5%), AR BT R EEREI W E TF2023E 120N AR HRTH AR TI.40{Z5T (20224128318 - ).

F2023F 12310 220221 2A31H, A LACS T ARG ARAMNT SRR EMTIEAANMEES £ N RTREUEE
MAEFE A =AM R HINHFTEL,

5. TNEESRAS

Vg 477,507 404,935 477,284 404,707
sk 1,161 1,322 = -
it 478,668 406,257 477,284 404,707
@i 172 116 172 116

bt ] 478,840 406,373 477,456 404,823
A s

Hee. B—00ER . - - - -

g2 fam 14 E _ _ _

WERE (1,315) (1,550) - -

it (1,315) (1,650) - -

T = 477,525 404,823 477,456 404,823

AIRETF F NGB &35 P UE B RMEN E+—. SEBRYPIRE.

6. TR
(1) EBEEMERS RN

i A ed pramai s TR

Ik % R A it i i (a) 14,190,321 13,851,010 13,702,551 13,343,459
mmmﬁiinammi’mgmamm 54,422 48,097 54,422 48,097
&it 14,244,743 13,899,107 13,756,973 13,391,556
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(a) BUME S AL AR U 00 0 S B SR e BTN T -

FHE T
EPTRILR 14,646,153 14,222,605 14,327,107 13,897,307
AU E A E SRR H 203,494 204,533 = -
it 14,849 647 14,427,138 14,327,107 13,897,307
FAHF& 36,919 43,075 34,983 41,381
B 14,886,566 14,470,213 14,362,090 13,938,688
He B—MBR 13,372,962 12,892,388 12,949,557 12,402,611
E|_MER 1,325,842 1,344,107 1,226,631 1,304,921
B 187,762 233,718 185,902 231,156
WA
Hep B (238,554) (200,408) (230,177) (199,604)
MR (329,057) (254,675) (302,302)  (242,949)
B=ME (128,634) (155,120) (127,060) (152,676)
it (696,245) (619,203) (659,539) (595,229)
B 14,190,321 13,851,010 13,702,551 13,343,459

(b) BA4 st it i 2 R SR ThA S 830 0 RIS 2 B AR T

£ PRI AS _ = 54855 47,786 54855 47,786

AAMEER (433) 311 (433) 3N
it 54,422 48,097 54,422 48,097

R ILE R R R B TR R URTE I+ — . SIERM PR,
(2) ERBERFLRREEE T

Z A

2023%FE1/18 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203
MBS,

HEZ—MER 46,845 (46,845) - -
HEFENR (14,613) 34,105 (19,492) =
HEB=HE - (5,727) 5727 =
] 43,974 5,167 17 49,158
ERiti(a) (26,283) 109,287 2937 85,941
A E (21,208) (22,930) (7,815) (51,862)
i - - (11,210) (11,210
el 2 TR - - 5,205 5,205
EAfeEwh 431 1.334 (1.855) (90)

2023128319 238,554 329,057 128,634 696,245
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20224:1A18 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898

e,

HEF—MER 8,489 (8,489) = -
HEZ MR (18,017) 28,073 (10,058) -
HEE=MER (8) (57,215) 57,223 -
i 44,932 19,506 4 64,442
T3t i(a) 3,076 48,743 40,845 92,664
sk E (22,645) (13,259) (16,918) (52,822)
B - (148) (9,612) {9,760)
B2 s s - - 6,255 6.255
Hit 3w 1,124 7,951 5,451 14,526
20224E12A 318 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203
{7

2023tE1A18 199,604 242,949 152,676 595,229

it B 4538 .

HER-HE 44,145 (44,145) = =
BEFTMHE (12,495) 30,878 (18,383) -
HEB=ME - (5,257) 5,257 =
fial] 42,476 4,872 = 47,348
Wiriti(a) (24,214) 92,428 2,821 71,035
MR % @ (19,744) (20,687) (7,459) (47,890)
i - - (11,112) (11,112)
B 2 #4418 - = 5,205 5,205
Hib¥xwH 405 1,264 (1.945) (276)
2023%12H318 230,177 302,302 127,060 650,539

202241 518 185,832 215,214 80,742 481,788

B R4S .

HEE-HB 6,593 (6,583) - -
HEHE_WE (17,704) 27,732 (10,028) -
HEF=MEK - (56,581) 56,581 -
i 41,313 18,509 - 50,822
T (a) 3,836 48,656 39,922 92,414
B E (21,336) (11.923) (16,839) (50,098)
HEEN - = (9.407) (9,407)
W EIE e - - 6,255 6,255
Hith3rah 1,070 7935 5,450 14,455

20224124318 199,604 242,949 152,676 595,229
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(a) BRIFHESBAE ML ( LLinidHRE. SAREROENR)  aFELRRNLROEAAREEET, MSHE LR
| MBAREF—ME. AR ESMEZELEES . NEEESEROE &N REMEI1 2B NEMFRGTAGERR
Sz ia k.

() 2023, MAMERAEHERBRAPMNEAERILRAEEHEEOHE.

SR B — R TR PR AN K o Bk A PR A A R 2 HI0990% , 35 S04 iy i 300 4% B2 ol 2 £ Y B — SR R AR 24 K 7 o
A TG L93% AL

VBN ER T R E AR G R R PR AN AR S MA9%., M R— AR BERBRCMNAE MR FEUAEN1%,

EHMBRE LB ERMTLHR S EERREAMLRETN 1%, ANBRTHFHRBENBR=MNEE SHRFVE 1%, 2023
ZERY B = RIS AR SR B S S S E R L12%, HEHEN S e B IR S B A R T 0N

(i) 20234 [, AMFARAGERSRMER (RSHERELHIN) TSHEXRRRLEFHNB=LBENRT, AmHMBR=
W R HANR MR A EITE,
(3) M FERIEIIIRINT

IR EERA S EF B . N3% SRS 2 R SR M R RO SRR A SRR, IR S A EGE N W%
AR R 2 R TR,

A it}

0212331 B

fEAb 1,141 49 20,487 11,470 33,147
{RIE B 615 6,786 2177 672 10,250
EEER SR N
— IEAE 22,034 1,562 11,399 11,276 48,271
— AR 12,934 3.776 2,593 4,767 24,070
&t 6,724 12,173 36,656 28.185 113,738
2022412318
RN 10,671 9,323 14,220 626 34,840
T 3,982 2,175 491 730 7378
BRI Sk o o
— PRI - 22,873 1,396 18721 16,049 50,039
— BARSER 26,825 2,194 5198 5021 39,238
&it B4.351 15,088 38,630 22,426 140,495

A

2023$ 2H318

ERRR 976 49 20,487 11,470 32,982
{RIETERR 615 6,718 2177 672 10,182
T B4R 4 TR
— AR BER 15,033 1,562 10,355 11,042 37,992
— RIS 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070
&it 29,558 12,105 35,612 27.951 105,228
20224128318
ERR% 10,671 9,323 14,062 626 34,682
TRL B 3,982 2,175 491 730 7,378
W B RA SRk ) ‘
— A BER 12,205 1,396 17,413 15,739 46,843
e 26,825 2,194 5,198 5,021 39,238

&it 53,773 15,088 37.164 22116 128,141
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7. EREREE - EHMEMBE~

Vet ~ ~
1 L4 B Bl 0

S 5| T

B 5 B B I R T~ B b A

HEZIMAS MRS SR~

B AR AN AR 2,122 4,241 2,122 4,228

SN HhiES 41,457 60,308 40,335 58,822

2T 10,299 17,024 9,555 15,788

FEldkfF4 117,890 68,507 117,890 68,507

wEERHY 321 368 = =

R R 13,294 16,568 = -

AT R TR = § 3,743 3,450 - -

WHITA 712,537 760,072 505,268 549,014
it 901,663 930,538 675,170 696,359
FEE M AR EH TR LR

SRS

Al 384 576 384 576

FEEETR 14 14 14 14
N 398 590 398 590
&it 902,061 931,128 675,568 696,949

AREEE A WA AHETHE B AT DA SR E SRV > T HREHA2010FER LAEARTEM > 2R FRAES, &
AT HFEWANTFRAS.

8. EMIRA — HIRR

St T — 592081 826,566 502,041 826,566

S 240 500 - 500
- AEMH 105,936 103,989 105,632 103,773
# = TAHES 20 - = =
BRI R 5,453 3,220 - -
it . 703,730 934,275 697,573 930,839
Re iR 8,888 13,097 8,858 13,065
=% 712,618 947,372 706,431 943,904
He M—WER 710,920 945,348 706,431 943,904
Z-mMER 28 - - -
H=ME 1,670 2,024 - -

W AEAER
He. F—HrE (10,129) (10,209) (10,075) (10,188)
HIMER (6) = = -
B=MER (1,498) (1,8086) = =
1yt (11,633) (12,015) (10.075) (10,188)

Bl 700.985 935,357 696,356 933.716
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(1) S SR A TR

#HHE 20234

202341 A1H 10,208 = 1,806 12,015
IR,

MEEMBREBEEMR - 13 (13) =
i) 45 = = 45
I it it (a) (247) 6 = (241)
I MEEE (51) (13) (295) (359)
ST EN 173 = - 173
2023% 12/ 310 10,129 6 1,498 11,633

202241818 5,214 - 1,790 7,004
frER¥EES

WA R(e) 4,451 = 25 4,476
) Mk 44 (52) = - (52)
4bh AR - - (1) (11)
I EM 596 - 2 598
2022412A318 10,209 - 1,806 12,015

&AT 20234

202351618 10,188 - - 10,188
Witk (a) (2486) = = (248)
H MR B (40) - - (40)
ShmITRE 173 - - 173
2023 12F 318 10,075 - - 10,075

202251/ 18 5191 - 231 l 5,422

W #fit it (a) 4,452 - - 4,452
B e (51) - - (51)
ShETE - - (231) (231)
ST I £ 596 - - 596
20226212/ 318 10,188 - - 10,188

(a) Wit EFEEHME, SHREFFSYNEN . BNBBITHYBROHERHRELES.



78  ERFEET CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

9. ERAER — EAbFHN#

A EShy

B REE AR 551,841 429,534 527,032 4a.s

SR AL 9,381 6,797 8,231 5,987
YNGR 222,894 162,708 215,801 151,622
AEFIHLS 166 285 - -
EdFR 373,033 414,787 370,639 411,071
it 1,157,315 1,014,111 1,121,703 981,359
REvHF @ 10,206 8,388 9,795 7.968
ait 1,167.521 1,022,499 1,131,498 089,327
He @—MER 1,167,504 1,022,466 1,131,498 989,327

BEME - - - -

BErE 17 a3 - -

F2023%F HR2022F F, AR AR ATHB BB RAEEMBRZERBNSTTEKX,
(1) R e m i iies T

e ) 20234

202341818 128 - 1,324 1,452
iy 84 - - 84
W3k (a) 59 - 10 69
2 H=dE (35) = (8) (43)
2023£12F 318 236 - 1.326 1,662

ZH#E 20224

2022E1H1H 117 - 1,034 1,151

[ R3ETS

MWE—MESBER=MNE (9) = 9 =
Eie] 56 - - 56
ETT ik (a) 9 - 281 290
FM A (48) = - (46)
ShT I E 1 - - 1
20224128318 128 - 1,324 1,452
4T 20234

202351 A 185 95 S = 95

B 79 = = 79
5tk (a) 59 - - 59
BN #E (12) = = 12

2023:FE12A319 221 - - 221
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20221818 76 - - 76

bt 56 - = 56
it (a) 8 - - 8
6 E (46) - - (46)
INTIHED 1 ~ - 1
20225128318 95 - - 95

(a) WRFHHEEZSFEBHME. BRORXZESHNTN . HNREBIHYBRNEAGEES.
10. &R 3 — HAbA e TRIE 3

il | #7

R ' ‘ 3460 354 . a2

4f L RAR 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
ait 5,460 5,354 2,000 2,042

RRAGERH MRS TRIGATF TR HIERD U2 AN B AR THITAR MG EUEH MR, ELBH  ZFNE
ITAFABHTAR LS SREH L AMERHF R ED HaRE,

AR RALE 3

36 &7

18

WFATIMIeH — - 552,003 549,583

HEEHSTE LR 522 458 A
|it 522 458 552,003 549 583
WA = - (18,953) (18,953)
s 522 458 533,060 530,630

F202312A31 B R20224 12031 B AMARBEENGE LU MRBLAM . AT T LS MRAAMEA SRR ERERD.
 AFGERFATEEER, WAMEL. AREANBKETRNSELYMHRRSHFTA,

12. @R H ™

##E AT

FRiii(a) 180,466 161,038 25,772 24,898

FitifIA(a) (41,578) (33,778) (11,876) (10,810)
Al () (6,268) (6,537) = =
BEEinE 633 702 633 @80

it 133,253 121,427 14,529 14,768
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(a) EEHFRE. Rt 8RR LT IRUT .

Es 3}

i

20224123318 22,898 3,588 34,895 99,657 161,038

2023%F 12315 23,558 5,382 39,922 111,604 180,466

RIHFIA

20224124318 (8,624) (2,797) (3.623) (18,732) (33,776)

2023 12H318 (9,499) (3,143) (5,192) (23,744) (41,578)

BiUEE

202245124316 (72) (17) (575) (5.873) (6,537)

2023128318 (73) (17) (845) (5,338) (6,268)

D4

20224 12H318 14,202 774 30.697 75,052 120,725

2023%12A318 13,986 2,222 33,885 82,527 132,620

*T

Rl

20226128318 21,687 3,106 105 24,898

2023#E1283180 22,472 3,198 102 25,772

RitirIE

202241283180 (8.220) (2.496) (94) (10,810)

2023#12R831H (9,092) (2,692) (92) (11,876)

0 1 411

20227128318 13,467 610 1 14,088

2023% 1283160 13.380 506 10 13.896
13. KR A

R FEEEERE, Bt RNT.

Z M

20224128 31H 1,289 2,269 3,558
2023125318 1,238 2,695 3,933
Rt

20224E12A3180 (390) (1,472) (1,862)
20235§12/318 (404) (1,642) (2,046)
it &

2022 12A31H0 899 797 1,696
2023%12/318 834 1,053 1.887

FIRBHER () 21-36 1-10
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R
20224128318 930 1,992 2,922
20234128318 930 2361 3,291
FitHsH
20224125318 (296) (1,258) (1,554)
20234125318 (319) (1,386) (1,705)
EEHE
20224£12F318 634 734 1,368
20234128318 611 975 1,586
FRMEER () 21-36 1-10

14. 7%

#H6E

; 20! 1 "_|.:
T A= 1 1,247 1,246

W A (534) {534)
WEHE 713 712

FEAVHE AT R E S, AT ERENFEN A ER AN OCRASRTAN., A RERANTRRETET
VR EMAHOBN, MRBOHFAEURMSARZ - AHROBERR,

F20234 128310 . ARFEMNHEFEAN . A ST HART5.34Z5T (20224128310 . ARF5.34Z5).
15REFSHES LRGSR

Gaaial _ FiT

R R 192,263 172,582 158,311

i EFTA B AR (6,589) (8,136) = -
] 185,674 166,230 172,582 158,311

(1) BERRENEDIRIITNOT.

2023F1H18 166,230 158,311

RN (HHEA. 45) 21,777 16,592
itAR &K (A, 30) (2,329) (2,321)
it {4) -
2023%12A31H 185,674 172,582
202251518 129,853 121,800
AR (JEA, 45) 36,783 36,812
AR S W (HEN. 30) 678 785
His (1.084) {1.086)

2022#12F318 166,230 156,311
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(2) EIRRIADIREFTGH U~ R AR EAEHSERIROT.
:um i 20234128318 2022412 831H

RIEFERE

RS 712,529 178,132 628,362 157,090
ERIRA A AIMEER 49,012 12,253 60,542 15,219
it f i 19,915 4,979 23,118 5,779
Hi 3,198 807 2,237 470
it 7 784,654 196,171 714,259 178,558
i EE P T

BRI A RNMER (37,302) (9,325) (42,934) (10,733)
Hitb (6.921) (1.172) (8,729) (1,595)
it (44,223) (10,497) (51,663) (12,328)
A 740,431 185,674 662,596 166,230

15

BT AR

b P AT 675,199 168,800 606,617 151,654

SEIEHELRNNERD 8,037 2,009 18,399 4,600

it fa ik 19,915 4,979 23,118 5,780

it 703,151 175,788 648,134 162,034

BIEFSBHRAMS

SRMGESAMEER (12,824) (3,206) (14,892) (3,723)
B 690,327 172,582 633,242 158,311

AN B ASTTF B 0 3R B A6 KA 1.
16. 5357

Zs FiT

- ™
i £ 44 R g 3T 13,815 11,889 300 307
BRI 2 7,933 7,824 7,859 7,786
EHREEL= 1,954 1,876 - -
fE AR B = 1,145 991 885 842
M A 1,080 859 251 266
EHZREHEHS 147 260 - -
Hith 13,228 13,050 3,344 4,771
it 39,302 36,749 12,639 13,972
AR
Hep plF e (107) (15) (82) =
Hiih (2,267) (1,975) (107) (21)
it (2,374) (1.990) (189) (21)
A 36,928 34,759 12,450 13,951
17. 5] lle e B Ath & RN 44 7 AR I

* 4T

wmHHBET 2,430,145 2,472,383 2,430,145 2,472,383

BAER TSN o 44,845 31,552 46,860 33,678
SN R AR T 20,876 20,854 28,876 29,854
S E SR T AL 687 103 B.522 7,701
it 2,504,553 2,533,802 2,514,403 2,543,616
mithle 1,797 2.182 1,983 2,230

At 2,606,350 2,536,074 2,516,386 2,545,846
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18. (G F AR A & RA P49 53K

b % Sz T

wmE MR TR RITE R ER 566,003 435.15 349,539 295.23

WS HARTRERTERUS MR 70,666 55,733 827 2,959
ShEEOAT R 29,443 28,941 29,443 28,941
it 666,112 569,828 379,809 327,135
g gk} 7,839 3,034 6,171 1,877
&it 673,951 572,862 385,980 329,012

FEE AT aEFOE MY ERZSNIRRTMENET—. SBRYPHE.

193FNEE
A FAT

AR BEERA ' 7 ' 19,609 14,161 4000 e
EHEAERTIRA 23,304 24,471 23,304 24,471
it 42,913 38,632 27,304 24,471
Rl 352 237 313 218
&it 43,265 38,869 27.817 24,689

20.Z 5 HEERA R

F20234E12A31 B E20224E 12531 B, AL % 5 a1 £ B A AWE B M R RN .
21.3E Y 3] M & fl A 3K

FHE T
AR RMFE.
fifi ¥ 17,038 14,937 1,125 -
[EREE - 430 - -
it 17,039 15,367 1,125 -
e 51 25 7 —
&it 17,090 15,392 1,132 =

A AT R AR5 IR RPN+ —. SERY P,
22 IR TFRR

£ UENFMR 647,531 949,186 758,433 1,052,467
oW EHAFR 104,916 110,442 147,664 128,911
A RIEEFH 1,938 1,428 1,938 1,426
KT EiLENFS 106,253 104,665 106,253 104,665
it 860,638 1,165,719 1,014,288 1,287,469
iR 2,616 2,005 3,124 2,175
it 863,254 1,167,724 1.017.412 1,289,644

- ARE AT BT B MR R ERET— . SIBRM PR,
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23. 57 (TER TR EMl

FME 20234

T#. 24 RESF3ME 1,515 5,960 (5,688) 1,787

IR TR # - 21 (211) =

Btk 1,005 (110) (58) 837

HERENRIFRE ] 1,393 (1,358) 41

EEARE 1 424 (424) 1
SERMRIHFLN 825 253 (117) 961

Hie - 36 (36) -

it 3,352 8,167 {7.892) 3,627

I#. %%, #lﬁiﬁil‘!ﬁ

1,282 5,793

(5,560)

el

BT iF - 241 (241) =
iR RIEF 1,044 5 (a4) 1,005
He R AR ERRE 242 1,245 (1,481) 6
EEpafs 1 393 (393) 1
ILERNMIHHLN 700 248 (123) 825
HAt 1 27 (28) -
it 3,270 7,952 (7.870) 3,352
1T 20233

TP, %4, TS 916 4,935 (4,735) 1116
B T4 o - 181 (181) =
g k] 987 (111) (42) B34
HeFEABNERE (12) 1,194 (1,165) 27
ERARE 1 a7z (372) 1
I&KUNPTHH SN 713 218 (99) Ba2
Heflh - 32 (32) -
&it 2,605 6.821 (6,616) 2,810

916

(4,638)
RTIEF % - 201 (201) -
BRI 1,042 (14) (41) 987
HERE MBI FRE 184 1,0M (1,267) (12)
ERARE 1 345 (345) 1
I8N ITHEHEN 606 211 (104) 713
Hith = 25 (25) -
&it ~'r 2,619 6,607 (6,621) 2,605
F2023F12A31 B R20224E 128318, £EE LB AR LHMEH S HEBFER L RN,
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24 3%
A
U FFigRE 43,434 38,913 (56,486) 25,861 |
R 11,050 34,742 (34,583) 11,209
fAnffEmn S 82 888 (891) 79
Hip 1,299 4,907 (4,964) 1,242
it 55,865 79,450 (96,924) 38,391

£ UFFEE 7 42,104 26,728 (44,144) 24,688

cliigs 10,683 32,810 (32,653) 10,840
e mRe 69 697 (701) 65
Hith 1,144 4,461 (4,413) 1,192
it 54,000 64,696 (81,911) 36,785
25. 701t A 5
THERIRIE() _ _ ‘ 19,909 23,090 19,909 23,091
T 8-484R(1) 250 27 [ 27
R B R AR IMESIRR 574 638 574 638
&t 20,733 23,998 20,489 23,756

(1) SERCRIER I S0 RN

F 355 20234

202318 1H 7,880 15,237 244 23,361
®i.

MNE—HMBEBEE-ME (956) 956 - -
MNEMBRBES—ME 2,763 (2,763) - K]
WFTiHR(a) (1,948) 4,003 - 2,147
i 2,841 - - 2,841
D (3.087) (5,197) - (8.284)
bR T ] 10 B4 L 94
2023%128318 7.505 12,410 244 20,159

FHEA 20224

2022¢E1R1H 4,019 12,930 244 17,193
i

MNE—BEBES MR (5,079) 5,079 - -
WEZMEHBES— MR 879 (879) - —
W8t E(a) 6910 4,175 - 11,085
Figtsl 3,008 - - 3,008
E L ] (1,888) (6,600) - (8,488)
Sh i FEZ 31 532 - 563

20224128318 7.880 15,237 244 23,361
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202351818

7.881

15,237 - 23,118
.
NE—MBEBER MR (956) 956 = =
NEZRERES IR 2,763 (2,763) - -
it il (a) (1,948) 4,093 - 2,147
i 2,841 -~ = 2,841
FAsk i mE (3,087) {5.197) = (8,284)
ST g9 84 - 23
20235128311 7,505 12,410 = 19,915

202261818

4176

20224

12,930 - 17,106
.
ME—TREBEE M (5,079) 5,079 - -
MEZMREBESE—ME 879 (879) - -
it fik(a) 6.754 4,175 - 10,929
i 3,008 - - 3,008
B el (1,888) (6,600) - (8,488)
IR AT EE 31 532 - 563
20224124318 7,881 15,237 - 23,118

(@) BEWESHARRERCMEORE. EORETHER, BT RRRERMSORE MRS SN M % 4 EHAE . T
SHERKEAMSEREL—NBR. EHMR. F=MRZARERE . NEAESRREEENITREREI24 A%

T IARY IR S IR 5 2 16 9 55 3R,

26. B RITIRFIEH

12,301,027

11,730,446

12,261,614

11,688,618

1318

R fif B
R R i 30,010 30,010 30,010 30,010
REff Z R AN 164,692 134,665 149,776 129,837
it 12,486,729 11,895,121 12,441,400 11,848,465
EitFla 238,568 230,835 238,104 230,487
&it 12,724,297 12,125,956 12,679,504 12,078,952
F20235 12031 H K2022412H31 8, AEARATEITHHES TS S EHRERAS. 7 QS BER T B LR,
(1) EZ{sfifiis:
EEFABFIT 2023412 F31H
HRETARM&mES 2002-2023 2024-2065 1.89-5.90 11,256,362
WA RTAR T EMBES 2015-2021 2024-2037 2.60-4.27 926,084
BT AR T &% 2012-2022 2024-2032 2.65-4.50 14,490
BRI &R 2016-2023 2024-2037 0.63-6.29 54,678
AATRLT &b tfi @ 12,261,614
FA TR TR TR 2014-2023 2024-2027 1,38-5.77 25,673
FASMARTHARTHS 2021-2023 2024-2027 2.65-3.60 14,983
TASHMNETHART IR 2022-2023 2024-2026 3.35-3.50 1,599
o WA AR AR B2 TR (2.842)
A 1 S R 12,301,027
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2022f£12H31H

i

BALTART2BNL 2002-2022

2023-2065 1.65-5.90 10,488,749

mEETARTEMMNSE 2015-2021 2023-2037 2.76-4.27 1,063,885
FEl RN SR % 2021-2022 2023 0.80-2.80 10,445
WHNETARMERMNSE 2012-2022 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 17,284
RTINS 2016-2022 2023-2037 0.00-5.47 108,255
HITEHERMAEFE 11,688,618
FA SN TR T AR 2014-2022 2023-2027 1.20-5.30 31,145
FaTBRETMARTESE 2018-2022 2023-2027 2.65-4.50 14,477
FATFWHETHARTEE 2022 2023-2024 3.05-3.40 899
. RE R YL 6 A T R (4,693)
A ME R R R B R 11,730,446
(2) RIfhARRfEss
FHMEARFT 2023%12F31H
FEFBETHAETARDRA S 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.06 30,010

2022412318

3

2011-2012

' HIME R AT &ﬁiﬂ{ﬁﬁ 20122 ' 5.8.0 - 30,010
AFRTHRAESHMEAGFGRIBOORER. CAERE B RS R TRITERBNN . #3502 mf B EHRE,

(3) HiF=—RmAAH

FMEAR KT 2023¢E12H31H

ETEARTARTRAERM 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 149,776
FAMIMEFTETR = RARM 2020 2030 2.88 4,918
RUARTRARMNST 154,692

20224F12831H

EmFE%
2.85-4.45

P
HATHE

FTRARETARTE - RAKH 2018-2022

A
120,837

2028-2037

TR EITERT BRI RN 2020 2030 2.88 4,828
FEAET - HFERMEIT 134,665

AR5 HITF2020%. 20226 F2023F KT T ZRAAGIS, A EEF RS, 192 ESCERRE EE A RIGER R R
XERARMNEBREAENA T, FEAFIGER T AR MHFRBRMEENATREESHRE—B ZEE ARSI LEH
RELF %, MARATTEREIR, FEHEETFLE,

L SFRE AT ANMEHE. SRERTPHEMEEMET RN REDHIGRE HSNASETEIRAIEL,
EFG RN RREATATFETEEXM.

27 Hfth i

b il AT

R BN F R e 19,676

Eib gl 10,367
bl &3] 9,277
FHFRIESE 6,906
Fi g 2,689
AT HN 1,439 bal - =
Ha e EFEEMSTERT 7,505 9,328 - -
Hita 8,504 9,104 6,557 6,966
&it 66,353 68,427 31,331 36,090
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28.5 M WAk
20234 F 2022412 531 H
T TR 153,908 36.54
C&48 146,092 3468
HIRHR A TS HMIEELT 114,637 27.19
LEHSANESAES 6,711 1.59
Eit 421,248 100.00
2023 H20224 [, KT REEHBREME SR LT,
290.{ A NH
EH 20234 R 20224
BEAHE Y 182,650 - = 182,650
4T 20234E 520224
A i 182,195 = - 182,195
30. HA & s
(1) FligRpEA S S W ARE S 5.
EiT

T4 S A S S A

A

R % 2 2 v ) 0 e i e s 118 22 118 22
HitWB T RERD AN EET) (88) (119) 4 489
o FFEREm (12) 3 (12) 3
Vit 18 (94) 110 514
M4y S5k 4 25 HAb &R & W2
HE AR S A A I E TR 9,160 (3,620) 8,803 (3,252)
M WO AR AL ER A2 S IR AR 276 n 218 30
HALMHR L FHE B R & 110 300 126 18
IR RITIEW 1,416 4,509 147 237
Hil (285) 1,544 (1) 14
W EREN (2,317) 675 (2.309) 782
it 8,360 3,401 7,074 (2,171)
&it 8,378 3,307 7.184 (1,657)

(2) #a7= At a AR U2 .

FiH

20251818 7 (20518) 8,267

704 (3.076) (288) (14,988)
ARFRFEER 22 (618) (2,623) 164 4,204 741 1,890
20224128318 (55) (21,136) 5,644 868 1,128 453 (13,098)
R ERD 118 (57) 7.048 85 1,359 (185) 8,358
20234128310 63 (21.193) 12,692 953 2,487 258 (4,740)

() EERFENSHBIEMHHGBED.
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2022€1/18 (77 (36) 3.538 76 (26) 2) 3473

ARER A 22 (10) (2,417) (5) 237 14 (2.159)
20224128318 (55) (46) 1,121 7 211 12 1,314
FERRED 118 35 6,833 95 147 (1) 7,227
20234128 31H 63 (11) 7,954 166 358 1 B8.541

N.AFAR

REER A E R, ATRERE Y ESIEN TS FRERI0%EDEERF AN, SRTERRERRARRITIART
LR A EO0%E , T T FHER. Sl ot ATIRMMNEERRART AT IR RSN SRAFHPRTRIE, 8
KHE AR, FBFOERERFARNABL FHRTRWARN25%. B, AFLERSMEREERRLR,

32.— g M pe A&

H5F(1) 272,496 265,123 272 496 255,123

FHEF(2) 5,882 5,302 = =
ait 278,378 260,425 272,496 255,123

(1) AT MBS ¢ S Wk SHEETRNE) (M4(2012)209) 6930 5E, FEIR VA PR EDE R B3R b 8 — ARk
A SRAME T 4 R IR B 5 R B =4 56 G M TE R R AR 2 . SR | — AR RIS e 4 B AR T LB 8 7= S SR R W09 1.5%.

(2) HEXKEAE, AFFLAIERSRFAPRR—ESHEI—MARES,
33k EFIE

b= | AT

| AT Sa f : - 20225 235 . 20228
FNRE 513,776 : 407,898 369,850

0. 3BT R4 S) TR ST 85,283 2 73,807 72,718
e ERERREARA) (7,381) (7.272) (7.381) (7.272)
RPERRRLTQ@N) (7.271) (6,419) (7.271) (6,419)
B — RS A (2) (i) (17,953) (1,914) (17,373) (1,741)
B 43 B2 (2) (i) (20,683) (19,740) (20,683) (19,740)
| OHfb (43) 510 (43) 502
FERFH 545,728 513,776 428,954 407,898

(1) 2023 EERIiE SR
AATRA2023 6 A FE A HH, RIGEERARARARM7IBVZITHITA2023E K, 2023F Hth FiE S AR BBt

(2) 20224 EEFliEsE
¥ £ T2023F 12 A26 BHIDE A TR022F BRI AR A EMT

() REEFERAZARARTB7271Z5T.
(i) ER—EMAEEEARMI173.73(LI.
(ill) HEIM AT ART206.83/Z 7T, thFEMETHAN2023E K,

F20234E12H31 8, [REETF 20224 4 TR AEERF AN ARMT272Z B it A2022F M &R RS0, LR FE4RER
TrA2023E EM FiiF. LR MRS STRA.

(3) F2023 12831 H B2022F 128310, ZEAXR AR ASUT LS FLAIRRFAHELATEANARLOWMURTITART
105.58fZ TR AR 185.291Z 7.
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34. 0 MR F A3
FIE D IR FR BT FIT

EFSHARKEAD

10,367 1.22

EfREREERATRLS 13,273 12,205

BlFHESHRAARA S 3,349 3.298

&it 26,989 25,755
35,7 BiE

TN

Z M E

BHREF0L 555,443 553,119 529,796 534,625
s TR 50,864 60,841 58,732 50,962
HHBASERENER M~ 23,301 17,185 23,500 17,228
TEIB AR 1T BT I 5 Al 30 3,432 2,134 2,067 1,518
Hfth - 1 - -
it 642,040 633,280 614,095 613,333
Fleskm
ERETHFIES (387,149) (376,594) (385,534) (375,017)
[k B A flb & BN 4 F AHOW (61,634) (65,531) (62,053) (65.657)
iihgea (10,135) (7.804) (11,488) (8,463)
(@B A b SR A (21.171) (11,915) (12,377) (5,317)
Hil {1.638) (1,126) (972) (701)
it (481,727) (462,970) (472,422) (455,155)
FB U A 160,313 170,310 141,673 158,178
(1) % TRIGHEF BN SFEHEIGEE . H MU RaT Bl A,
36. FEHRMEFWAN
2 isH FiT
FHEABMEWA
S 5 EEMRE R 565 206 509 674
R 228 280 228 280
ERAREHR (18) 83 (18) 83
i3 o) 10 560 5 196 535 ] 3
At 479 606 120 172
it 1,450 2,410 844 1.212
FEABMELSH (920) (906) (680) (601)
FEATGE BB 530 1,504 164 611
37.4& H

TRtemAE o .

F:3 E]

27.873 21,526

7,683

6,336
FESMIA 2,356 149 2,279 145
AR 7 (186) 32 - -
HAb A8 9 (61) 159 (218) 29
HibA2E T B4 167 129 1 2
MR AR A 89 573 12,017 7,863
Hi (1,300) (B51) (1,294) (810)
&it 28,918 21,717 19,121 14,912
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3B. A RYHEEERE
THUEBTA ' (4,081) " (11.993) (2.632)  (9.8%)
FPEEBRTE (210) (395) (242) (408)
ERBRALY (886) (1.796) (886) (1.796)
&it (5,127) (14,184) (3,760) (12,040)
39 L RIRE
CHKEFEaEIMERER AN OMFE AR, MENCEHEER TR ENIRE,
40, H At sl SN

Z4H _ *7

HEHA 12,386 12,490 131 101

i 3,034 1618 176 a4
& 15,420 14,108 307 135
A1 FE R M

s ) HAT

ATHER SR ‘ 2,439 2,2 2,311 : 2.11

S 0 1,743 1,612 1,651 1,545

Hilh 507 608 443 433

&it 4,689 4,421 4,405 4,088
42 K R HIR %

FEA b

ATHA 8,285 7,974 6,939  eg2m

Hep, TH. 2%, I 5,960 5,793 4,935 4,768

wHEHm 3,231 2,918 2,597 2,250

rIRT0E 5% A 1,985 2,172 1,756 2,008

&it 13,501 13,084 11,292 10,885
43.15 FiR{ER %

FME H4T

v n =
. r =

R HEHANER K 83,137 70,493 102,13

LI (555) 4,424 (286) 4,401
HAb ORI 7 110 300 126 18
TR (3,179) 6,172 (3,181) 6,172
HEERERE (23) (4) (22) (160)
Hih 599 250 427 (108)
at 80,089 115,426 67,557 112,461
44 E At Al 5 Ak
EEERETR A 5978 5,260 e
Hib 1,467 1,190 - 1

&it 7.445 5,450 = 1
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45.FiSHLEE A

SRR ' 36,737 49,590

26,728 43,291

EEFFEBEM (21,777) (36,783) (16,592) (36,812)
ait 14,960 12,807 10,136 6,479
FIEARFFTHERAASSUHTNGENRNT.

FHEH *i7

7 =l B - s < 2Ued <
Flmeam 102,377 97,147 83,943 79,197

EERE2S% T WA AR E 25,595 24,287 20,986 19,799
T E R AT ER AT 0 B 0g (106) 27 = -
BB GB (12,617) (12,632) (12,664) (13,751)
SFYATIE0T R 14 2 B A4 on 26 544 = -
ARG AR H b SR m 2,062 581 1814 43
Frids A 14,960 12,807 10,136 6,479
46. & BRI TEER
(1) HEHFFHY AREFHWMER M

2

i 87,417 84,340 73,807 72,718

- =A% 80,089 115,426 67,557 112,461
H A3 R0 1,575 3,031 76 1
kL 7,963 7,432 1,756 2,008
AIERITLE S (3,465) (848) (3,465) (848)
LRBEBER®. TRRAFE MRS 0RE (458) (595) (142) -
AREHIETHIRE 5,127 14,184 3,780 12,040
FRBF LR QWP 348,456 327,668 339,180 320,372
|ERES () 1 (1,678) (11,800 (7,894)
TR (20,952) (50,158) (21,325) (45,254)
REFFEBAA (21,777) (36.783) (16,592) (36,812)

_ SEEGBOTE MR (414,430) (1,119,627) (425,683) (702,131)
SEELATE 1% (#) BRI (264,209) 323114 (274,800) 343,306
BEFHFENAEHRSE (194,650) (334,494) (267,671) 60,965

(@) FIFFREFRIPHRERNESNYEE.

) 7R 1T
CEk T B Ay : ST g

r C

- Ll 318

" sy [is _ - : F12A31H
R AR TR AR 168,680 141,560 187,161 179,386
REEEIWBRBE=7A6.

FNIE 1 4 b 7 = 476,884 404,707 476,884 404,707

e 135,435 118,323 135,435 118,323

H b ARG 7.436 1,784 7,436 1,784
&it 788,435 666,383 806,916 704,200
47 LML E Mo AR 2

(1) BAEFEE ML EER

ARARTT. RERTEHMASHEENEHLIHQEARARREA S FHLLSEESHERATRI B EBHE
B ARARERERRS- TR UEES . b TFAMAULEHETEHRAAD . BB S EMLEFDEETEER, FAEM
Fr3z R AL B A 08 T R EHR . Bk A B o M 2 45 i AT RE 1.

F20235F 128310, LA S FFEEMEHL TGRS ME I ARTI25.19Z5 (20226128318 ART146.001Z5%) .
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(2) SRANSITEEBMENEER
(a) REAXTT, LRRTEMEHILER

AIRE KRG T EIGE BONSEE, BEREES. ArEEITUNEES . HIREEFRAEFEHRES . FREN
FMASIEE NS EREARAM SR A DT,

F2023 12831 H . HRF R RE L ARSI 0L T 5~ B0 AR M1,460.22427% (20225 12A 318 . AR 1,626.68
Z7E), AEFE A TR ML EFRRHNKEN S ARTE5.25{Z5T (20224612H318 . ARM84.911Z5c) . £l 5 FMft
RTAREAMZESHEEFENRAARED.

(b) hEF=FMHE TR R SHEERE

APEAFEHABAZFNMETRERNEMETERE, HUHZHHERASMEHIARNRHE, T2023F12A318, 34T
BHRAYANSIFCE M SR B AL, TAFFTIRIGHHHTHE.

F20231E12F318 , AEEIFH EMNBETHEMEEFERART D ART177.60{Z5T (20225£12H318 . AR T 200.40{Z
) HP FEHUESRESIBOLEETHARTI76.99Z7T (20224128310 . ARM197.551Z5T) ; FH b H4E A8
BRI ART.214Z5T (20224612831H. ART2.85ZT).

48. EMATEB

A B AL W ERE A RIERDED, 7ETNER. 4NHEE RERRTENOREBRERESHIFT &H, 247
| AR E LRI EE .

Fo023412A318 ., A LA MMNEERL AT T A XHIES. HiLERDMNEE R~ BETWIRERIEA ARSI .43ZT
(2022412318 . ARM1.481Z7T) , ABANARE THREHEEH/LTF2MORBE RN St HAwg b wil,

Fo023#E12A31 0, RRATELEF ARFHILERAE M-S RIAR B ER T~ M.
. SRS
A Fl i A AR S T L ST AR R R IR A R . AR RS S A R E A A E AR S — B AT R TR
4rEpiE 2 BE—ME L FRE R T, ABKILENSERTBHFREE. HETEIBOLGHIRR P R,
AL EEIR LT e S8R T IR
RITUSS
EAMEEOEATRTLS . KGNSV SRAELS. ARG LS OENEME R, FRIRS. RRRS. R 558k,

REEREMS . CHRNEHRS AERFRERMSE. ROMSLSHLTRTUSEEREKE, RELFERATHHELS.
SMCTHHR S, MFHFTHEE . RBEMNCRREPTERL S BH = RHHE,

AR Bl 55

FHHRIFRIEE LS.

it
AHBEEARAEDHAANBARRLSREERALS,
UEZFAl 55

FABEFEEHNBLLS. BELFRESRHE LS.

20234

T 630,685 2044 11682 1,182 (3,563) 642,040
HExH (472,260) (1,857) (10,405) (760) 3,565 (481,727)
RSB 158,425 187 1,277 422 2 160,313
R, AP ZBALYAST 158,274 205 1,510 324 - 160,313
HER (AT WA BT 151 (18) (233) 95 2 =
FEARMEBUN 164 150 (86) 272 a0 530
Hep, 98 FHEMRBFEAWEA 138 151 (25) 266 - 530
HEBEF R R ERYA 26 (1) (61) 6 30 -
EELFRAN/ () 26,399 8.173 15,021 261 (1,039) 48,815
HyE (95.630) (a76) (10,756) (488) (50) (107,209)
Al PN S 19 - (5) 4 - 18

Fil i B8 89,377 8,134 5,452 471 (1,057) 102,377
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A
LT I T o

2023412431 g

R 17,998,894 236,084 407,672 45,604 (225,995) 18,462,259 "
RABEH 192,263
BHE~ 18,654,522
#Es M 16,625,882 61,208 371,400 29,582 (119,860) 16,968,203
FAHRE Rl 6,589
B 16,974,792
Hith:

i 1,756 142 6,098 55 (88) 7,963
BRI 1,207 27 19,134 10 - 20,468
SRR % 79,644 (407) 744 (66) 174 80,089
Hfth g = Wi lAR % 76 - 1,499 - - 1,575
ERRiE 3,626,788 244 = - (17.432) 3,609,600
20224 _ 5

FL @A 623,239 766 10,758 1,128 (2,811) 633,280
e (454,946) (1,908) (8,207) (531) 2617 (462,970)
IS ASE 168,293 (1,137) 2,551 597 6 170,310
Hep, WX GFBBNF T 167,271 (64) 2.726 377 - 170,310

28 5] F BN B ET 1,022 (1,073) (175) 220 6 -
FHEARMAMEHHEAN 609 592 (51) 373 (19) 1,504
He, WX EFEBREELPRA 559 592 (10) 363 - 1,504
BB F T AR RN 50 - (41) 10 (19) -

HAbE P BN 47.413 6,042 14,296 676 (711) 67,716
By (128,631) (724) (11,836) (1,008) (103) (142,392)
B SN A 2 2 @) 7 = 9
Fliapm 87,686 4,775 4,958 555 (827) 97,147
202246126315

SR = - 17,651,016 226,772 352,886 43,714 (205,671) 18,068,717
FoEEHE™ 174,366
b8 T 18,243,083
GrEp T fH 16,322,299 62,195 318,893 28.126 (102.147) 16,629,366
oA f il 8,136
Rtk 16,637,502
Hit.

B F0pE 2,006 (137) 5,381 60 122 7,432
AN 647 315 14,059 9 - 15,030
18 BIRLINLIR % 113,425 4 1,227 548 222 115,426
17 AR 1 - 3,030 T L = 3,031
BRI 3,737,608 244 - - {9,000) 3,728,852
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T. RBEAXERES

1. WFBCAR
TR 2 E 4 bR e A AR 7). FR0234E 12831 B, M ECER7 A 1736.54%04 I 4R (2022412 31H . 36.54%).

ARASHHSHTHARLEXFEEEHLFRLT . TERFEEAATERZEFILNEBSLTNERE. FR>A6H®
H.ZHFXRNFEAWRmT .

EffHEE W - 54,987
FIRER [8](%) 1.65-4.42

LA ' | 1,736 2.137

gL il 34 74
2. iC&AF

CEATRPEARAGRBELTNESRTLT, FAEH PEER EMFADARTS282.09Z%. L& FLE SRR,
3 EE ERALAD TR AN A B EER T4 TR RS BB TEM R TARF TS, F2023512
BB . L&A THFEa41734.68%M N (2022512 A 318 . 34.68%).

FHEafiRE . &EAFENLEAETHHS TRFTARASMERENT .

ERHEeEES ' - 634

At 5t 93,612 83,106
FRR 8] (%) 2.44-4.20 2.15-4.23

FI BB N _ " o 2,522

R 16 78

AZRASTEATRILERREAREFHALTNETHEFENEES  RER G FRIEFT.

3. FEARATEFRIELH

FERBRATFEAMIEAE (UTHR ERHALS) EEARNMCERESSRRIH—AFTIRNELS, BEEBARANG
BN, M0, £ SRLE . BERATR. RAYE (RERLSIENTR . SEXBIVERT TR REEED).

F2023E12 331 B, 5404 A SFHE A 1727.19% 9B AX (20224125 81H ; 27.19%).
FEFASHEARASIEEENERELANATHTHNARLERS . RERHLFRIBEST.

4. SFAFANES
AR REET AP RS 5FAIXANKENEZIFNT .

#=

i E 9,953 4,959
P - 1
KHERRTAR 44,831 41,406
Hit#~ 20 22
ik h

@0k B B fth e P A A R RCROR 10,037 9,771
ot 3 ik - 15
LT e 164,158 121,920
ERTHMEFILHE 2,802 4,569
Hilbfafk 9 6

F20234 12331 A, STAFHAMERRELFHRBRERFTMHART74.32{25T (202246127318 . ART90.001Z5%).
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ATHARMAT AR5 TAINEEHIFOT.

HlEBA ' ' ' ' 1,853 1816

Fexd (1.864) (1,003)
FEARMEWAN 51 60
FHENRMERM (5) (10)
s € 12,018 7.863

FTSTFADZENHXRHRE—MH U ERNES W SBHFES,

5. SREMGELATNKLS
AREASHENEE LT 2@ HU—MRXBIMEHEMEE . HER L FRKGET, F202345 20226, A LEAKSHER
REQNREBARKARS. ERBETALNT M,

6. XPERAR

RREHARREFWIHFAHFR. ERNRRARBFDHAR. F20234 820227 RIEH LB, KRASEREEA
ANEAETMIFTEKX.

7. A FEE
RER DN, FWBER02E, ARARATSATRINESHIRRETAXBEIZS.
T—. RFBETRKEH

1. EEIFR

F2023512A31 8, RIARKGTHES FRARTLATR. ATEARAA RS LR FRNRANRAS LT A ERARRTH
WERARBEHR=ETALM,

2. FAMRE

EESFRMNT
— g R 41,341 47.833 = =
- BE R 27.279 38,001 579 669
&it 68.620 85,834 579 669

ARANBER - RARKEEE D WEATABRER & OB AMRIE, F20235F 128318, AEFANIEAEBERAFEARAY
RIERWHART267.001Z5T (20224124318 . ARF373.32(Z7T),

3. E8&KiE

A E 4T
=== 3 J I 2 234F 12 |
BRIRIE 3,603,476 3,716,738 3,620,908 3,725,739
FHRHREER 3,347 3,703 3,102 3,458
BITRAICE 1,623 8,375 1.623 6,375
F {5 A 1,154 2,036 1,154 2,036
&it 3,609,600 3,728,852 3.626.788 3,737,608

F2023412831 8. WHRESFES AR E—FEUAHETH A RT601.47(Z5% (20224128310 . ARMH507.93(25%)
HERRREREESBIANAYE—FB L,

4. MABRRE
FRSAMRE, HMETHMARL SHOWROT.

AR

EAESSESW ’ 36,621 28,014

F2023%F R20227F12A81 6, A REA MR BEMEREYH—ELA.
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5. RY
(1) {EAIERIAIE ™
EienRE . A R E M RPN R~ e T

T R T e R T IR T
R -
1,132 =

F2023512A31H , A REAR M EMEEF = iAEHARMA170.39{Z5T (20225F12A3180 . ART153.67{Z5) , K73 EM
EMBFEHRAETAARD.25{Z5T (20224£12A31 8 ). FrE BB S E ML ESGE 1 EREZI.

F20234F 12310, AEAPH WM ARER. STHHMES. NHENTERATHANKARSRENEEITAIART
2,247 44425 (20224128311 . AR 1,589.52{Z7T).

F20235E12H31H | & H B8 - il 25 F F RO BCFF ok #0 il 25 3 e 35 iR R AT IR A AN i 4 B A8 7T M2 AR M13.2212
(20224128318 . ARM20.01{Z5t. ARTB.46{Z5T).

(2) R HHE R

AEAEZAEY VS P ED TIESEYIRFENY, 2023412831 A R20224£12H31 0, ARBALEWBIMHT MHERBTRE
SMCIMEYE 2194 .

+=. REEE

1. &Rl B 2 SR

FEANSEFZHABEMERAR, REAELSTIE P EEM AR BLEA ST, M. KiEHhiEE,. RBREES
Bl &L IE. FRY S WFTERBTIMEE R, BIbREKE N BFENFRERFFARTEROTE F2TRERAEE
B S AT Fn,

FAEATBPEGTFEMRNBENENEDHEUSFFRE S PR SERT PN E R EHEFZ, RRBERIER S
R BEER R EAREE L RET SR AN TESETFR KM S, R TR & A RUR 0 FE.

- ARAREEENEFRE ARAARTHAFESMTAZS . FEEMEH. HHRFH EERhOFHRZHNE.

SR A i BB T TR R T 1 2 Y R DR AN R R B S T e 0 B Y 5 R AR ke ) RS RO PR AT AR . FIRGR
FlFusr bR AR . AkE R DA EMERTRY, R RERRM TS, = ROEML, HF3IARERE TG SRR TR,
AR E T A Y R R R RS . BRI, T U R 1 R,

2. [FRRE

AMEFTE G815 AR 2155 P U 55 F S AL R AW TR A S R m R, ERAAREAEAY A QTR
A, ALEREMERRBARENEL FAREEEFETEEES. AN EEERNFTEFHELS, RIEUTA
Al SEFEE BMERREOFEERS AR,

FEARBEENHERNABRTREFRBXAEIES SERRAVSHERITEATAGER, QFTHT® AR, ¥l
BORWOE . ITEXRRGES. AR ATHGETLAER, IREMNE A EARERNE P ERTRITEE P HA B IRk
MEEREL. B, AT RIETFEMERS W EHET BRFR, AR REIFRENTVIFRFHRA,

(1) ER R A EE

FRAMERREHEENHER, EEEERE, RER. BEERETNTRBEREEFRTOHERLSSABRRGAIELER, @
HFEACEERRERE. BAEWRE. FREE. FERH. IRFEARFRESREEE. RENQREEER . kxR
REEMAEREMBUL R S ERTERGARSEFTRETMRAZRANERRBEEEKT,

LAEFANT T AL EOEFETA DT E SRR M E S = S e — S ud, R EE T RIEERSIERE
- TR E R GEREE. ()EHATEBEL L. @QFEANKEN Z2RKFLRERSOBMERADNMEL AL ESH
£8.

fRER @SS AREATREAR RS, FTFHESET WS ARAENEFEREE S ERAKTEHZHMNTF. FiiE ARG S
BeiE GESERMMEMITAGEE. 2RERE. HEAEHNTETERETERALERENES A, dREEEVEMNER
PEHEATEE. IS, AREADFEFRERIUFERSERNRRKELS, BEFEE A 3OTEAROREE A FRETE
., FFRIE S RGRIRIE A LB | B 0k A S B v b 2 b 25 5 FAAE B Ak 45 4R 4406 R 1R R P RBUICR B IR S R U .
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EIRIFEIRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(2) EEITH

AEEABET —FIEARREROHEORMIGNE, SEERERARBERIIY, A REAN AASERRIMINTESRER
PG SRR EHIE TR IEIES) . RIS IR AP IR R.

HEBR I SO AR R AT 7, Pl AR B SRR, AR WA MRS 5. [RE B IEg 2 s
Hih 2~ HIRAEITY, AU TAA 0N RAR. BENET. RUEM T LAY AERAXENA T SIS iTSLNe
T T RS, 53, B0 S EREHIER, F2023412831 A R20224F12A31 0 . A RFASE HIREE =S TN FE A,

(3) fERITAR
AEERAABEFEATFRERENTZHHFOHBAOMBITEER, BNFRESOLH TR AR A HIFRRT, #R

ABSFRRES (HI0. ERANHERATGTES %) PRANTRIEL GEHERASBBIBEDIRA, b5, THERER
PRSI 5 i % 503 T AT T R st 3 L fth i SR IR ) B TR AW N B AR 4R

(4) FHATE FR & THE

3T B R AT RN A R METR B HEDTARMSERENHES TRSBA S, LA~ UERRREIYEBRS
. ARREEA B AR AR THRR RS | A BT SRR A E IR R N R 7 o U S B Rk,

HFWATMERRA T ROSUTA, A RATEHEXSBTANEARRAVERASLEFE RSN, EM " SHE" AM
WA FITHRERSOES  ATE AR,

BB BMETARERRER 2NN SH TR, MEMEUD HE—ME,
HIMEB AWBERAREARREFENNSRTIA EHFREHNIEEEEAMEGOEVTA REMRRYS HHZME.
FZWE HTEEEERRENSRTA . MERMBIN HE=MER,

FoMREMTARMMAYTESBIARR 2PARABERRAHETHBRELRASES FoMBNE=NESRIARR
HETFZER TR FRNATRNERR RO ST R Lg%,

MARRECREGHAENERATRIEEMEWANDFEG AR MG SIA >, TLR R % 5 BN FEA s T
ERE%.

ARHSETRMEELETRMERRETE. ABEAREOTHE S ER T ERNH LIRS, X805 ERRNE
REFWRABRANBRRR (S0, BAEHOTRMERAERK) . REDRBLSTHEN LT RE T R TR E
FT A RigFOfE, €45

- HUEHRAEAELS

- HRE RiR& RS RRRIETTHEA

- {ERRE B ney pIer

- BEREERAMAMATTE

- FTFWEMTTROLHFER. SFEREENEN R
S an R B = 3o b
FEUERAREE SN2

AEEHAA RO ST B OMTHE, FTHEN, AEELET ERALR LT, EHHE. BEARDSHAE,
TR ELAE FI LB 4040 ) 4 B OT .

BB R AT RNSH. RERGTEA

REEAAEIFRERFEAMUEEFC LEBAMM, ARERTRHE S5 5 120 A B FLNSRNE AR & THE

AR AUME AR AT RO XS R EIEE QNS B KR HE LR D . AN 2 57 RS 15505 O B 6 A BRI

FALuh, RBLWRTHENMIDR . %R0 LGSR (0258 FIFE. BREAZREFRITYET. ERARE) HERMIE

BIEEIEE . RS OME . SOMAREREAME M OHE,

EXEXMT .

- BHBREREMSAERK2TARNEENTWRFEN, AT HEMS XS OTTIEN, A% E B AR MRS TR
SERDUFITRE INATIREER, BURSR T B F IR T (0145 A i A b 204

- EBHMARREAREMNSHREREE EREBEMSH AT, REZBHFNXD BRATRNEES. URERSM
TR RARAERFRAFE. SLRER DS LORERARKORENEI L.

- BAREMORIE EEAKEN, ARARHEGHSE,

ARBARAABERFRARRAT RGN TFHEHBRTTEER. BT REFINE BN FRARE A BITRME, %D
AR AR A RS R RS IR TR, A REER S ARG AR AR R NER, aFs R TS
HMERERHNEH TR,

T20234F B, fit A X R RE R EE AR,
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EHARE S Rma g

FEFEGSEFIHREFERXEMTANER AR SNETAGEEE BEEM, A4 5T ER T =00 %50 B o

EHEFEERAEAARESLIBZEAMAEHEEAGMRIENEL. SFMREREL, AEENATNESE TR SRR, @it

BREMTAER~IHREEERAMRAIESEDNEMIAE R ESAMAR, NRE S TRTIHFRNEN &S24 R ATk
.

AEATH TG R EE. EHFEMATER T RAMNEAAELSMERANGESLERT RN, ANDETEREHS ABRORE
M. ERARARAXHECUZALRBEARREFEMATOR, XS0 TAGERANEBMERINVGESEF G,
AEFAFEEA WS IDEN X TR0 AEAREEFENHER. IREREAERTIRENRENAFTREEARN
B A EEIRIRIZ S TAMERRRBIETIAEHFRBEFNN, MREMTRAAFREGSHNR  ERAEENRRFRE
fREh KR HEEMER NS, BHIET SN FREACIAE A S FNA & AT ZLRRERE, WEEMTARR AR
ARILEARARE.

B R4 ERR AR RE

ERESTEESEAMEN . AREAMRANFERE SHBSRRERTANEHARTEERRET -2 BHSEER.
B, REFATRENGFART L ERRMEN, THLEUTEE.

- REHHMEARETANM S B,

- HiSABESRE. MESH B A S E AR A RE AEAAS. 20, F BRI EHL S HIHELEE0X.

- RAHTEUSAMSERFANSFUASEZE STHSAREARMIL THASMERILS.

- HEARTREMESEETHAMSER,

- EOANMEAMEERESEESMA S 0FRTHEEK.

L= BURWEFING R EE— W ERMA S ETTINRRT £EERRAKNER.

SWAFREEREE, FURL S BHNIER AN FA2TEMRIN IR,

ATFRR R p S5FER. SF IR ERHNENRA

125 R FLES B0 0 B4 MRS PR Sk O T 0 RO 15 B, R IRBR I 1T BT R SR AT AR B A SR BER
AERRMERRANZRBFES. OENLFRES. LERSEN. BEFRSUSHS. TEEFER B ATENELR

FEOBM, HTENLSEYVERARE. ZEASSHEAIBEIBH G HFBEXLEFRIFSHIRTNBAMERZ
8926 R . A SR ER AN X L 2P AR T I TN . FHR o Ry RHEM, PRI AR,

AL SFIHITERETOR FU. 2 BN 3 T 2SN R HAE, REAMSMHRSFRMNSBRTERZEHE
MR BET RIREFTE TR H LG4 TN S, A RETEHWET TR RONE, FEAEROERSFRNEST
HAlb#hHe 290, ABE RUNRA 124 B RIS FIRK ( S— 8L SR B A F SRS AR & (M B A=) vt
HEMRGER . ERNRE AR SR BTN — R I TSR E AT REEMNE.

HUMAE AR % B AR o e I s R AG AR A R0, THEBERHIANRUMERARENAMRET—AS TRRALE
TR HGU SR, F20284 E, AIEFAXET FAEAMNENEFERWNESFEBEAHLNHE N, M ENSFEFETIRIERN .
Hep | BF GRS R R 5% 00 E P 4 £ 5 (GDP) X ZF [ th i K3 72024 5 i) oh MR T 1A SE 8 4 4.57%-4.78%.,

RIS BuL BB R LT T5910% . AMEITF20234 125 31 B iHR AR MDE S R T I ELHIFBL5%,
fRIR R A TR 2 B 0 4

- HENTE2EEEMTHEEF 22— B8 RO REIRIN10%. A& AT 2 10%, S5 EIE R a4 ER
IN10% ., T LT A4 T 0 10% , A IEE 7202312831 B HEN B A S ST TENIBIEFBiL5%.
FoMEBERERIRRARERLS TR

FEAESINHGAT SEREFRRMER=BRORESMARRA FER—EHFRNRFAEME | REH > RKA
EAILME.



100 EERIFRET CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(5) ARZErE R IR J A 8 PR i Bk 1 A R i
FHE-AMRD. RAFAREROGELMT.

s ) *i7

IR R A TTHRIR 98,364 113,857 97.821 113,311
i) A 0T . 143,422 - 113,326 140,421 146,482
S 544,247 471,537 554,200 476,498
FrESmA >~ 3,569 11,003 2,893 10,269
ENEBL SR 477,525 404,823 477,456 404,823
-9 A g IE N 14,244,743 13,899,107 13,756,973 13,391,556
TR EMA~ 731,493 756,510 659,023 680,068
gV el 700,985 935,357 696,356 933,716
HAb RS % 1,167,521 1,022,499 1,131,498 989,327
Hlb B 8,536 11,571 4,719 5,238
ihit 18,120,406 17,739,680 17,521,360 17,151,286
FHhmA

WRRE 3,603,476 3,716,738 3,620,909 3,725,739
FHHRE 3,347 3,703 3,102 3,458
RITRAICE 1,623 6,375 1,623 6,375
I+ W15 AE 1,154 2,036 1,154 2,036
ihit - 3,609,600 3,728,852 3,626,788 3,737,608
Bit _ 21,730,005 21,468,532 21,148,148 20,888,894

L&A RNFT T 20235 R20225:12 5318, ARARKFER TR TOEARBED . 8% 2B EARHUR RS
FRME RIS IR . T~ Rl 8 . b5k 5 B R 0 33 P f R e 1850

(6) EIH B 1SR AL B O 547

ARBRBERFLROEBFAXDH HAR . PAR I BAR". ERR EERANEERRRIBLE. Y%A
TRAEFRNEFEHATELHRN,  PRE EERAGLSERHRE BIBEEN RIS~ — 2, E8F
THEEARESAAEM, SRR BERABSESETHNT RARE, ABERMNIEROBNELHTESHEPSA,
mYRMEEEA.

MAREFEER M SR TARKFAFTRBMNERRENBRS TN T, BRAESIHN, S—MRAR124 5 BEAREL, 8-
BE=H B AR A SR BB E R k.

LI RkFak

i 13,372,962 = = 13,372,962
o - = 1,325,842 ] 1,325,842
i pps - = 187,762 187,762
it 13,372,962 1,325,842 187,762 14,886,566
H-EARMEER (238,554) (329,057) (128,634) (696,245)
T 13,134,408 996,785 59,128 14,190,321
A
fEREE B 12,949,557 - = 12,949,557
R = 1,226,631 - 1,226,631
R = = 185,902 185,902
&it 12,948,557 1,226,631 185,902 14,362,090
A ERREAE (230,177) (302,302) (127,060) (659,539)

2 12,719,380 924,329 58,842 13,702,551
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F MG

LB 12,892,388 - - 12,892,388
Lt - 1,344,107 - 1,344,107
i R - - 233,718 233,718
&3 12,892,388 1,344,107 233,718 14,470,213
W ERRAE S (209,408) (254,675) (155,120) (619,203)
B 12,682,980 1,089,432 78,598 13,851,010
=47

320 12,402,611 = = 12,402,611
R B B - 1,304,921 - 1,304,921
o R - - 231,156 231,156
it 12,402,611 1,304,921 231,156 13,938,688
W RS (199,604) (242,948) (152,678) (595,229)
b 311 12,203,007 1,061,972 78,480 13,343,459

fidRig i

{ERBE 710,920 - - 710,920
o 5 b - 28 B 28
5 R} - - 1,670 1,670
& 710,920 28 1,670 712,618
F SRS (10,129) (6) (1,498) (11,633)
kil 700,791 22 172 700,985
4T

U 708,431 - - 706,431
B - - - -
5 B - = = =
&it 706,431 - - 706,431
W fE R (10,075) - - {10,075)
e 696,356 - - 696,356

1 RS 945,348 = - 945,348
g - - - -
5 B - - 2,024 2,024
it 945,348 - 2,024 947,372
- (5 AR (10,209) = (1.806) (12,015)
% 935,139 - 218 945,357
AT

flEm g 943,904 - - 943,904
R - - - =
o R - — = _
it 943,904 - - 943,904
. ERAEES {10,188) - - (10,188)
A 933,716 - - 933,716
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{IEFLRE: 1,167,504 - - 1,167,504
PR - = = -
R - - 17 17
it 1,167,504 - 17 1,167,521
{5 FaaES (236) - (1,326) (1,562)
AT

i3k 1,131,498 - - 1,131,498
o Rz - - - -
& R - - - -
&it 1,131,498 - - 1,131,498
FRHE AR (221) = = (221)

{E Ak 1,022,466 - - 1,022,466
h A - - - -
i LB - - 33 33
&it 1,022,466 - 33 1,022,499
& A A (128) - (1,324) {1,452)
T

R 989,327 - - 989,327
o FRg - - - -
Rk - - = -
&it 989,327 = - 989,327
SRR (95) = = (95)

EH R

R[]

ERpE 3,489,940 - - 3,489,940
Layal — 119,416 - 119,416
785 P - - 244 244
&1 3,489,940 119,416 244 3,609,600
T

1R R 3,507,372 - = 3,507,372
RRE - 119,416 = 119,416
g2ty — - = =

&i 3,507,372 119,418 = 3,626,768
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{ERBE 3,568,268 - - 3,568,268
=R - 160,340 - 160,340
2 P - - 244 244
ait 3,568,268 160.340 244 3,728,852
AT

1A B 3,577,268 - - 3,577,268
& R - 160,340 - 160,340
185 1A 1% - - - -
&it 3,577,268 160,340 - 3,737,608

{E LB 7,505 = = 7.505
o g - 12,410 = 12,410
Rk - = 244 244
&t 7,505 12,410 244 20,159
4T

{IE R B 7,505 - - 7,505
o AL - 12,410 - 12,410
BAK - - - -
a4 7,505 12,410 = 18,915

MR 7,881 - - 7,881

o A B - 15,237 - 15,237

a5 R - - - -

&it 7.881 15,237 = 23,118
BR&NHEMERAS

AEATMHRC R EEAREMSIE=EMERS. BARKTHGIERE , ARE R CETEE IR AT LB R
ROTEEER, EXEGEARENSMEF, REABELEERATIFTOERSNEFFTNT.

G

BREEARERNAS

RGN 187,762 (128,634) 59,128 30,352
AR 1,670 (1,498) 172 =
HAb ARz 7 17 (1,326) 17 —
b2} 189,449 (131,458) 59,317 30,352
=T

BEEERRANER

RINERIULM 185,902 (127.060) 58,842 30,352

B 185,902 (127,060) 58,842 30,352
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BEEERRMEHE™

SRR 233,718 (155,120) 78,508 58,653
AR 5% 2,024 (1,806) 218 -
H b RIS a3 (1,324) 33 -
5] 235,775 (158,250) 78,849 58,653
1T

BEEEREEN A

SRR 231,156 (152,676) 78,480 58,653
24 231,156 (152,676) 78,480 58,653

LIERD AN S, UHFBRMT—ERBIPRALRNERHAL KO 4R,

F20235 128318, ARARATERYAERBHNN KL S E Xk,

(7) ZErbEannEs
ABERARREEAASHERHBRMREBRARPHHANT.

2023 12H31H

SRR 497 271 1,531,358 2,384,665 4,413,294
fRIERTRR 79,015 234,832 947,095 1,260,942
HEAIEBERR 12,327 71,083 1,866,124 1,949,534
SRR 6,719 35,062 7,238,951 7,280,732
&it 595,332 1,872,335 12,436,835 14,904,502
2022412H318

ERBER 546,288 1,381,515 2,229,330 4,157,133
RS 110,219 241,722 829,154 1,181,085
LN 57,517 169,704 1,637,374 1,864,595
RIS 13,096 48,844 7,210,161 7,272,101
it 727,120 1,841,785 11,906,019 14,474,924
T

202341253180

SRR 496,847 1,631,102 2,142,835 4,170,884
RT3 78,947 234,696 882,979 1,196,622
JERIFFER 12,149 46,930 1,681,785 1,740,864
iR e 6.719 34,621 7,232,352 7,273,592
&it 594,662 1,847,249 11,940,051 14,381,962
20224£12H31H

ISER N 545,969 1,380,937 1,981,165 3,908,071
{RIEREIR 110,217 241,503 765,477 1,117,197
R 17,793 57,457 1,580,432 1,655,682
isline N 13,096 48,259 7,202,788 7,264,143
it 687,075 1,728,156 11,529,862 13,945,093

-
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2023128318

2022412310

il B 2,815,160 19 2,629,214 18
5 X Bt 2,640,962 18 2,791,908 19
IKF] TR R EIE 1,552,228 10 1,503,640 10
B SRk A 1,520,245 10 1,436,376 10
T I 1,173,226 8 1,062,034 7
E-cb il 1,136,320 8 1,086,774 8
i 1,084,370 7 1,015,403 7
aim. Gk 554,406 4 570,021 4
HAlhizih 528,563 4 511,028 4
g 312,282 2 281,996 2
A 239,630 2 322,431 2
W 161,892 1 149,456 1
HETME S LSS SE L 72,632 1 75,979 1
Hilb 1,103,686 6 1,028,664 7
&it 14,904,502 100 14,474,924 100
4T

2023412 H31H

2022:£12A31H

i B A 2,784,320 2,602,595

- E s 2,639,705 19 2,791,545 20
7KF, FAERPFIA G EETEY 1,493,513 10 1,397,214 10
B, WS Bk SR 1,472,123 10 1,376,201 10
I 38 1,063,744 7 995,284 7
FREHE A 968,502 7 927,462 7
il 1,042,145 7 983,843 7
Bil. BT 554,396 4 570,006 4
Fofthiz 4 Ak 478,770 3 458,223 3
Ed:) 311,832 2 281,996 2
Rl 239,530 2 322,333 2
381 200,602 1 180,684 1
HEMEME L ERRSY 68,739 1 72,637 1
Hflb 1,064,041 7 985,070 7
&it 14,381,962 100 13,945,093 100

A UK

TEHRRIIEEERARY SRR B ENBTERBRERENENGHAT, AEAPAGSHERATHMEFRFROHE
. R IEER LIS TR H W SR A TR ST fE SE4EE 30 AR A M . XA B IR B w4 ib Wi . F20235E12A31 8, R4EH
TAFHETMAHART2617.70{Z5T, AT EAFER ST A ART2,417.98Z 7 (202212831 BAREA AT ART699.39
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(8) ALt S
TARFVRT A e E B A 7 AR 48 38 MU 41 ke v 45 238 0A 5T 9 13 IR BALD (9 15 R R 4 408 .

ERAERIT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

M

B AT RN H (25 85,060 8,854 10 - 1,065,884 - 1,159,808
FEATFE(1) 467,873 = 16,840 6,323 - - 491,036
ElES 330,701 1,053 8 192 - 2,605 334,559
WA 53,158 455 5,088 3,656 - - 62,357
TR THEN S - - - - - 3,743 3,743
BRI R 10 31 = = - 3873 3914
P - - - - - 335 335
PSR 180 8 - - - - 188
&it 936.982 10,401 21,946 10,171 1,065,884 10,556 2,055,940

ZHH

AA

T fff B AE L P AN 4 it 85,528 2,666 10 - 1,190,006 - 1,278,210
[ElEFFE(1) 441,779 - 31,978 9,576 - - 483,333
2IMHE 271,008 2,646 77 262 - 3,571 278,204
SRS 77,448 728 3,364 2,727 - - 84,267
foiT R TIIE > & - - - - - 3,450 3,450
SR R EM - - - - - 1,316 1,316
=B - - - - - 382 382
=S 257 a2 - - - - 289
&it 876,020 6,072 36,069 12,565 1,190,006 8719 2,129,451

AR AL 79,534

8,854 10 = 1,048,341

- 1,134,739
A fFE () 465,445 - 16,840 6,323 - - 488,608
B 325,487 66 - 181 - 434 326,168
et LIk ki 51,155 - 5,088 3,586 - - 59,829
gk $e kg - ~ = = = 14 14
&it 921,621 8,920 21,938 10,090 1,046,341 448 2,009,358

AR 78,331

2,666 10 - 1,180,189 - 1,261,196
Bk 7 5(1) 438,045 - 31,978 9,576 - - 479,599
wEFE 264,202 419 - 251 - 434 265,306
Smiltins 76,508 - 3,155 2,306 - - 81,969
#wEEE - - - - - 14 14
&it 857,086 3,085 35,143 12,133 1,180,189 448 2,088,084

(1) BFEFTARERSTELFLERAR.

(2) FRIPREOF BB GRS 0 RITA QR D ERFIORBURE, MM 5. & EARRS. TR st asg.

(@) FIPEHAPAEIL A BIFREA RGN, SRS A~ TR, LR TRAEY > ST S,



WEIiE ) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 107  «Em—

(9) EMBE-HREANMERNSGT

FITE R AN R Lo fth e B

-S|

L R aRe AERRE &t
2023412F31H

FHUR R RITHEA 98,364 - - 98,364
FFICE) b R T - 143,422 - 143,422
RS - 544,247 - 544,247
P smu~ 439 3,130 - 3,569
EYN R T - 477,456 69 477,525
e tEnE e 2,122 174,616 554,755 731,493
b 308134 599,487 244 101,254 700,985
HiL O # 558,200 382,766 226,555 1,167,521
Hih & mh R~ 2,441 963 5,132 B.536
&it 1,261,053 1,726,844 B87.765 3,875,662
20224128318

FFifCh AR AT 113,857 - - 113,857
TEALE ik - 113,326 - 113,326
e - 471,537 - 471,537
Fid P 4,107 6,986 - 11,083
ENIR S - 404,823 - 404,823
ZHMEMAS 4,741 149,231 602,538 756,510
I 838,377 514 96,466 935,357
oAb AR 5 435,092 421,954 165,453 1,022,499
Hfbma e 3,467 2,138 5066 11,571
&t 1,399,641 1,570,509 870,423 3,840,573

4T

2023%12H31H

PR AR ITH 97,821 - - 97,821
R dpN Eer] - 140,421 - 140,421
HihAE - 554,200 - 554,200
frESRm#E> 439 2,454 - 2,893
ENB S~ - 477,456 - 477,456
ZH e 2122 169,429 487,472 659,023
{RiRig 599,447 - 96,909 606,356
Hob g% 533.171 379,007 219,320 1,131,498
Hiampre 2,441 520 1,758 4,719
&it 1,235,441 1,723,487 805,459 3,764,387
20224£12A31H

Fip RARTHEm 113,311 - - 11331
FiE T - 146,482 - 146,482
wHESE - 476,496 - 476,496
eSS 4,107 6,162 - 10,269
ENIEWE WP~ - 404,823 - 404,823
pr Nt 4,728 143,935 531,405 680,068
AR IR B 838,377 514 94,825 933,716
Hoib e 418,092 417,118 154,117 989,327
Hibema~ 3,467 701 1,070 5,238

&it 1,382,082 1,596,231 781.417 3,759,730
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3. AR

WA RIER TS (FE CE RRMEEQNE) (T mERRARAMRI LS R £ EH AR . ALEAT IR
THAEEERFRTKES XS KEaFE TR,

RS E T AU IR B AR RS A T R RS WA R RARA . ERTHE LR SRR TRl E G
fmHRRE ., WIRTHARENEREATERMOEEN ., RILAS MY,

HEERREFSZLRAZERSENHRERIEEET AR, A EEARMAS RERETHAR, Bid EHETEW
FHEFEARBIRES RREMTHMAKNHEE,

32 5 W ST AR 5

AT T AR EEFETRH WG SEGHRG S,

ZHMMRIEH LS A A B RETHEOTNEhZSNeR T AR LT, SFKERENEZSENTE
A, RANMTERIAZBRTHRRAERLEEL.

RXAREORTRENTHA b AR TRV SERBESANRICEEA AR FERGE, L, AREEHEQER
2FHHAE. FRETARASXHUSHTHNR. VEHRRBRAGE> AHERREE0R, ReaFSHIRARME
7 R R LB T U 4 SR 1 e ) R L T R L IR

TR TR AR NS %

S RN PR E . WA EN. AT S0 a4, B MIERE A KT,

38
B, ARER MO FRTIEG. L RRBUSE) . U IR IS T BRSNS AR AOR.

FEFAFBTHRAENETREET. W FEABEESEFRERXMA, AR ERHHERSKEEXTHRMEMO MRS, it
. BEmiRg,

SRITIH
MERTIA, AT EREE HCERRE . FIERENQRES T, SEBETHRERR. b e SRR mEss. e

fFETREARERTRAASIRE AR TR WSRBRMEAGFBRD . GBS, MOSHEHERIRRT R R E
TR .

A XF R AR DR OSRMEMTICR  F RN F S RE RI()CERE (SERTRENXHIKT).

(1) MERE
BTETHEREZENZAT WRENEEEREFHEDSHRR TR EBESE S FN IR SR LN AR,

FEAEPEAMBROETAL S ENRERNAFHLANARBTETHBROEW, PEARRTHARTEAFREL TR
E, AFSMASHRERLRN A TWERRFRRT, NS, B—5H. ERMMRNERASAMG L RRAFIRRE T,

R T 5 ) T R o MM TS R T A A BE TR B B B E M08 . A E B O A AN, B B
fiEs . W ERRBE - AMEHENESHE TRGTRTMEF RRIERE, 2 50T 607 AR =il & A KR
RS T, S DI RR S O S4T. TR AR SMHTETEE.

EHRMERHERRIE . ARDEHHRASTRNHRO. JASEG . FEEREH RS GRIEE ) T4H QAT
xR S R a e it

T3 fivtik 0 4H4FF
RERAREZNABIMNE PRPH D H RREAE AR LS80 R HEH RSO 2% UIKE N ER0T .

2023512H31H

ZAHE

EMER .

WM& RAFH P RBFHA 98,364 = - = = 2 98,366
FRRLHE 119,681 3,113 12,886 - = 7,742 143,422
FHEE 226,381 248,849 67,850 = = 1,167 544,247
gaemEE 0 - = = = ” 3,569 3,569

FENE W 476,884 400 — = = 241 477,525

AR 0L 4,704,724 8,226,131 245,425 217,688 814,032 36,743 14,244,743
ER M SR 15,203 120,481 10,112 36,472 70,120 649,673 902,061
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R

12,607

131

234,774 444,585 - 700,985
HAb AR FE 399,236 156,154 318,958 142,307 141,647 10,219 1.167.521
HflbAn 3 T AIEH - - - - - 5,460 5,460
Hilb 172 - - - - 8,364 8,536
B ~EI 6.053,252  8.986.902 1,099,816 396,598 1,025,799 732,068  18,296.435
EWHfH.
[ e B A £ B AT AR RO 553,566 1,944,613 100 - - B,071 2,506,350
[ E N A & R L8 268.521 352,031 45,500 60 - 7,839 673,951
HAFE 25,525 15,304 1,451 83 550 352 43,265
3 51l 10 = - - - - 2,621 2,621
T SE R E - - - - - 8.271 8,271
immmn%;m 15,461 1578 - - - 51 17,090
M 7 747,420 80,734 11,281 4,143 2,146 8,530 B63,254
ERfTHEIES 1024225 1,108,774  5207,684 4,360,893 784,153 238,568 12,724,297
Hile 1,440 2 500 3 - 27,741 20,686
ERAEET 2,636,158 3,512,086  5.266,5616 4,365,182 786,849 302,044 16.868,785
FREFEMEROE 3417094 5476866 (4,166,700) (3,9G8,584) 238,950 430,024 1,427,650

REFHNEEENENIMBPRTES L AROETERE R &8 55 ERE KD 295 LUKE 70T

FEE

20224124310

ERE

I & BRI P RAR TR 109,410 - - - - 4,450 113,860
TFILE R0 101,591 331 - - - 8,424 113,326
A 155,609 264,786 50,370 - - 772 471,637
Pre S~ - - - - - 11,093 11,093
ENEE SR~ 404,707 - - - - 116 404,823
R R 4,350,965  B,185972 261,212 229,094 828,789 43,075 13,899,107
% B ERhE 31,555 53,997 25,827 50,321 78,016 691,412 931,128
AR 28,523 300,221 536,703 56,813 - 13,097 935,357
HAb AR 195,035 350,580 297,364 102,073 69,059 8388 1,022,499
HAbAN2S T RIGH - —~ - - - 5,354 5,354
Hill 270 - - = - 11,301 11,671
Sild = ait 5,377,665 9,158,867 1,171,476 438,301 975,864 797,482 17,919,655
SRR

3 e 2 A & Bl AN AR TR O TR 503,720 2,021,081 - - - 11,273 2,536,074
BB AN AL & At (R 247,924 281,013 22,963 17,928 - 3,034 572,862
HARE 22 850 13,339 1,785 92 566 237 38,869
325 WS f i - - - B = 2,495 2,495
e - - - - - 18,351 18,351
301 [0 0 15,208 159 - - - 25 15,392
IR T 1,066,631 78,877 12,023 4,074 2,10 3999 1,167,724
BETHFITES 921,232 987,506 5022845 4,263,996 699,542 230,835 12,125.956
Hilb 104 2 14 50 - 17,954 18,124
E@AMET 2,777,669  3,381.977 5,059,640 4,286,140 702,218 288,203 16,495,847
FREH RO ST 2,599,996 5776890 (3,888,164) (3.847.839) _ 273,646 508,279 1,423,808
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BERNERENENHMEFRPESE. RTERERA™ RS0 7GRS 025 LT N ETROT.

BRI~
e RAFRP RARTHON 97,821 = = - - 2 97,823
FiRELSE 132,973 12 = - - 7,436 140,421
RS 226,381 258,749 67,850 - - 1,220 554,200
TS~ - - - - - 2,893 2,803
INEmERMAES 476,884 400 - - - 172 477,456
R GERAL 4565640 8,234,751 231,206 210,810 479,583 34983 13,756,973
ZHMEmAS 11,457 120,231 9,703 34,672 4,176 495,329 675,568
iR 12,436 233367 441,695 = - 8858 696,356
 HAbfriia s . 398921 148,567 298,866 134,660 140,689 9795  1,131.498
HfRETRER - - = = = 2,000 2,000
Hile - - - - - - 4,719 4,719
ERTE=E 5922513 8,996,077 1,049,320 380,142 624,448 567,407 17,539,907
ERAH: N
o0 e B Bl AN A 77 30 556,887 1,851,142 100 - - B,257 2,516,386
e B F Sl S m A R 134,923 226,400 18,486 - - 6,171 385,980
AT 10,270 14,950 1,451 83 550 313 27,617
FreEEm RN - - - = - 8,025 8,025
EHE SR ~R - 1,125 - = = 7 1,132
B 887,705 108,100 11,281 4,143 2146 9,037 1,017,412
B R ThFEsH 1,015,341 1,100,149  5,184489 4,357 288 784,153 238,104 12,679,504
Hth - - - = = 6,680 6,680
et Baki iy 2,605,126 3,396,866 5,215,787 4,361,514 786,848 276,594 16,642,736
MEEHEN®ROAT 3317387 5599211 _(4.166,467) _(3,981,372) (162,401) 290,813 897,171

BERNEEENBNIGE PREF DL, RTEALMWA ™ R W R PF AR MO 245 LUKENES R0 T

&7
20224128310
R
M B R BTN 108,864 n T = - - 4450 113314
R 138,161 N - = - 8321 146,482
_iﬁ&lﬁﬁ 157,508 267,786 50,370 - - 832 476,496
RS mA < = = - - 10269 10269
TNEHERE~ 404,707 - - - - 116 404,823
&J&ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ 4,338,300 8,172,647 170,801 192,855 475572 41,381 13,391,556
35 1 SR 27,569 52,836 24,922 49,887 8,087 533,648 696,949
{HEARIR 2 28,076 300,221 535,541 56,813 - 13,065 933,716
HfibEARe s o 194,436 345,771 281,250 92,925 6,977 7,968 989,327
HAbINH T HARHE - - - - - 2,042 2,042
Hth - - - - - 5,238 5,238
EWMAFST 5,397,621 9,139,261 1,062,884 392,480 550,636 §27,330 17,170,212
SRS B
[ERD:E8 kLR CEes v 8 509,560 2,023,686 1,279 - - 11,321 2,545,846
[ BT (b SR A 124,341 184,628 766 17,400 - 1,877 329,012
FARE 8,689 13,339 1,785 92 566 218 24,689

7t R 1 (3 - - - = - 18,339 18,339




&7

1,289,644

g W FF R 1,184,694 82,564 12,033

2,110
B &SI 917,481 980,759 4,985,111 4,285,572 699,542 230,487 12,078,952
Hitb - - - - - 7,150 7.150
B HMET 2,744,765  3,284976 5000974 4,287,138 702,218 273561 16,293,632
fEREFEMGRO S 2,652,856 5,854,285  (3,038,000) (3,894,658 (151,582) 353,760 876,580
FlR RPN B GE B2 A B a4

TRIRT EAEXGAROZEAN T EARTRIOMEAHIRT. BFREMFARANE LT SR RGENES, K
F124 B AR BUD YN B H AL & A U3 R - S B TE B TS 00 TR AT IRR A IR B9 F SR LIAR RIR AR E) SRR R 5
ST A A ST MR,

i 20234 20224

(25,932)

EFH00ME S 50,438 (35660 44413

TR100PE S (50,438) 40,481 (44,413) 28,593

HT

EFH004 = 50,024 (34,456) 45,166 (23,841)
THE100P (50.024) 38,894 (45,166) 26,226

b AR 7 BN B 8 0 2 906 — 2 ) S e 3 SR T B T SRR — P AT S HEE A7 A R R R e SRR T AR B ) B
ABE W, AT RIRMRSEMSBA~ R ANOSHRISTE, REEATH. BERELAFRITZEGUNETLEE
EH.

xf H A4S Bk i B RAEE T E— B E LM M R F H MR EGEGE AR MERD MR W,

FEEA A ZBEHFAEEREANE SEMNEH R AR ERNHENR. Bl LR BN TESRRNREFEZR. S0, LdFlsE
HEWATRZIEAIAE, BFREEMFOHEABEEARDRSFERRRAT . FAPRANLES YE ki &3, @%
R v 3 R 7 1 TR SR S LGS 0 T 1 SRR A4 BB W E R

(2) THERE
AR ERIBINT TSR Eh /= A )T PR , 3% LB G Y ol LY SRR A e i,

FEAMHABALERART LS, ILMEET. BT, BRMEMMISI P S, AREANCEREEERPEST. KEHAS
FI R SR ET4 T AR 43 35 F0 M D AT R0 . 2023, AR M ETICEMBARTO.MBITAEST (20226 EREART
0.58897L/1%£7T).

A SEE EEE ST MO | TR U ST 7E RS W3 (EaR) R S T T R B RTLE QMR M, HR IR £ A~ f
R Fls # B 32 5 F TR TR AR SR,

AREAETNCTRAR O, UERTH~NAHETSARTRANEIIFOT.

E e

T

2023%12/31H

ot

& B 70 P R AR TN 95,818 2,534 14 2,548 98,366
TR LR 53,318 65,060 25,044 90,104 143,422
HAE 428,180 98,773 17,294 116,067 544,247
PRt b 2,358 1,075 136 1,211 3,569
TNEE ST 477,525 = - - 477,525
ERGERASL 13,366,403 707,974 170,366 878,340 14,244,743
oo g 875,000 26,773 279 27,052 902,061

AR 603,927 97,058 = 97,058 700,985
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F#H

v

1

oy __. Rk B =EN L3} '
HAb@HRIE 1,129,408 20,798 17,315 38,113 1,167,521
Hib & T RiRW 2,000 - 3,460 3,460 5,460

i 5,540 2,585 411 2,996 8,536
EmE~E 17.039.486 1.022.630 234,319 1,256,949 18,296,435
EfmE.
= 4k B HoAl S RS ML 40 FE AR 2,503,915 2,316 119 2,435 2,506,350

' R SR AR 408,894 265,057 < 265,057 673,951
NGBS 18,746 13,453 11,066 24,519 43,265
ZHHES AN 2,620 1) - 1 2,621
PrEam i 7,212 503 556 1,059 8,271
REBEMERBE RN 15,958 = 1,132 1,132 17,090
IR 692,704 103,713 66,837 170,550 B63,254
E£GHFITH 12,628,393 74.074 21,830 95,904 12,724,297
Hit i 22,327 6,843 516 7,358 29,686
ARSI 16,300,769 465,960 102,056 568,016 16,868,785
JMME L5 738,717 556,670 132,263 688,933 1,427,650
CEEFETR (SRIBXEW) 225,654 (112,644) (73,589) (186,233) 39,421
{EHRiE 3,481,729 103,588 24,283 127,871 3,609,600

2022412 H31H

- EBEHE

AEBFHF RBITRTA 109,357 4,503 - 4,503 113,860
il AL R 40,128 52,168 21,030 73,198 113,326
S 367,542 91,602 12,393 103,995 471,537
PSP~ 9,225 1,762 106 1,868 11,003

 ENBEEEA> 404,823 - - - 404,823
R GERRAA 12,880,055 848,826 170,226 1,019,052 13,899,107
TRESHA~ 901,318 27,206 2,604 29810 931,128
ARG 840,271 95,086 - 95,086 935,357

BB R 973,842 38,353 10,304 48,657 1,022,499
HAb s TRIGH 2,042 - 3,312 3,312 5,354
#ib 7,271 4,044 256 4,300 11,571

_EEBEET 16,635,874 1,163,550 220,231 1,383,781 17,919,656
i

(B B A SRS T SRR 2,621,230 6511 8,333 14,844 2,536,074
8 At e B K : 328,572 242,188 2,102 244,290 572,862
N T 14,153 15,238 9,478 24,716 38,860

EILEITY _ 2,494 1 - 1 2,495
7t &R Al 16,916 970 465 1,435 18,351
3t B0 < T B R 14,959 433 - 433 15,392
R U 7 1,004,043 110,364 53317 163,681 1,167,724
BERTHSIES 11,970,722 102,203 53,031 155,234 12,125,956
itk 15,443 1,174 1,507 2,681 18,124
Emafat 15,888,532 479,082 128,233 607,315 16,495,847
RWTIE L8 647,342 664,468 91,998 776,466 1,423,808
CREFETR (SREXSH) 341,191 (272,746) (66,697) (339,443) 1,748

E R 3,560,564 121,637 46,761 168,288 3,728,852
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T
S AR@  RAFART RMETHIARG ATEARDNE &t
2023§12H31H
ERE.
Mg BRI 95,319 2,490 14 2,504 97,823
FHREL T 87,986 29,829 22,606 52,435 140,421
e 438,133 98,773 17,294 116,067 554,200
it SR E 2,340 459 94 553 2,893
ENEEEMAF 477,456 = = = 477,456
R vk 12,891,847 694,760 170,366 865,126 13,756,973
B ek g 674,949 590 29 619 675,568
Lt 589,447 96,909 - 96,909 696,356
HAb AR 1 1,093,385 20,798 17,315 38,113 1,131,498
Hibis TRAEH 2,000 - - - 2,000
Hite 3,724 835 160 995 4,719
EWMES ST 16,366,586 945,443 227,878 1,173.321 17,539,907
ERAAE-
Ed B SR IULTFILRT 2,505,929 10,338 119 10,457 2,516,386
e AP RO {h S R AR 1A 223,555 162,425 - 162,425 385,980
Hirdise 4,764 11,787 11,066 22,853 27,617
ESMA M 7,033 459 533 992 8,025
B B R B =R - - 1,132 1,132 1,132
R 775 821,732 124,901 70,779 195,680 1,017,412
RIS 12,614,434 46,062 19,008 65,070 12,679,504
Hib 5918 370 392 762 £.680
S@HEEt 16,183,365 356,342 103,029 459,371 16,642,736
FATAE & THH 183,221 589,101 124,849 713,950 897,171
CEFETR (SR/EXEH) 220,498 (146,689) (77,319) (224,008) (3,510)
RS 3,499,161 103,344 24,283 127,627 3,626,788

ESH

2022412A31H

eWEe -

e B AR SRR THREA 108,864 4,450 - 4,450 113314
T A B 97,429 28,090 20,963 49,053 146,482
e 372,501 91,602 12,393 103,995 476,496
PrEEmHEs 9,205 958 106 1,064 10,269
TNEESBE® 404,823 - - - 404,823
LTI 12,379,739 B41,759 170,058 1,011,817 13,391,556
TRMEBES 606,929 - 20 20 606,949
gl 838,891 94,825 - 94,825 933,716
HE b ARk 7 940,670 38,353 10,304 48,657 989,327
HbiRE T AR 2,042 - - - 2042
Hitk 4,533 534 172 705 5,238
ST~ ait 15,855,626 1,100,570 214,016 1,314,586 17,170,212
SR,

Ak B B Al S B AL AG TR IR 2,523,357 14,156 8,333 22,489 2,545,846
1) LA AN EL A S AL iRk 170,111 156,799 2,102 158,901 329,012
HATE 2 581 12,630 9,478 22,108 24,689

FTESR B 16,916 958 465 1,423 18,339
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R 7 1,104,008 128,854 56,782 185,636 1,280,644
ELFHFIESF 11,959,695 67,390 51,867 119,257 12,078,952
e 5,161 617 1,372 1,989 7.150
"ﬁmﬁfﬁ%i’r 15.781.829 381,404 130,399 511,803 16,293,632
Eﬂm EERE 73,797 719,166 83,617 802,783 876.580
CEHETR (AR/IAXET) 341,191 (280,283) (66,697) (346,980) (5,789)
_f.%_ﬁi#iﬁ 3560,565 121,202 46,751 168,043 3,737,608

TRIFTARARKGHFEMCAREOHEENDHDRSEBRHARTCERN EMMMRAT . IFHTURES R
B O BT T TR AT B AR MM ER N, LR CEEDMARARATH RS SKEMMTEL,

*#E #iT
S g ‘
RFRBARTCRER)
ER1% 4,435 4127 4,424 4,389
TR1% (4,435) (4,127) (4.424) (4,389)

o+

ST R XA AR 006 AR EE R LR AR, FREEUTESE.
- EFREREEAEARTLTHROMEIL.

- CERERDNE LT HGRN,

- CEEEh T A ML R,

- B R

RAMERERIEARBRGHERESN BT AR LS EART 2T & BUS B AR SRR R R
AREE AT M RENNA . FRANXS MR AR SRENARASHELR.

ARERY—RERAEREORAUR . BFEN R RS VRARNSROE MRS, EHMEITURERTHE . AR08
R,

2023% , ATHGRH LT ERMESFBEMATR. MBERSMEETELABOME X, BFENEEKEARIRLEH
O HE. TERRMREDINE, BAFESLIENTSH L UERENETRENHRFERE.

RS E R A B AR

ARATIGEXEBMNSRAMER . L b QIEFBENR. DN ENER . SFEHES. #RER BAERELMNE LW G
ST AEMEHRIER.

AERENMHPERRAASRARENEARLEZARARARH AR TRYTEE B, BFLEEETHENYIRAF
FIEZER), RLBARGHS-NAPNE HRLSERIFINEM, RERALTTESESKSE, ERNGFESERENRL. &
RAZHBRLRNES AL TRNESEERAZA.

A 55 R IR AT S AP R A MBS M BRI 1 A TR (R R AE
- HNERETOWER, FEES RN~ KT,

- BEHE~AMRE A,

- EWRFSEN 0 Fkh EAEE.

- ERMSEAETY,

AMEAHRESRDETH ERGHUEOHARRETHRE M TERDE. ERHEEALFEERERGTDE. o, BEFRS
BRSO R, MERER. FASEIMBIE TREBARE, EARRENFIRANELRR, KRB RS
TiE MR sE R A

ERWAT. ARBHFFTANSEEFLERAFAMNEMEMKENLTLTERE S, B EERNA R EAIERENS
E-R2AETRREHEE. B, BOEARETERDY, PILEFRORHIGAFHTERRFRST. BLEHRENE
ERIHFLARBRRMTHLSBRERR,
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EMTREAES IR
ASREE M E BRI, DRI MR T = . PR, W Ah b AY 2

AABE R ATREN Bl S RFHSRATHNS S EMESRETHMHLSHHER, AR BERRIREEREORBR
B, EMAEMBTEABEASRNAB RSN BN, ARODTRTEEFRAFFHPEGESHESELMATRR. X
L S5 T RE BN ARAY , DUE AR HI S (S 1 A BN 2 WG (B2 SRR 2R & A RE R T HZ P RS
B4, T20234128310, FEAKMR (BMBEE—FR—F L) ERGHSEFFAEETEITHARFI0MALZT, Hib
ACMAPR G155 ( B4R b Bt R NATF BN, @B S A ER . EH E g SR IeER) AEEmaa
ART1,618.17127T.

ZRARAEHIEIRLE, ARAEGFESUT AP IHATSANHELLMTIRREASRASHHIIFNOT. AR
ARELEER TATMBNLERES TRENSFTETEENES.

A 2023123 E

Eikampurs
WERFHPAROHI - 98,167 199 - - - - - 98,366
i A 928 105,054 13,504 4,190 3,178 18,418 - - 52
fillfig - - 104,300 125,791 252,532 69,379 - - 552002
EJNUR S i 69 - 591184 85,938 408 - - - AT75%
LHrttiinhs 46,936 ~ 384740 350579 1427679 6259123 4688322  7,348229  20,494510
EHUEEEE 175,667 - 10235 B65T 144125 142,080 171530 267015 920,209
gt 1670 - 407 15860 165347 509016 133,740 - 826049
Hfbinie st 14 - 320585 72023 174624 373,379 174346 175046 1,208017
AT AR 5460 - - - - - - - 5,460
Hih 301 6,206 25 41 166 1,063 708 - 8,600
FEESRASLH 231047 209517 1213179 _ 672088 2168050 7073358  5168,646 7790200 24,826,184
FirEaphif
AL EBIERAR - 74,283 20843 454880 1095080 108 - - 2554.164
B b AR - - 20,283 187,539 361528 105,291 7,824 - 691,465
Hfirks - - 16,405 9411 15,893 1,598 140 531 43,978
EHHEMAMH = - - - e 2621 - - 2621
R EREBTEFL - - 12,557 2,976 1615 - - - 17,148
e - 702,687 11,763 39,301 91,813 11,990 5,705 3713 867122
BETHSIEH - - 6B.G84 454448 1370054  B5TI124 4079937 1161856  14.906,103
Hib 7 8,528 3,281 3,869 7,995 4,685 1,39 - 29,760
Ffresnhfan 7 785,498 471816 1152424 3843948 6697417 4995091 1,166,160 19.112.361
Bkt 291040 (675.081) 741363 (480.336) (1.675.880) 675941 173555 6624130 5713823
frEdRIANER
EAMERN LRI - = (95) 69 2 207 62 15 N7
BREMEANTEERTA

WaihA - - 79,050 51007 3103 15,159 - - 455317

B = = (81.038)  (51.278) (316.259) (14,909 = - _(463484)

fTEERTARLHA - - (2.083) (172) (6.099) 457 62 45 (7.790)
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ES 4] 2022512318

T2 mE®
WERFHRPRRTHA - 113881 180 - - - - - 13861
FilE L HR 13,536 90,621 233 - 7.064 - - - 113557
e - - 152 82067 228205 51674 = - 4798
EAEEEBAE - - 049 - - = - - 449N
b 56,325 - 136,345 296176 1639202 6105694 4678750 6950197  19,862.698
LRtERE~ 172,776 3,450 8,604 4351 199,251 191504 108,801 229900 957,797
b 2,024 - 407 32,794 233050 504,644 162,614 - 102553
HibiriRa s 3 - 97,962 96300 372152 340486 123427 91026 1,121,366
EfeRETARH 5,354 - - - - - - - 5,354
Hit 1,261 6.145 45 2,896 1193 63 16 30 11,649
FhEemmEegn 251,279 213,897 766,762 553,744 2880117  7.284.076 5073617  7.271,153 24,004,644
IETERRAR
R B fbemiamfzm - 57,358 5,509 453194 2046777 - - - 2562838
(Bl Rk U EDTEES - - 30315 180677 265007 118,552 24,667 - 533218
#ingg - - 11,560 11,401 13,810 2,058 9% 611 39,626
ZHNERRE 82 - - - - - 213 - 2485

' BB R - - 14,057 1,182 161 - - - 15410
WA i - 1,029,288 6,334 34,951 79918 13735 5,446 2882 1172524
EEFSisE - - 307.008 404234 1230128 6370368 4953985 1092436 14,367,159
Hib 1841 3424 99 26 2677 9,380 571 12 18,130
FFESBAGAT 2023 1000070 _ 374882 1059765 3638478 6523093 4087178  1.095011 18771400
Akt 249256 (876173) 391,880 _ (S0B.021)  (958.361)  760.982 86439 6175242 5323244
fiE&RIANER

_Eamaqﬁnua - - (153) m (297) (127) 04 61 (429)
REREAMTEERTA

REEN - - 193834 115619 404520 7,961 5 - 72200
ReFt - - _(198.386)  (116428)  {411358) (7.634) @ - _(731810)

fiEEBIARNARS - - 2,705) (816) (7.035) 200 g5 61 {10,200)
*iT 20234120317

RERFHRPARGTHER - 97.823 - - - - - - 97,823
FHEL ST 928 139,496 - - = - - - 140,424
i - - 104300 125844 262556 69,379 - - 562079
ENEH BT - - 31184 85.938 408 - - - 477530
BB ALR 45727 - 361,101 46021 1379005  6OM41l 4521756 6914528 19,762,540
ZBUSHA 21,557 - 6492 8655 143838 142,130 169,569 200051 693,192
AR - - 407 15,858 163878 506,061 133,596 - 819,800
HibORE - - 328,433 71,764 167,089 350749 165,764 173654 1,257,453
HME TRIEN 2,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
Hit - 4719 - - - - = - 4719

FeEBE~ AW 70,212 242038 1,191,917 654,080 2116774 7162730 5000685 7,209,133 23,817,569
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2023512F318

Eldh ]
AL R b ERIIFIGT = 76,208 31,217 455,149 2,001,660 108 - - 2564432
R A ek - - 9,857 140632 217618 23,698 - 391805
infie - - 5,707 4,781 16,526 1,598 140 531 28,283
BT - - - - 1,157 - - - 1,157
WM - 825,628 20,094 48,424 105,388 11990 5,795 3773 1,021,000
BRFEFIE - - 36689 147432 13680428 6541807 4081438 1,161,856 14,850,855
#ib - 6,680 - - - - - - 6,680
EEsnhiieg - 908,604 433769 1096418 3701777 6579201 4987373 1166160 18873302
Fkt 70212 (666566) 756,148 (442,338) (1585.003) 583520 103312 6122973  4.5944.267
fIEERI AR
EHEEAN LSBT - - (156) ) {173) 57 65 45 {170)
BEFENNTEERIA
REHA 3 = 77018 47494 303,084 4,064 - - 431660
REkH - - (78918) _ (47.588) _(309,131) (“.122) - - {439,759)
TSR AREHAT = = (2.056) (102) (6.220) (1) 65 45 (8.269)
&7

oSy

20224128318

Ne B RRANT - 113aM - - - - - YR
FilELHER 13,536 132,947 - - - - - - 146483
fihfe - - 115,972 83986 231288 51,674 - - 482920
FEANEEBEWHS - - 4p4an - - - - - 404811
RGN 43,467 - 131,900 282876 1599869 5924930 4613748 6512310 19,109,100
ERUERTS 15,638 - 8,604 42,966 198,263 189,319 108,072 160582 723,445
iR - = A7 32851 20302 593450 162614 - 1022065
bR - - 97,901 05,581 366,328 321,281 112,814 88213 1082118
HpRETRER 2,042 - - - - - - - 2,042
Hi - 2,030 1 2818 298 61 - 0 5,238
B EY 74680 248,201 750,696 540778 2620068 7080715  4807.248 6761135 23091616
Eli ati
E R e TR - 59,483 5.998 456465 2,048,461 1,345 - - 2572752
AT e G - - 9392 113909 143051 54,508 17,601 - 338510
fings - - 2,208 6543 13810 2,058 9% 611 25416
LTS - 1,141,930 11,883 34,962 83.733 13,735 5,446 2852 1204541
ERfAHFES - - 307,034 402561 1,221,700 Ba3BE65 4955724 1092436 14,318,020
Hik - 3,801 91 18 2628 518 B2 12 7.150
FEEERnHEE - 1205214 336606  1,014458 3514383 6410729 4079039  1,095911 18,556,430
Bk 74684 (956923) 423,000  (4736B0)  (885314) 669,986 18209 5665224 4535186
ELRTANER o
FAMENNELERIA - - (20) ] (297) (127) ] 61 (296)
HEFSUMTESRIR

W&ifkA - - 192984 114762 400937 4,036 - - 71278

Wkl - - [195503)  (11563d) _ (407.854) {4.090) - - (1)
fTEEMTRRERA - - (2.629) (879) 17.314) (182) 94 61 (10,849)
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H iR e
AREARTORE. FUHRE. WTRRCERFUERINSESTLERHMASHFFNT.

Z A

202341283180

_ﬁﬁ:‘aﬁ% 33,329 1,585 73,898 210,450 243284 3,040,960 3,603,476
FHBERER 132 300 364 2,541 10 - 3,347
RTRRICE 263 575 785 — - - 1,623
T AE FIE 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
_e.-%r _ 33.737 2,475 76,143 212,991 243,294 3,040,960 _ 3,609.600
2022412310 o - - ' .
HRRIE 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,249 268,101 3,076,368 3,716,738
FHRERBE 5 " - 256 3,442 - = 3,703
R LCE 1,358 1,604 3,323 - - - 6.375
T {2 FHE 208 109 1,461 168 _ + 2,036
&it o 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,850 268,101 3,076,368 3,728,852

#Ar-f@EImE

ATRHRE. FHRS. STRACEAFHEREINSESMREFIIMBE A /T RNOT.

ESr

LA RSS2 S
Tl S

it T - N
2023%12H318
Eam 33,328 1,655 73,898 210,451 249526 3,052,151 3,620,909
FURERER 132 300 364 2,296 10 = 3,102
RITRRICE 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
—mﬂfﬁﬁﬂﬁf 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
_19;*;!' o 33,736 2,475 76,143 212,747 249536 3,052,151 3,626,788
2022551427151731 =] .
REORE 34,671 14,655 73,604 249,250 268,101  3,085368 3,725,739
R RERIDR i 5 - 256 3,197 - - 3,458
HERACE - 1,358 1,694 3,323 - - - 6,375
_;?-'i_if%ﬁiif 208 108 1,461 168 - - 2,036
a0 36,332 16,458 78,734 _ 252615 _ 268101 3085368  3.737.608
5. EMErMEMAGENALNE

S TRA AR SR E 50 R E R 5 LR LB IR0, YREMERTH ERRRN T, K RAHES
B0 Bl 1 A 0 T S T R 4 SR L, il R A A0 TR K PR B ) ST LB 7 5 B3R . 90 0 R T e A b b A S 1
BdE. AKBERRBOGEHEAKSESTETHESEFCENTRPRSENFTEE. FSVNNHSHTAENSFERR
8.

AREEREAEMFREAENKREN R, BETLOWR TRGRBER, ME A1 RIHHITR,
ARAMDHE-BANEUTIATROFEXFHAXBNIESRES RBEFASEZIRTH R ORNTE (KRSiEE).

ARAYNHB_EANEMTRAETBOFEHEA. 5TESY. B2 H A AN E LT L MRS M REM b £ 7%
REFRESF. ARDHESFHL AN ERTFREMSCENERIEL T EMERIE, 5560 RN 0N 05
AMBHSERIE, TEAARARRAERENGIF — B RIEESH AN LRGEE, FEEXGESEYHHET
ek,

FEAM R HF=F RO ST REI N ABAFFA MR LK EHRARMSBEATESH T RORN, FREEBEEEARE
DARYHE. WRMEERAEROBASRITME, SR&E. TeA %, RO AMENTHREA T S8~ & BABHHT
TS, ZESYFFRFXHNFOEARARE . MRFHEARK  RGICE RN LT HHT A SEHE,
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(1) Kl fEitmmEm TR
FERARALMIGHRHEV T AE=1TERIFOT.

ZHHE
R
TTEEME~
CEpETH - 2,288 - 2,288
HEFTETR - 1,281 - 1,281
LSRR AR - - 54,422 54,422
SR
AR5 BMIFA NSRS R4 ML
it B HEshit A S AR SRR~
iz 430 53,014 434 53,878
Rk 77 - 117,890 - 117,890
[HEFE 21 12,539 720 35 13,294
TR ATHIILM > & - 3,743 - 3,743
W TR 9,360 11,204 691,973 712,537
BEEETY - 321 - 321
JEE A HHETHE BE A SRR E
[ i
iz - 203 181 384
BRIt B 14 - 14
oAb A ARIR 3
bt 2,790 791,568 17 794,375
k7 - 373,146 - 373,146
Hibands TRIgH 3,460 - 2,000 5,480
&it 28,579 1,355,392 749,062 2,133,033
M
5w i = & (2,621) (2,621)
fTEEmRn M
CEETETH - (7.197) - (7,197)
FlEfETA = (1,074) 5 (1.074)

&it - (8,271) (2,621) (10,892)
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A

SR
[ bl
CEFTETR - 7,690 - 7,690
FIRETETAR - 3,403 - 3,403
B RCEERAnLASR - - 48,007 48,097
SR
AR ERIFTHSEA S REM A AN K
AT AL MRS~
e 264 B0,831 478 81,573
EFE = 68,507 - 68,507
IR EE 8,736 617 7,215 16,568
TR THEY ™R - - 3,450 3,450
Wi TH 11,224 17,106 731,742 760,072
B - 368 = 368
52 KAt B B bt AL R
e T
% — 576 - 576
B - 14 - 14
HAob AR 4R 3
2 4,934 602,706 a3 607,673
GREES - 414 826 - 414,826
Hih v T RIS 3,354 - 2,000 5,354
&it 28,512 1,196,644 793,015 2,018,171
ERAE
EHERE R - - {2,495) (2,495)
FTeE SRR
CEFTETAR - (15,380) - (15,380)
FETETR - (2,971) < (2,971)
it - (18,351) {2,495) (20,846)

e e
CEHETR S 2,091 - 2,091
flEpmETA - B02 - 802
R R - - 54,422 54,422
SRR
AZHEMFENERAS B N
it AR TR S ARE SR~
#3% - 51,5678 434 52,012
[EEEE - 117,890 - 117,890
Wa TR 9,346 11,204 484,718 505,268
1812 U2 AL THE B B 23t A K iR
oA U
% - 203 181 384
TR s 14 - 14
HAtb R e 5
% - 760,780 - 760,780
Eld e - 370,718 - 370,718
Hibinis T ARG = - 2,000 2,000
&it 9,346 1,315,280 541,755 1,866.381
ERGH
FreEEm i
LTEHFETA - (6,958) - (6,958)
FIBETETR - (1,067) = (1,067)
&it ~ (8.025) = (8,025)
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BB

P T
CEREFETA - 7,648 - 7,648
FIEFTETH - 2,621 - 2,621
IR - - 48,097 48,087
ERE T
HEHBOIFH O ERE SRR AR INE
THE B3 A IR 0 SR o
% - 78,357 481 78,838
BRI - 68,507 - 68,507
MEITA 11,224 17,106 520,684 549,014
$EE A R fHETHE B Eh A S MR
it
iz - 576 - 576
#ArEEERTY - 14 - 14
AL A ARR
% - 578,236 - 578,236
EdTFER - 411,091 - 411,091
HAb s T AL 42 - 2,000 2,042
&it 11,266 1,164,156 571,262 1,746,684
ERtffE
£74 £ 1 o
CEFETER - (15,353) - (15,353)
FRFETA - (2,986) - (2.986)
ait - (18,339) - (18,339)

20234 20224 [, ARAF—EANF_RREMTIRZ AAEARS,
A ARFERA BT AEDWT .

F & ERHT
S assum SeEeMNs RMMREN  RGREIRER  SRASAT

202351518 48,097 742,885 33 2,000 793,015
B = (9,586) (12) = (9,598)
i m 8,277 14,362 - - 22,639
SR (5.392) (63,449) - - (68,841)
WE=EA%Y = (8,437) = 3 (8,437)
MAET

W 3,440 16,606 - - 20,046

Hfth At - 242 (4) = 236
20235128318 54,422 692,623 17 2,000 749,062
Frrama s/l

AR P/ (RE) 3,440 6,003 - - 9,533

ARG E G = 225 (4) = 221
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ZiE

20221818

103 2,000

764,829

45,073 717,653

bt - (15.873) - - (15,873)
1in 9,624 92,615 33 - 102,272
&5n0 (4,614) {58,678) - - (63,292)
MNB=RR#EFH - (3.608) - - (3,608)
MEaETt

W (1,986) 8,846 (102) - 8,758

HibF el - 1,928 ) - 1,927
20224£12531H 48,097 742,885 33 2,000 793.015
FRHEmAS/ RS

AR A (k) (1,986) 1,136 (102) - (952)

HARfhEE K - 1,928 (1 = 1,927

FTERE=BREMTATHMT.
&7 E b

48,097 521,165 - 2,000 571,262
E = - - - =
& 8,217 1,574 = - 9,851
&0 (5.392) (48,920) - - (54,312)
BAB=ZER - 137 - - 137
wmaEEt
l§-1 3,440 11,377 - - 14,817
2023 12H318 54,422 485,333 - 2,000 541,755
FHAaE~/ b,
AR R P/ (R 3,440 1,604 = o 5,044
AR &Y - = = = =
SRHEE
202241518 45,073 563,630 ~ 2,000 610,703
am - - - - -
2N 9,624 5,022 - - 14,646
WHE=ZRREN (4,614) (53,221) - - (57,835)
&t
' §-3 (1,988) 5,734 - - 3,748
20224128318 48,007 521.165 - 2,000 571,262
FHEAHTE/ A
AT R U/ (%) (1.,986) (2,839) = - (4,825)

HAHfbE S
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(2) R RHETRMEBIA
ASE R A R ETH BN S XA NS LA AN EETETFFITTNAERRE. 2anBEREZUIAHEZEAR.

() MERFHPRRGTHRT. FRELHGE. FHES. IANEEHSMES ALFNHFLEN, EARBFR FAES. ZH
(B 0 S T 8 Pt . At 388 7l 7 £ o — £ A ) U A 3Rl B2 S 0 B2 AT

BT N ESu S R EM R EOBME AR E—ENA, BSAGTSHNRERSEREMN. HMm N R A M.

(i) PARiE R

EHAESB AN AMENTHBN T HRA AR, T EiOEFRE, WERARHFELEHFRERRBERNERR
T S SR S S (R AT,

(i) iR TTFRFOELER

BT EHARERRANEZTEREFEARSTORNRHNEFM BETEE. AKENMERAAANENSREN. BEHN
R A MG AR MIETUAT R IEIL R L 597 5k b0 W SRR IE U AT SE R A 2

(iv) BLEFIRE PIFER. B ER M

EEflRE A, Bl FR ARG A S ME R SR R ASILET R, IR 5 EHER R R RIS TR R,

() (iv) P B Fo A (i A S 7 0 5 0 BT 1 (BRI L2 AL

v) EEFTHSIES

i AME T BRI AR MRS 2R USH T ANTHRNWE. ¥ FEERETHRNVX USSR TATHRN MM
. Mo A S 12 125 A9 RIS AR VO RR 0 SR AR IBCEE 5 b Ahuk N i RS LA TR E

TERIIFT BRS04 M 7 8 I B AR R 4 S A -

2023512A31H 202245128311

FHH

ERTHFIES 12,724,297 13,148,371 12,125,956 12,438,951
=47

ERTHEIES 12,679,504 13,104,310 12,078,952 12,393,550
6. WAEIE

AEERTAAEENA R AR RERPE O AEARE MERENZ AR ERR.
- WEREASEFADRTEEIMEENRAER,

- RIEARSEAFFEZEGE N DB B AR HEE.

- REFRENTEEMPZFLSER,

AEAREERTEERERSHEXAES. LERREREEEHARNEENE, RN ERERANEREMBERANER
R, AGTSEEAERELEEESLABLEMERMAAGE, T2023F128310, RIEFRA AT HART19,123.0512
T —RERRHAARTI5698.09ZT. L —RAKBTAART5683.98(Z7x, AAFXEEH11.66%, —RAFTRE
#9.54%, B —B W AT EE H9.54%, KTHEEATHART8,796.04Z5%, — AR AL THEL—HHXBRTMHHART
15420 125, AAFEEH11.52%, —BAAXEEMRL—BHREATEENH41%,

T=. #FEAGERAREM
FRARAGELER AOREEEH,

TH. MEHRzitiE
AARBREF024F4A26RHET A THRTRAHUSRE.

TE. ST ESRERAEL
SHERTHIRRE A (R MR BK) HAF20205 MM KRR N THE . 20235 LR FOEHATHRETIHES,
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OHGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES

I['—EJ_\

Board of Suparvisors

HEE

Board of Directors

e
= Bi=

Senlor Management

I

]

IAE HEHRZE .., IBz)/
(EENLE) (Bwicn) “ Eﬂg ﬁfﬁgﬁru e B e DReRR
CPG cammggfnefrm} oy mmgvmm Publoty Depatmen) mmmmncmmrmJ Department ) Investment Dapartrnent )
| | | T
e TETRZRF) Al 5558 [l (=g S8 B -1 A FESHhRS A
?ﬁ! Eﬁﬁﬁ? Enargy and Waler Rmmms‘ Industry aﬁm H‘Ef\qﬁp ﬂmﬂ Housing and Urban
J J J “, Y
| T I T |
- AN FRER BB TR EANE BEHNTE
mﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ HiE S mﬁ?}ﬁ%m Ty @%ﬁs{sﬁ
mnl::n‘!;?:_nmobw Operations Departmant Hurman Pesowrcos Department Dffica ol the $tasring Group for GPC Dopariari of Panty, Trade Uncn and Yoot
J ) {(?Cmmﬂ)u_amtmﬂmnmn‘ﬂ) wmmwﬂ mmw’mwmm@
]
Fgepuly J
Procumment Center
I i | | |
AT ERA ST J WETS WRE DT
Beljiig Branch 5 Tianin Branch Hebai Branch Sharvd Branch - Inner Mongolio Branch i
| | | | I
HMA ST J PR BUWHT BT
Suzhou Branch Zhajiang Branch Hingbao Branch Anhui Branch Fuiian Brongh
V. J 7 A
[ | T | |
HEAT I"H517 75| E5 E Iib 5 BT
Hunan Branch ) Guangdong Branch Shenzhen Branch ) Guangpa Branch ) Hainan Branch 3
| | I |
MW AT HiRNT SFHEST BT
Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch Tibe! Branch
J i) -
I T I i |
SHE FEH B R A 8 e ”‘{‘f‘é’gﬁ“ fesiens
Reprosentative Office Representative Office Reprosenttive
s 150 e mﬁ.\ouer;vglm ' ln(}wmm fioncas
FERERAS EFERFHEELT EFTIHBHEEAS ERSBEZBRGERLS

Group Subsidiaries

CDB Capilal Co., Lid,

CDB Securitles Ca., Lid,

CDB Financial Leasing Co.,, Lid,
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and Romunecslion

WHEHRE
Baard of Diectors Office
J
| | | | |
SERSINER =it Fhk AU EIREE SRR
Lagal and Complance Finance & Accounting maﬁmmfa: Risk Management Cracht Feviaw Dapartmai
7 S _ . .
I I | | |
s &8s *i‘«ﬁ_:‘ A EEE EREEE RS ﬁﬁ%?&F‘ ap
mfmmm Department PS""“' ”“DW Lml] M"‘wl Assal Preservation Dopartment mu i c, amm
iy S e v »
l l 1 { s
hel ol B PRI 8 T2 RSB IL2 (4 DB
SR ki Gneral Offce Retirod) Staft Dapartnient CDB Globul Finance OB Pty e
y J J J iRt
|
[ I I |
ki BRER BlREE—2 BIRA{E—2 ERATE=S
| Bl R Sl iR | | eneioh
froveim A Orics) J J J J J
I I | I I |
TR KIEST EHHAT BRIHT LigniT AT
UaonngBaneh DeanBe Jlin Branch Helbngung Banch SughaBancn | dongagianch
[ I [ [ | |
E)aT STETSMT WEFRST HRAT AT MAEaT
XamenBaren dangs B | St Barch | QrguaoBarch | Horan g | HosBanen |
I | | | I |
WEDT )1 4347 M 1T =RTT PEm 44T BT
ChorgurgBaeh SchanBuch | GurouBanch Vo B S By GarsuBch |
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LR T

BEIING BRANCH

il LR A ERE 224 AAUSBEEEARMBE
Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Streel,
Xicheng District, Beijing

Bi5(Tel):(010) 63223100

{53 (Fax)(010) 66412282

EE4H(ZIp): 100031

KRIT

TIANJIN BRANCH

Stk : I Bk 0 S IR R e LAK2E R
Add: 26/F, Huanbohal Development Center A, @ Binshul
Road, Hex District, Tianjin

HiE(Tel)(022) 85681234

{§i(Fax).(022) BB355856

F8£R(Zip):300061

HOR A5

HEBE| BRANCH

ikt EREFHERRISHIE HRE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Foad,
Shijlazhuang

Hi&(Tel):(0311) B5288100

{& 7 (Fax):(0311) 85288112

i #(Zip):050051

WWFE R T

SHANXI BRANCH

bk KA EECER2TS

Adtl: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Talyuan
#i5(Tol):(0351) 4037222

& M(Fax)(0351) 4937224

B {R(Zip):030006

AREMT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

stk IR ARSI E M) X H16S

Add: 16 Chilechuan Streat, Salhan District, IHohhat
@iE(Tel):(D471) 3310014

{£ 1 (Fax):(047 1) 3310021

ER 48 (Zip):010098

ILFHT

LIAONING BRANCH

bk SRMEHILEE HEAL1008

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shanhe District, Shenyang
i (Tal(024) 22052075

1% Fi(Fax):(024) 22053671

EiR(Zp):110014

KEHT

DALIAN BRANCH

e RIERPIUEARBS-17SERSRARNSR
Add: 25/F, Imernational Finance Piaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dallan

#iE(Tel):(0411) 82810918

{6 H(Fax):{0411) B2633830

B (Zip): 116001

HHAT

JILIN BRANCH

sedik: e BRI A RI005

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changehun
H7E(Tel):(0431) 85279600

{6 (Fax):(0431) B5270700

R 4(ZIn): 130022

R T

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

Motk : VSRR ML €8 852778

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbel Disfrict, Harbin
HiF(Tel)0451) 53907900

& F{Fax):(0451) 53907808

ER4R(Zip): 150028

LR

SHANGHAI BRANCH

sedt: HETIAMEES

Add: 68 Puming Fload, Shanghai
Si5(Tel)(021) 20266688
{£T{Fax):(021) SB383659
£61R(Zip):200120

HES, {53

JIANGSU BRANCH

Haht: T RTLRPEE2325

Add: 232 Jiangdong Middie Road, Nanjing
Hif(Tel):(025) 83276222

{E£ M (Fax):(025) B3276204
I8i(Zip):210019

AR

SUZHOU BRANCH

ik FEMH AR S ERE2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
&i%(Tali(0512) 67887142

{ZH(Fax);(0512) 67887114

B4 [Dp):215123

HEIT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

Hoht: R T EEERCOS314E

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hantzzhou

HiF(Tell:(0571) B16B6131

{§8(Fax);(057 1) BO778068

BE1(Zip):310020

PEAHT

NINGBO BRANCH

ol TR E R LEsTTS

Add: 577 Halyan North Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
HiE(Tel):(0574) 83572688

16 F(Fax):(0574) B3872100

ER(Zip):31504D

EWRT

ANHUI BRANCH

Htik: SR SR HIL IS GO0

Add: 599 Qlanshan Road, Shushan District, Hefel
HiE(Tel)(0551) 62867889

{6 Ei(Fox):(0551) 62875868

H4(Zip):23007 1

Rt a7

FUJIAN BRANCH

ikt : WA B S TR M AR 1279

Add: 127 Degul Road, Wenquan Street, Gulou District,
Fuzhou

EiE(Tel):(0591) B7856844

{EH(Fax):(D591) 87856408

E3 (Zip):350003

ERT

XIAMEN BRANCH

bl : 0 EEA B RTIR 100 SRl kol ( MW
Fulr) 35-402

Add: 35/F-40/F, Fortune Center, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

HiE(Te:0502) 2304308

1§ (Fax):(0592) 2393111

BB (Zip):361001

HERT

JIANGX| BRANCH

ik : AW SN EEH S AN 1008

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honpgutan District,
Nanchang

EiE(Tel):(0791) 86592323

1§ H(Fax):(0791) 86592333

ERIS(Zip):330038

WFEHT

SHANDONG BRANCH

Metik: HET 2511666 S Mk &M DT

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Genter, 11668 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

HiE(Tel)(0531) B1928100

{6 A (Fax):(0531) B1928282

EF4N(Zip):250014

a7

QINGDAO BRANCH

ledik: W S TE E&FLPH08. NE

Add: 28, 31 Hong Kong Middle Road, Qingdao
HiFE(Tel:(0532) 81978277

1% Fi(Fax):(0532) B1976268

1E#8(Zip):26607 1

AWAT

HENAN BRANCH

Mbkik: #BHI A EKEE2068

Add: 286 Jinshul Foad, Zhengzhou
H1iE(Tel):([0371) 66000888

{& F(Fax):0371) 68000777
E848(2Zip):450008

LT

HUBE]I BRANCH

Hedik - RN B B RilAH088

Add: 308 Youyi Avenus, Wuchang District, Wuhan
Bi&(Tel):(027) 86759777

{5 (Fax):(027) BETS9668

#B4R(Zip):430062

MmT

HUNAN BRANCH

Helk: P HROE AT RBRNES AR

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang Middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

HiF(Tel):(0731) B490GBS51

{5 Fi(Fax)(0731) B4906GI9

M4 (Zip):4 10002

"R

GUANGDONG BRANCH

ik - 7 MRS E WA EIR 100523, 16-2518
Add: 3/F, 16/F-25/F, 100 West Huangpu Road, Tianhe
District, Guangzhou

B1{E(Tel)(020) 38633017

& B (Fax):(020) 38633000

H8(Zip).510627

w7

SHENZHEN BRANCH

Muhik : TR R B E ok = #2003 BiR &R R O A S
2. 182. 192, 28-332

Add: 8/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial Center,
2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futlan District, Shenzhen
&1i%(Tel):(0755) 25985666

{6 BL(Fax).(0755) 25967800

548(Zip):518028

ImCiT v

GUANGXI BRANCH

Mk P E R AN 1405

Add: 149 Minzu Avenue, Qingxdu District, Nanning
HiETel):(0771) 8018114

{6 H(Fax)(0771) 5527233

B4R(ZIp):530028

BEMMT

HAINAN BRANCH

Mok BOHHFEEECRHTIS

Adt: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Iaikou
HiE(Tel):(0898) 68551901

1§ M (Fax):(DB9B) BB551933

IB4R(Zip):570311
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WRESHT

CHONGQING BRANCH

Heht: MEMFILLERATI1S

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongaing
Ei5(Tel):(023) 67858000

{8 T (Fax):(023) 67858114

B34 (Zip):400023

NI4T

SICHUAN BRANCH

idit - REART A E 7 £ 65 1208 A RFLRGT XM
Add: CDB Piaza, 120 Tiamal Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

1% (Tel):(028) 86029998

{57 (Fax):(028) BE029617

R4 (Zip):610041

BT

GUIZHOU BRANCH

ieht: HAFEEFERGCTICEER BESE0-218
Add: 10/F-21/F, Huliin International Plaza, 86 Yanan West
Roud, Guiyang

#1i5(Tel):(0851) BBG51588

{6 Fi(Fax):(0851) B8BS1605

B4 (Zip):550003

=T

YUNNAN BRANCH

bk REATIREE1768

Add; 176 Guanglu Road, Kunming
#5iE(Tel)(0871) 63634094
fETN(Fax):(0871) 63634001

R (Zip):650228

pERE T

SHAANXI BRANCH

Heht : WEMHA—E2SERFAIAITAE

Add: China Davelopment Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
One, Xi'an

BiE(Te):(029) 87660578

{6 (Fax):(029) 87660581

ER1R(Zip):7 10075

HERAT

GANSU BRANCH

ot ZHFRERI7289

Add: 1728 Nanchang Foad, Lanzhou
iE(Te):(0931) BBEEE628

{6 F(Fax):(0931) BAGE23T

HEH(Zip): 730030

EAT

XINJIANG BRANCH

Hoht: SBRAFHPLEIISERFLMITAM
Add; CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
BiE(Tel):(0291) 2335001

15 R(Fax):(0991) 2335002

R 4R{Zip):830002

WET

QINGHAI BRANCH
Mulit: EEHR RS
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
BiE(Te)(0971) 6161980
{5 H(Fax):(0971) 5161900
B4R (2Zip):810001

THMT

NINGXIA BRANCH

Heht: HIHEAEFRELEFTS

Add: 1 Yinflagu North Strest, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
Bi&(Te)):(0851) 5685900

& (Fax):(0951) 5695813

B {Zip): 750004

ERMHT

TIBET BRANCH

thtik: R\ —TRE2B A

Add: 28A Bayl South Road, Lhasa
H{5(Tel)(0B91) BE23869

{5 (Fax):(0891) 6597788
ERIR(Zip):850000

T

HONG KONG BRANCH

Motk FH BRI S EESRpO— 3248

Add: 32/F One International Finance Cenler, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

BiE(Tel):(00852) 28016218

{5 JiFax):(00852) 25304083

FERRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

Utik: 3B FF P EEEA TR 188418 (AL H). 2007
Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Buiding 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,
Sarayat, Gairo, Egypt

Hix(Tef:(002-02) 27507406

BIRERMCTAL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW
Yotk IR RIGHTEREERAINS
Add: 1 Novalorov St., Moscow, Russian Federation
&i5(Tel):(007-495) 9884612

BHmRSARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE
JANEIRO

Stk BEBHAR ST ETLINSSEA S5 210E
Add; 10/F, Presidene Vargas St., No.955, Central District,
Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

BiE{Tol):(0055-21) 981796921

PTG g I

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
dbhik: SHEERA MG SERE S EREEIL
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tluna, Caracas Venezuela

ez

REFRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
Huhk: EE{CHHH TP EHE0S

Add: 60 Gresham Street, Londan, EC2V 788, UK
375 {Tel): (D044) 2079338702

BRfefL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
Ik EFHARTRLELSFRE

Add: Saysetiha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital of
Lao PDR.

BiE(Tel):(0D856)-20-56791136

FEE IR

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA
fehh: EFEFIRIBENLENT S RAN 168212
Add: 21/F, 16 Dostyk Street, Astana, Kazakhstan

N
~i

iR RL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
stk BIRBIRBIRE IR R RS AHT70S
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus
#iE(Tel)(D0375) 444559461

FhANEfCFAL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

itbds: EDJE RTR AN A0 LA TS H Sopo Del KMAE22[R
Add: 22/F, Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

#1iE(Te)):(0D062) 02150808518

BRARLE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

Medik - BARTE IR A L HBEHHRE053R

Add: 3/F, 20 Bond Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia
2i%(Tel):(0061) 421838660

ik &AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN BUDAPEST
bt @ FH A EBIGTE S ETE

Add: 1054 Budapest, Szabadsag tér 7.
Hi&(Te):(0036) 707428425

BEFERAREELE

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

Ml kT AERE SR AHZOSEREPLCENR
Add: 9/F, Block C, Financial Street Center, No.BS,
Financial Strest, Xicheng District, Beljing
@i%(Tel):(010) BA308ATT

Ef#5(Zip): 100033

EFFEssRAAMRLE

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

Juhe: dERTH AR E BRI A0S

Add: 28 Fuchengmanwal Strest, Xicheng District, Befjing
Hi(Tel)(010) 88300999

ERG(Zip): 100037

EiREMARRGERAE

CDB FINANCIAL LEASING CO., LTD.

spdk: RYIFIREE MR = #2003 BiASBEPOANR
2. 7. 8,17, 21-27, 3482

Add: 2/F, 7/F, B/F, 17/F, 21/F-27/F, 34/F, CDB Financial
Center, 2008 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Sherzhen
§E(Tel):(0755) 23980999

{§ H(Fax):(0765) 23980800

648 (Zip):518038

fIELEESHALE

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

Molb: LT E R E WA A R 2B S H B Repa R
E10-118

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Canter, 28 Fuxingmennel Street, Xicheng District, Befjing
4135 (Tel):(010) 59892900

1§ Fi{Fax):(010) 59566959

B4R [ZIP): 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of China Development Bank
(incorporaied in the People's Republic of China with limiled kability)

2024-ZAB0AT

OPINION

Wae have audiled the consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank"} and its subsidiaries {the "Group©) set out on pages 7 to 121, which comprise
the consolidated statememt of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated income stalement, consolidaled statement ol comprehensive income,
consalidated statement ol changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated tinancial statements, Including a
summary of signilicant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated linancial posilion of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS")
Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (*IASE").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audlit in accordance with Intarnational Standards on Auditing (*ISAs”) Issued by the Intemational Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our
responsibllifies under those standards are lurther described in the Auditor's Responsibillties for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Stalements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group In accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”) issued by International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants, and we have fulfillied our olher elthical responsibillties In accordance with the Code. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for ouwr opinian,

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most signilicance in our audit of the consoliciated financial statements of the current period.
Thesa matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statemeants as a whole, and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matlers,

Key audit matters |dentilied In our audit are summarised as follows:
*  Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances 1o customers al amortized cost, loan commiimants and tinancial guarantee contracts;
+  Consalidation of structured entities.
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Measurament of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's gross carrying amount of loans and
advances to customers at amorlized cost recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position amounted to AMB14,886.57 billion with a credit loss allowance
ol AMBB96.25 billion. The total exposure of loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts was RMB3,609.60 billion, for which a provision of RMB20.16
billion was recognized. The credit impairmen! losses on loans and advances 1o
customers al amortized cost, loan commiiments and financial guarantea contracls
recognized In the Group's consolldated Income statement for the year ended 31
Dacember 2023 amounted to AMB79.94 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances 1o customers al amorfized
cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantoo
contracts, as ol 31 December 2023 represented management's best estimate of
expectad credit losses ("ECL") at that date under Inlernalional Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Fimancial Instruments.

Management assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances 1o customers
at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guaranteg contracts has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applied a three-stage
impairment model 1o calculate their ECL. Management assessed the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking Information and using the risk
parametar moded that incorporates key parameters, including probability of default,
lass given default, exposure at defaull and discount rates,

The measurement models for ECL involved significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar m'edll‘.;isk characteristics,
selection of appropriate model and determination of relevant key measuramarit
parameters;

(2) Determination ol the criteria for significant increase In credit risk (*SICR),
delault or credit-impalred;

Adoption of economic indicators, economic scenarios and iheir waights for
forward-lpoking measuremeant;

The estimated luture cash flows for loans and advances 1o customers at
amartized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established governance process and controls aver the measurement of
ECL.

The Group developed complex models, employed numerous parameters and
oate inputs, and applied significant managemen! judgments and assumptions
In measuring the ECL, and the amounts ol ECL and provisions estimated are
significant. These reasons resulted in this matier being identilied as a key audit
mattar.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(13)(f), Note 4(1), Note 14, Note 21,
Note 36 and Note 50{2) to the Group ‘s consolidated financial statements,

&)

(@)

We evaluated and tested the effoctiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the measurement of ECL for the loans and
advances, loan commitments and financtal guaranteo contracts which comprised:

(1) Internal controls over ECL models, including the selection, approval and
application ol methodologies of models, and the ongoing monitoring and

opfimization of such models;

{2) Internal controls rolated to the review and approval of the portiolio
segmentation, model selactions, parameters defermination, the criteria for
SICR, the definition of default and credit-impaired, the use of forward-looking
scenarins and the judgement of risks from major uncertainties;

(8) Inernal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs used by
the models;

(4) Internal controls relating 1o estimated future cash flows and calculations of
prasant values ol such cash llows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost In Stage 3:

(8) Internal conltrals over the information systems for ECL measurement.

The substantive procedures we performed Include:

(1) We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed tho
reasonableness of the portiolio segmentation, model selection, key
parameters estimation, significant judgements and assumptions In relation
to the models. We examined the ECL calculation on a sample basis, to
validate whether or not the ECL calculation reflest management's modelling
methodologies.

We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-financial
information, relevant external evidence and other faclors of the borrowers, to
assess the appropriateness ol managemen! ‘s Identification of SICR, defaulls
and credit-impaired loans.

(@) For lorward-looking measurement, wo reviewed tha basis management used
for determining the economic Indicators, number ol scenarios and relative
weightings, assessed the reasonableness of forecasted econaomic Indicatars,
economic scenarios and relevant weightings.

We examined key data inputs to the ECL models for selactad samples,
including historical data and data al the measurement date, 10 assess their
accuracy and compleleness. We also lesled the major data transfers between
the ECL calculation engines and relevant Information systems, to verity their
accuracy and complelensss.

(8) For loans and advances to customers In Stage 3, we tested on a sample
basis on the credit loss allowance computed by management based on
estimated luture cash flows and discount rates wilh raference 1o financial
information of borrowars and guarantors, the latest collateral valuations, and
ather infarmation including forward-looking lactors, etc.

@

“@

Consolidation of structured entities

Structured entities primarily included asset-backed securities, assets management
plans and funds, etc., that were issued, initiated, managed and invested by the
Group. As at 31 December 2023, total assets ol the consolidated structured
entities and unconsolidated structured entities, Issued, initiated and managed by
the Group, amounted to AMB12.52 billlon and AMB146.92 blllion, respectively.
In addition, as at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of unconsolidated
struttured enlities invested by the Group which were issued, initiated and managed
by other institutions included in the consolidated statement ol financial position
amounted 1o AMB17.786 billian,

The Group evaluated the following aspects to determine whether the above

strustured entilies need lo be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements:

= its power over these struciured entities;

* ils exposure to varisble returns from its invalvement with these structured
antities;

* iis ability lo use its power to affect the amoun! of its varable returns from
these structured entitles,

The signilicant judgement exercised by management In assessing whether the
Group had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such
structured entities resulled in this matter being identified as a kay audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(4), Nole 4(2) and Note 45 to the
Group's consolidated financlal statements.

For different types ol structured antities, we parformed the following tests:

(1) Evaluated and tosted the effectiveness ol the design end operation ol the
Group's intornal controls related to the Group's assessment on whether it
controls a structured entity;

(2) Assessed the Group's contraciual rights and obligations in light of the
lransaction slructures, and evalualed the Group's power over tha structured

entities through reviow of related contracts and agreoments;

(3) Performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, Including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset managament lees earned as the asset manager or service provider,
the retention of residual income, and, If any, the liquidity and other suppon
provided to the structured entities;

Assessed whether the Group acted as e principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of decision-making authority of the structured entities,
the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its role as the assels
manager or service provider, the Group's exposure to variabllity of returns
from Its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by other
parties in the structured antities.

@)
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information Included in the Group’s 2023 Annual Report, but does not include the
consolld financial s and our audlitor's report thereon.

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statemants does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of ihe consolldated financial siaterments, our responsibility is 10 read the other information and, in doing so, consider whather the other infarmation
is matertially Inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or cur knowledge obtalned in fhe audit or otherwise appears 1o be malerially misstaled,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement ol this other informiation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
raport in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolideted financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of consolidated financial statemants that are lree from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

In praparing the consolidaled financial statements, management s responsible for assessing the Group's abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters refaled to going concern and using ihe going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 10 ceasa oparations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible lor overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or arror, and 10 issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high lovel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materlal Il, individually or in
the agaregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ol users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise prolassional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
* Idemify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidaied financial statemaonts, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is highar than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovarride of intarnal
control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the ciroumstances.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropristeness ol management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a matorial
uncertainty exists related 10 events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's abliity to continue as a going concemn. I we conclude that a material
uncerfainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor's repor 1o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, I such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date ol our auditor's report. However, future events or condilions
may cause the Group lo cease 1o conlinue as a going concern.

=  Evaluate the overall presantation, structure and content ol the consolidated financial statemonts, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
stalements represent the underlying transactions and evenlts in a manner thal achieves fair presentation.

*  QObtain sulliclent appropriate audit evidence regarding the linancial information of the entfities or business activities wilhin the Group 10 express an opinion on the
consolitated financial statements. We are responsible far the direction, supervision and parformance aof the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinien.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any

significant deficiencles in internal control that we idantity during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have camplied with ralavant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related sateguards,

From the matiers communicaled with those charged with governance, we determine those matiers that were ol most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial

statamenis ol the curreni period and are therelore the key audil matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thal a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences ol

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benelits of such communication,

The engagemeant partner of the audit resulting in this independent auditor ‘s report is Znu Jiandi.

BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghal, the People's Republic of China
26 April, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise slaled)

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 7 642,040 633,280
Interest expense 7 {481,727) (462,970)
Net interest income T 160,313 170,310
Fee and commission income 8 1,450 2,410
Fee and commission expense 8 (920) (806)
Net fee and commission income 8 530 1,504
Nel trading and loreign exchange gain 9 13,083 40,920
Nel (loss)/gain on derecognilion of debt instruments al amorlizad cost (186) 32
Dividend income 10 18.046 11,382
Net (loss)/gain on investment securities 1 (61) 159
Other income, net 12 10,437 B,437
Operating income 202,162 232,744
Share of profit of associates and joint venlures 69 345
Operating expenses 13 (18,190) (17.485)
Cradil impairment losses 14 (B0,089) (115,426)
Other impairment losses on assets (1,575) (3,031)
Prolfit before income tax 102,377 a7,147
Income lax expense 15 (14,960) (12,807)
Profit for the year 87,417 84,340
Altributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 85,283 82,728
Non-controlling interests 2,134 1,612
87,417 84,340

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions ol Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

87.417 84,340

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will nol be reclassilied subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits cbligation 118 22
Net (loss)/gain on invesiments in equily instruments through other comprehensive income (100) (1186)
Subtotal 1B (94)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange diflerences on translalion of loreign operations 1,416 4,509
Net (loss)/gain of debt instruments al lair value thiough other comprehensive income 7177 (2,492)
Others (233) 1,384
Subtotal 8,360 3,401
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8,378 3,307
Total comprahensive income far the year 95,795 87,647
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders af the Bank 93,598 85,120
Non-controlling interests 2,197 2,527
Total 95,795 87,647

The accompanying noltes lorm an integral part ol these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As al 31 December

Assels

Cash and balances with central banks 16 98,366 113,860
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 143,422 113.326
Placements with banks and ather linancial institutions 1B 544 247 471,537
Derivalive financial assets N 19 3.569 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 477,525 404,823
Loans and advances (o customers 21 14,244,743 18,899,107

Financial Investmeants

Financial assels at lair value through profit or loss 22 902,061 931,128
Debt instrumants al amortized cost 23 700,985 935,357
Financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive income 24 1,172,981 1,027,853
Investments in associales and joint ventures 25 522 458
Praperty and equipment 26 134,310 123,008
Deferred lax assets 27 192.263 174,366
Other assels 28 39,528 37,167
Total assets 18,654,522 18,243,083
Liabilities
- Deposils lrom banks and other financial institulions 29 2,506,350 2,536,074
Borrowings from govarnments and financial institutions 30 673,951 572,862
Placements lram banks AN 43,265 38,869
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 32 2,621 2,495
Derivative financial liabilities 19 821 18,351
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 17,000 15,392
Due to customers 34 B63,254 1,167,724
Debt securities issued 35 12,724,297 12,125,956
Currenl lax liabllities 25,861 43,434
Deferred tax liabilities 27 6,589 B,136
Other liabilities 36 103,243 108,209

Total liabilities 16.974.792 16,637,502
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 Dacember

Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 182,650 182,650
Investment revaluation reserve 39 (7,548) (14,624)
Surplus reserve 40 220,477 214,825
General reserve 40 278,378 260,425
Currency translation reserve 2.487 1,128
Other reserve 4 321 398
Retained earnings 42 545,728 513,776
Total equity atiributable to equity holders al the Bank 1,652,741 1,579,826
Non-controlling interesis 43 26,989 25,755

Total equity 1,679,730 1,605,581

Total liabilities and equity 18,654,522 18,243,083

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated linancial statements are signed on its behall by:

Executive Vice President,

in charge of the finance function Had ot Fioansa

Chairman President
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise slated)

Year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities

Praofit belore incoma tax 102,377 97,147

Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 81,664 118,457
Depreciation and amortization 7,963 7.432
Interest expense for debt securities issued 387,149 376,594
Interes! expense for borrowings Irom gavernments and financial institutions 2171 11,915
Interast income far invesiment securities (59.864) (60,841)
Interes! income arising rom impaired loans and advances 1o cuslomers (3,465) (848)
Met gain/(loss) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profil or loss 5127 14,184
Nel (loss)/gain on invesiment securities 247 (1,204)
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment, intangible assets and (455) ;.;g;

other long-term assels

Net foreign exchange loss (20,952) (50,158)
Share of profit of associate and joint ventures (69) (345)
Dividend income (167) (129)

Subtotal 520,726 511,609

Nel change in operaling assets and operating liabilities:

Net decrease in balances with central banks and deposits with banks and

other financial instilutions il I

Nel (increase)/decrease in linancial assels held under resale agreements (469) 6,879
Nel decrease in financial assets measured al fair value through prolit or loss 31,566 65,998
Nel increase in loans and advances lo customers (408,620) (1,118,929)
Nel increase in placements with banks and olher financial institulions (55,263) (86,772)
Nel decrease in olher operating assels 79,070 136,176
Ni:l;c;?c{;:::::ﬁrﬁzm ;:5 due lo customers and deposils from banks and (339,545) 212,623
Net increase/(decrease) in placemenis from banks 51,111 (27,393)
Net increase/(decrease) in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 1.672 (5,821)
Nel decrease in other operating liabilities {47,823) (44,888)
Sublotal (658,890) (822,354)
Income tax paid (56,486) (23,743)

Net cash outflows from operating activities {194,650) (334,494)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounlts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise staled)

Year ended 31 Decamber

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal/redemption of debl instruments at amortized cost and

- financial assels at lair value through other comprehensive income 11654254 1,006,027
Cash received fram returns on invesiment securilies 66,101 65,374
Cash ieceived from other investing activilies 2423 6,416
Cash received from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates - 280
e e e e s pasm ooy

—Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment, intangible assets and (21,551) (14,974)

other long-term assets
Net cash inflows from investing activities 137,601 19,750
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debl securities issued 2,377,639 2,631,402
Cash received Ito:n—b;rrowinga from govarnments and other insfitutions 102,536 72,297

——Cash received/(paid for) from other linancing aclivities 1,458 533
Transactions with nan-cantrolling interests (365) (437)
Cags: vz:::i“ :;;e::dy?:‘r:‘slzrs'clnil;:::zcuritles issued and borrowings from (1,898,590) (2,098,725)
Cash paymenl for inlerest on fiet.)t securilies issued and borrowings from (307,351) (373,420)

governments and other institutions
Dividends paid (12,018) (19,740)
Olher cash received related to linancing aclivilies (1,714) (1.998)
Net cash inflows from financing acltivities 171,595 209,912
_;fect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7,416 14,834
Net decrease In cash and cash equlvnl;;s_ o 122,052 (89,998)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 666,383 756,381
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - a4 788,435 66,383
Nel cash flows from operating activilies include:

N Interest received 581,332 560,348

Interest paid (73,041) (74,163)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial slalements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise staled)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formetly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994, Approved by the State Council
of the People's Aepublic of China (the "PRC"), China Development Bank was
converted into a joint stock corporation an 11 December 2008, established
Joinly by the Ministry of Finance (the *"MOF") and Central Huljin Investment Lid.
(*Huijin"), and renamed as China Development Bank Corpaoration,

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the National Financial Regulalory
Administration (the “NFRA’, the former the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commissian) and after completing the review by and registration of
corporale changes wilh the State Administiation of Business and Commerce,
China Development Bank Corporalion changed ils name lo China Development
Bank, and changed its form of organization from a joint slock corporation
to a limited liability company. Alter these changes, the Bank cperales under
business license No. 9111000000001B4548 issued by Beljing Administration of
Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and financial institution license No.
GODOTH111000001 issued by the NFRA on 13 June 2017. The registralion of
corporale changes does not affect the rights and obligations of the Bank. After
the changes, the Bank assumes all \he assels, credilor’s rights, debts and
businesses of the former China Development Bank Corporation,

Commilted to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and ils subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”) align
their business focus with China's major medium- and long-lerm economic
development strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank
for medium and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so
as lo raise and channel economic resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic
industnes, pillar ndustries, public services and management,

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional
development;

- Programs vital for naticnal competiliveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufactwing, and the transformation
and upgrading of traditional industries:

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverly alleviation, student
Ioans, and inclusive finance;

- National slralegies, including those in science and lechnology, cullure,
and people-to-people exchange;

- Imernational coopetation, including the Belt and Road Initiative,
industrial capacily and equipment manulacturing projects, infrastructure
connectivity, energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises "Going
Global";

~ Initiatives that support China's development needs and economic and
financial reforms; and

- Other areas as mandaled by and aligned with national development
siralegies and policies.

The head office and domestic bianches of the Bank and its subsidiaries
registered in the Mainland China are referied to as the “Domestic Operations”,
Branches and subsidiaries iegistered oulside of the Mainland China are
referred to as the ‘Overseas Operalions™.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL-REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2023 relevant to and adopted by the Group
The following amendments have been adopled by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 Dacember 2023;

(1) Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
(@)  Amendments lo IAS 8

(3)  Amendments to |AS 12

(4) IFRS 17 and Amendments

Disclosure of Accounlting Policles

Delinition of Accounting Estimates

Deierred Tax related o Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
Insurance Contracls

The adoption of the above amendmenls does not have any significant impact on lhe operaling resulls, financial position and comprehensive income of the

Group,
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2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yel effective and have not been adopted before their
effective dates in 2023

i

(2

(3

S

—

—

(1_} Amendments to 1AS 1

Classilication of Liabililies as Current or Non-current

1 January 2024

(2)  Amendments ta IAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

1 January 2024

(3)  Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

1 January 2024

(4)  Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

(5)  Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(6) Amendments la IFRS 16

Sale of Contribution of Assets belween an Investor and
its Assaciate or Joint Venture

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

1 January 2025

Effective date has been deferred indefinitely

1 January 2024

The adoplion of Ihe above slandards, amendments and interprelations will have no material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable fulure.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consislently applied 1o all the years presenled, unless otherwise
slaled,

Accounting period
The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consclidaled financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("1ASB").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis exceplt fer certaln financial instruments thal are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideralion given In exchange for assets and thal is received (or
in some circumstances the amount expected o be paid) wilh respect to
liabilities.

The preparation of linancial statements under IFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity.
or areas where assumplions and eslimates are significanl to lhe
consalidaled financial stalemenls are disclosed in Note 4,

(4) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and enfilies (including subsidiaries and structured entities)
controlled by the Bank and ils subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Bank:

- has power aver lhe investee;

- s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
Ihe investee; and

- has Ihe ability to use its power (o alfect ils returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it conlrols an investee if facts and
circumstances indicale that there are changes to one ar more of the three
elements of canirol listed above,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obiains conlrol over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specilically, income, expenses and cash llows of a subsidiary scquired
o1 disposed of during the year aie included in the consolidated income
stalament and lhe consolidated statement of cash flows from the date
the Bank gain control until the date when (he Bank ceases to conirol (he
subsidiary. The Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including
those controlled through investment entity subsidiaries.

A struclured entity is an entily that has been dasigned so thal voting
or similar rights are nat the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entily, such as when any voling rights relale 1o administrative tasks
only and the relevanl aclivilies are direcled by means ol contractual
arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of ather comprehensive income are
altributed to the equity holders of the Bank and lo the non-controlling
interests. Total comprahensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
equity holders of the Bank and 1o the non-controlling inlerests even if this
results in the non-controlling Interests having a delicil balance.

When necessary, adjusiments are made to the financial slatements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gain on liansactions
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized loss Is also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transterred assels.

Changes in the Group's ownership inferests in subsidiaries that do not
resull in the Group losing contral over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equily ransaclions. The carrying amounls of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to rellect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, Any difference belween the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recagnized directly in equity and
altributed to the equity holders of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognized in ptafil or loss and is calculaled as the difference between
(i) the aggregale of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying emount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relalion lo that subsidiary are accounted for as
If the Group had directly disposed of the related assets of liabilities of the
subsidiary (.e., recognized in the consolidated income slatement). When
the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at thal date and the falr value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.



(5) Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associale is an enlity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operaling policy decisions of the inveslee bul does not conslitute control
or joint control over those policies.

A Joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parfies that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint cantrol Is the contractually agreed sharing of contral
ol an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing contral,

The results and assets and liabililies of associates and joint venlures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity melhod of accounting, Under the equily method, an investment in
an associale or a joint vemnure is initially recognized in the cansolidaled
statement of financial posilion at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an asscciate or a joinl venlure,
any excess ol (he cosl of the Investment over the Group's shaie of lhe
net fair value of the Identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carying amount of
the investment, Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assels and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessmenl, is recognized immedialely in the consclidaled income
statement in the period in which (he investment is acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venlure is adjusled therealler lo
recognize the Group's share of the prolil or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of
loss of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interast in that
associale of the joint venlure (which Includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form par of the Group's nel investment in the associale or
the joint venture), the Group disconlinues recognizing its share of lurther
loss. Additional loss is recognized only to the extenl hal the Group has
incurred legal or consiruclive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture,

The Group disconlinues Lhe use ol the equity method from the date when
Ihe investment ceases lo be an associale or a joint venlure, or when
the investmenl is classilied as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or former Joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial assel, the Group measures he retained interest at
fair value at thal dale and the fair value is regarded as ils fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference belween lhe
carrying amount of the associate or the joint venture at the date the equity
melhod was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained Interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest in the assoclate
or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associale or the joinl venlure. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to thal associate or the joint venture on the same basis
as would be required il thal associate or the joint veniure had directly
disposed of the relaled assels or liabililies. Therefore, il a gain or loss
previously recognized in olher comprehensive income by that associate or
the joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassilies the gain or less from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjusiment) when the equity
methad is discontinued, excepted for equity instrument designated as fair
value through other comprehensive,

When a group enlily ransacts wilh an associate or a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or conlribution of assets), profits and loss resulting
from the transaclions with (he associale or joint venlure are recognized
in the Group's consalidated financial statements only lo the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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(6) Revenue recognition

(7

(8

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts recelvable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales relaled taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for dilferent nature of revenue are disclosed below.

(a) Inlerest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the eflective interest rate 1o the
gross carrying amount of linancial assets, excepl lor:

~  Purchased or originated credit-impaired (*POCI") linancial assels, the
Group calculates the credil-adjusled effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of lhe financial assel instead
of iIs gross carnying amount and incorporates the impact of expected
credil loss in eslimated fulure cash llows.

- Financial assets that are not "POCI' but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3'), for which inlerest revenue is calculated
by applying the effeclive interast rale o their amoilized cost (i.e,, nel
of the expected credit 1oss provision).

The effective inlerest rate is the rate thal exaclly discounts eslimated
future cash payments or 1eceipts through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial
assel (i.e.. Its amortized cost before any impairmen! allowance) ot to the
amorlized cost of a financial liability, The calculalion does nol consider
ECL and includes ltansaclion costs, premiums or discounts and fees and
points paid or received that are integial 1o the efleciive interest rate,

(b) Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognized when Ihe service is provided,

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for
those designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are
recognized within “Inlerest expense” in the consolidated income statement
using the effeclive interest methad.

Foreign currency transactions
(a) Funcllonn! and presentalion currency

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (*RMB”).
Items included in the financial statements of eacl of the Group's Overseas
Operations are measured using lhe curency of the primary economic
environment in which the enlity operates. The presentalion currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are lranslated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the Lansaclions,
Forelgn exchange gain and loss resulting from the setlement of such
transaclions and from the lranslation al year end exchange rales of
monelary assets and ligbilities denominaled in foreign currencies are
recognized in the consolidated income stalemeant.

Changes in the fair value ol monelary assels denominated in foreign
currency classified as fali value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") are analyzed between translation dilferances iesulting from
changes in the amoitizad cost of the monetary assets and olher changes
in the carrying amounl. Translalion differences related to changes in the
amortized cost aie recognized in the consolidated income statement,
and other changes in the cairying amount aie recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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Non-monelary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost
in foreign currencies are ranslated using the foreign exchange rates at
Ihe date of the transaction. Non-monelary itlems that are measured al fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined, Translation differences on assels
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as pan of lhe fair value
gain or loss. For example. translation dillerences on non-monetary assels
and liabilties such as equities held at falr value through prefit ar loss
are recognized in profit or loss as pant of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assels such as equities classified
as FVTOCI are recognized in olher comprehensive income.

{¢) Translalion of financial slatements in foreign currency

The resulls and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinllalionary economy) Ihal have a funclional
currency different [rom AMB are ranslated as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of linancial position
presented are \ranslaled al the closing rale al the date of Lhat
statement of financial position; except the retained earnings, other
itemns in equity holders’ equity are translated al the rate prevailing at
the date when they occurred;

- Income and expenses for each income statement and statement ol
comprehensive income are (ranslated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when lhe items occurred; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
camprehensive income.

Taxation
Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax.

(a) Current income lax

Current income tax is the expected lax payable on the laxable income
for the year. The fax currenlly payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from prefit before income tax as reported in lhe
consalidated income statement because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deduclible in other years and items thal are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax Is calculated
using tax rates thal have been enacted or substanlively enacled by the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Deferred income lax

Delerred income tax is recognized on temporary dilferences belween the
carrying amounts of assets and liabililies in the consolidated financial
stalements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable prolit. Deferred tax liabililies are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences. Delerred tax assels are generally
recognized for all deduclible temporary differences o the extenl that
it is probable that laxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be ulilized. Such deferred tax assels
and liabllities are not recognized il the lemporary difference arises from
the initial recognilion (other than in a business combinalion) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction thal alfects neilher the taxable profit nor the
accounting profil and at the time of the transaclion does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temparary dilferences,

Deferred lax liabllities are recognized for taxable temporary dilferences
associated with invesimenis in subsidiaries and assaciates, and interesis
in joint ventures, except where Ihe Group is able 1o conltrol the reversal of
the temporary difference and il is probable that the temporary diflerence
will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure, Deferred tax assels arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized lo the extent that it is probable that (here
will be sufficient 1axable profits against which 10 ulilize the benefits of the
temparary differences and they are expected lo reverse in the loreseeahle
future,

The carrying amount of defeired tax assels is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent thal it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profils will be avallable to allow all or part of the
asset to be ulllized.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offsat when there is a legally
enforceable right 1o set off current ax assets against currenl tax liabllities
and when lhey relate lo income laxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

(10) Employee benefits

Employee benelils are all lorms of consideration given and other relevant
expendilures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for tarminalion of the employment conlracts. These benelits
include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benelits,

(a) Short-lerm employee benefils

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the
Group recagnizes the short<lerm employee benefils payable for those
sewvices as a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as
expenses in |he consolidated income statement. Short-lerm employee
benelits include salaries, bonuses, staft wellare, medical insurance,
amployment injury insurance, matemity insurance, housing funds as well
as labor union fees and stall educalion expenses,

{b) Post-employment benefils

The Group's post-employmenl benefils are primarily the payments for
basic pensions and unemployment inswance related lo government
mandaled social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established, The group operales various posl-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined caoniribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemplayment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period In which
the related payment obligation is incurred,

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches
("Domestic Inslilutions”) parlicipate in an annuily scheme esiablished by
the Bank (the "Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity confributions with
reference to employees' salaries, and such contributions are expensed in
{he consolidated income statement when incurred,

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and posi-retiremenl
healthcare benafit to the retirees ratired on or before 31 December 2011,
The entitlement ta the benelits is conditional on one or more factors such
as age, years of service and compensation,

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefilt pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefil obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligalion is calculated annually
using the projected unil credit method. The present value of the defined
baneiit obligation i1s determined by discounting the eslimated futwe cash
outllows using interest rates of RMB freasury bonds Ihal have terms to
malurily approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
Diflerences arising from changes in assumptions and eslimates of the
present value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when incured.

{c) Early retiremenl benefils

Early retirement benefits have been paid lo those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefil payments are made from the date of
eatly retirement lo the normal relirement date.

The accounting lreatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance
with termination benelits as detlermined in 1AS 19, The liability is
recognized lor the early retiremenl benefil paymenls from the dale
of early refirement to the normal retirement date when ihe criteria for
recagnition as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in
the consolidated Income slalement. Dilferences arising from changes
in assumplions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are
recognized in the consolidaled income statement when incurred.



(11) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are shorl term and highly liquid assels,
which are readily convertible inlo known amounis of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call wilh banks and other financial
instivutions and other short-term and highly liquid invesiments with original
malurities of three months of less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fali value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaclion belween markel participants
in the principal markel (or in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market) at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in aclive markets, the determination of
fair values af linancial assels and linancial liabilities is based on quoted
market prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markels, fair
value Is determined using appropriale valuation techniques. Valualion
techniques include the use ol recent transaction prices, discounted
cash flow analysis, option pricing model and other valuation techniques
commonly used by markel participants.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs te the fair
value measuremenls are observable and the significance of the inpuls to
the fair value measurement in ils enlirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assels or liabilities:

= Level 2 inputs olher than quoled prices hat are abservable for the
assel o liability, eilher directly or indirectly;

-~ Level 3: inputs for the asset or liabilily lhat are nol based on
observable market data.

(13) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to lhe contractual pravisions of the instrument,

(a) Classification of financinl assels

Financial assels are classilied on the basis of the Group's business model
for managing lhe assel and the cash flow characteristics of the assels:

i) Amortized cost ("AC"). Financial assets al amorlized cost primarily
include balances with central banks, deposils wilth banks and olher
financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances lo customers al amorlized cosl, debt instruments al
amortized cost and other receivables.

i) FVTOCI. Financial assets measured al fair value through other
comprehensive income include debl securities, and equily
insltuments designated as fair value through other comprehensive
income which are not held for rading purpose.

fili) Fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL). Financial assels measured
at fair value through profit or loss primaiily include held-for-tiading
financial assels, derivalive flinancial assels, loan and advances
o customers measured at fan valug through profit or loss, equity
instruments other than designated at FVTOCI, debt investments that
do nol meet the criteria for amortized cosl or FVTOCI,

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order
fo generate cash llows. Thal is, whether the Group's objective is solely
o collect the contractual cash llows from the assels or is 1o collect
bath the contractual cash flows and cash llows aiising from the sale of
assets, If neither of these is applicable (e.g., financial assels are held lor
liading purposes), hen Ihe (inancial assels are classified as part ol other
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group
in determining the business model for a gioup of assels include past
experience on how the cash flows for Ihese assels were callected, how
the assel's performance is evaluated and reported to key management
parsonnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated,
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Where the business model is lo hold assels lo collect conlraciual cash
llows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses
whether the financial insttuments’ cash flows represent solely paymeits
of principal and interest ("SPPI"). In making this assessment, the Group
will assess the contractual tetms of the financial assets which may lead
to changes in the timing distribution o amount of the contract cash
flows and determine if the requirements of the above contract cash flow
characterislics are mel. If the contrac! lerms do nat meet the requirements
of the above coniract cash flow characteristics, the related financial assets
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assels wilh embedded derivatives are considered in their enliraty
when determine whether their cash llows are SPP),

The classification requirements for debt inslruments and equity
instruments are described as below:

Debt Instrumenis

Debt instruments are those instruments that meel the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer's perspective (including special financial
instruments that meet the delfinition of a financial liability but are classilied
as equity instruments), such as government and corporate bonds.
Classificalion and subsequenl measuremen! of dabl instrumenlts depend
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash llow
characteristics ol assel,

Based on these lactors, the Group classifies its debt inslruments into one
of the following three maasurement categories:

(i) Amortized cosl: Assets Lhat are held for caollection of contraclual
cash flows where \hose cash llows represent SPPI, and (hal are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured al amorlized cost.

(i} FVTOCI: Financial assets that are held lor collection of contractual
cash flows and lor selling the assels, where Ihe assels’ cash llows
represent SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, ate measured
al FVTOCI.

(i) FVTPL: Assets lhal do nol meel the crileria for amorlized cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assels al FVTPL if
doing so significanlly reduces or eliminates a mismatch crealed by assets
and liabilities being measured on different bases.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are inslruments thal meel the definition ol equity from
lhe issuer's Perspeclive (excluding special financial instruments that meet
the definition of a financial liability but are classified as equity instruments);
that is, instruments that do nol conlain a cantractual obligation to pay and
that evidence a residual interest in Ihe issuer's net assels. Examples of
equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity invesiments at FVTPL,
excepl where the Gioup's management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment al FVTQCI. The Group
designales the non-lrading equily instrumenlts Whal are expecled lo be
held for a leng lime for the purpose of long-lerm sbrategic corporation as
FVTOCL

(b) Reclassification of financial assels

When the Group changes ils business model for managing financial
assels, It shall reclassify all alfected linancial assets, and apply the
reclassificalion prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group
does not restate any previously recognized gain, loss (including
impairment gains or losses) or interesl. Reclassification date Is the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that results in the Group reclassitying financial assets.

{c) Classificalion of finnncial linbililies

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cosl, and measured at FVTPL. The FVTPL is applied 1o derivalives,
financial liabilities held for rading and other financial liabilities designated
as such at initial recognition.
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{d) Initinl recognition and measurement

All regular way puichases of sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a tade date basis. Regular way puichases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame eslablished by regulalion or convention in the market
place,

At iniligl recognition, the Group measures a financial assel or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case ol a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, Iransaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly
altribulable to Ihe acquisilion or issue of financial assels and liabilities
al fair value through prolit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

The Group may, al initial recognition, inevocably designate a financial
liabllity as measured al FVTPL: (i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (somelimes referred lo as an
accounting mismatchy), (i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets
and financial liabilities is managed and its performance Is evaluated on
a fair value basis, In accordance with a documented risk management or
invesiment strategy, and information aboul the group is provided internally
on that basis to the enlily's key management personnel.

For the financial liabiliies recognized due 1o the transfer of financial assets
does nol meet the conditions for lermination ol recognition, the Group
relains to recognize lhe transferred financial assels and recognizes the
received consideralion as a financial liability. If the Group neilher transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership and the
Group retains the control over the transferred financial asset, the financial
assels and relevant liabilities shall be recognized to the extent of the its
conlinuing involvement in the financial assetl.

(e) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measuremenl ol financial inslruments depends on the
calegories:

Amortized cost

The amortized cosl is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability 1s measured at initial recognilion (i) minus the principal
repayments; (i) plus or minus the cumulative amorlization using the
elfeclive interest melhod of any dilference belween that initial amount
and the malurity amount; (ili) for financial assets, adjusted for any credil
loss allowance, Interest income and interest expanse from these financial
assels Is included in “Interest income” and "Inlerest expense” using the
effective interes! rale method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities,
pertiadic re-estimalion of cash flows to iellect the movements in the market
rates of interesl alters the effeclive interest rate. Il a lioating-rate financial
assel or a lloating-rate financial liability is recognized inilially al an amount
equal lo the principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the
fulure interest payments normally has no significant effect on Lhe carrying
amount of the asset or the hability.

It the Group revises its estinates ol payments or receipts, it shall
recalculate the carrying amount ol the financial asset or financial liability
as the present value of the revised eslimaled fulure cash flows, and the
carying amount discounted at the original efleclive interesl rate. The
adjustmenl is recognized in profil or loss as income or expense,

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken Ihrough OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gain or loss, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gain and loss on the instrument's amortized cost which are
recognized In profil or loss. When the financial assel is derecognized,
lhe cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to profit or loss. Inlerest income from these financial assets is included in
"interest income” using the eflective interest rate method.

Equily instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than
1o generale invesimenl reluns are designated as FVTOCI, When this
election is used, fair value gain and loss is recognized in OC| and are
nol subsequenlly reclassified lo profit or loss, including on disposal.
Dividends, when representing a relurn on such investments, conlinue to
be recognized in profit or loss when the Group's right 1o receive paymenls
Is established, and it is probable thal future econamic benefits associaled
with the item will flew to the Group, and the amounis of the dividends can
be measured reliably.

Financial assels at fair value through profil or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debl investment thal is subsequenlly measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss and presented in the income statement within
"Net trading ancl foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises (rom debl instruments thal were designated al fair value of
which are not held for trading, in which case lhey are presented separaled
in "Net gain/(loss) on financial inslruments designated al fair value
through profit or loss”.

Equily Instrumenls

Gain and loss on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the "Net
trading and foreign exchange gain® in the income stalement of.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presenled
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that llability, which Is deteimined as \he amount thal is not
altributable to changes in marke! conditions that give rise to market risk)
and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair
value of the lability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gain or loss
atlributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss. The gain and loss from financial liabilities including the
effects of credil risk variance should be recognized in current prolit and
loss by the Group.

When the liabililies designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income s reclassified from equily to retained earnings.

(f) Impairmenl of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL assoclated with
Its debt instrument assets carried al amortized cosl and FVTOCI and with
exposure arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount thal is determined by
evalualing a range of possible outcomes;

{ii) the time value of money, and

(i) reasonable and supportable information thal is available without
undue cost or effort al the reporling date aboul past evenls, currenl
conditions and forecasts of future economic condilions.

Far financial instruments whose credi! loss allowance are measured using
the ECL model, the Group assesses whether their crecit risk has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model o calculate their credit loss and recognize their ECL,
as follows.

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognilion, the financial assel is Included in Stage 1 and have its ECL
measured at an amount equivalent lo the ECL of the financial instrument
for the next 12 monlhs,

Stage 2 |l the credil risk has increased significantly since its initial
recognition but is not yel deemed to be credilimpared, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 2 and have its ECL measured al an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument,



Stage 3: Il the financial instruments is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Slage 3 and have its ECL measured al an
amount equivalent to the ECL aver the lifetime of the financial instrument.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recagnition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments thal are
measured al FVTOCI. The credit impairmenl loss is recognized in profit
or loss, and Il should not be presented separalely in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a reduction of the carrying amount of the
linancial assel.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial
instrument other than POCI at an amounl equal lo lifetime expecled
credil loss in the previous reporting period, bul determines at the current
ieporting date that the credil fisk on the financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition is no longer mel, the Group
measures the credil loss allowance al an amounl equal lo 12-month
expected credil loss al the current 1eporting date and (he amount of
expecled credil loss reversal is recognized in profit or loss. For PQCI,
al the reporling dale, the Group only recognize the cumulative changes
in litelime expected credit loss since initial recognition as credit loss
allowance for POCI financial assets,

The Group will write ofl a financial asset when reasonably expects that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery of the financial assets after the
Group has completed all necessary measures and legal procedures, Ifina
subsequent period the loan wrillen olf is recovered, the amount 1ecovered
will be recognized in profit or loss through impairment losses.

(g) Contractual modificalion

The Group somelimes renegoliates or otherwise modilies the contractual
cash llows of loans to customers, When this happens, the Group assesses
whether ot not the new lerms are substanlially ditferent to the original
terms,

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the arginal
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new eflective interest rate lor the assel. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered lo be the date of inilial recognition for credit loss
allowance calculation purpases, including lor the puipose of determining
whether a significant increase In credit risk has occurred, However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial assel recognized
is deemed 1o be credit-impaired at initial recognilion, especially in
circumslances where the renegotiation was driven by the deblor being
unable 1o make Ihe originally agreed paymenis. Differences in Ihe canying
amounl are also recognized as gain o loss on derecognilion of debt
instrument at amortized cost,

It the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or madification
tloes not result in darecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amouni based on lhe revised cash flows of the linancial asset
and recognizes & modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at
Ihe original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effeclive interest rale
for POCI financial assets).

(h) Derecognition of financial assels

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contraciual rights
to the cash llows from the asset expite, or when il transiers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
1o another entity. If the Group nellher Iransfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize lhe asset to lhe exlent
of its continuing involvement and recognizes an assoclatad liability, If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transterred financial assel, the Group continues to recognize Ihe financfal
assel and also recognizes a collaleralized borrowing for the proceeds
recelved,

On derecognition of a financial assel in its entirely, Ihe difference belween
the assel’s carnying amount and the sum of the consideralion received
and receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in
profit or loss,
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Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes secuntization
transactions Ihrough which il transfers certain linancial assets 10 special
purpose lWusts which issue asset-backed securities ("ABS”) to investors,
The Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated Iranche of these
ABS. As |he assel manager of these ABS, the Group provides services
including collecting payments from loans in the assels pool, maintaining
account records relaled to the assets pool, providing service reports and
other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly
be used for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche
ABS, and then to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group
derecognizes o partially derecagnizes the transterred financial assets
accarding lo the extent of transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership
of lhe lransferred financial assels.

(f) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes linancial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire,
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and Ihe consideralion paid and payable is recognized in the
consaolidated income stalement,

{l) Ofiselting linancial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are ollset and the net amount is reported
in the consalidated statement of financial position when lhere is a current
legally enforceabla right o offsel the recognized amounts and the Group
has an inlention to setlle on a nel basis, or to realize the assael and
sellle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on fulure evenls and musl be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruplcy
af the Group or the counterparty. Otherwise, financial assels and financial
lizbilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a confract that requires the issuer to
make specilied payments 1o reimburse the holder lor a loss it incurs
because a specified deblor fails 1o make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are inilially recognized al fair value on the date
Ihe guaranlee was given, Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's
liabilities under such guarantees are measured al the higher of the inilial
amount, less amarlization of guarantee fees, and the expected credit loss
provision required o sellle the guaraniee, Any increase In (he liability
refaling to guarantees is laken 1o the consolidated income statement.

A loan commitment is a definite commitment provided by the Group
lo a customer to grant a loan lo (he customer on agreed contraclual
terms during the commitment period, The credit loss allowance of loan
commitments provided by the Group Is measured by ECL. The Group has
not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-markel interest
rate, or that can be seltled net in cash or by delivering or issuing ancther
financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, lhe credil
loss allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannol
separately identily the expected credil loss on the undrawn commitment
component from those an the loan component, the expected credit loss
on the undrawn commitment are recognized tagether with the credil loss
allowance for the loan. To the extent lhat Ihe combined expecled credil
loss exceeds the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expacled credit
loss is recognized as a piovision,
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(14)Financial assets held under resale agreements and

financial assels sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreemenls are fransaclions where the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predelermined
price at a luture date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreemenis are iransactions where the Group sells
financial assels which will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a
future date under repurchase agreements.

Balh financial assels held under resale agreements and financial assets
sold under repurchase agreemenis of the Group are in the torm of
pledged repo. The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts
held under resale or sold under repurchase agreements in the stalement
of financial posilion. Assels held under resale agreemenis are nol
recognized. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be
recognized in the statement ol financial position,

The diflerence between the purchase and resale consideration, and that
between |he sale and repurchase consideralion, is amorlized ovar the
petiod of the respective iransaclion using the elfective inlerest method
and Is included in interest income and interest expenses respectively,

(15) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are Initially recognized al fair value at the date a derivalive
contract is entered into and are subsequenlly re-measured al their fair
value al the end of the reporling period. Excepl the derivalive which are
designated and qualified as hedging instruments, the resulting gain or
loss in derivative |s recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contract which contains a host that is
a non-financial assel, are (realed as separate derivalives when their
charactenstics and risks are not closely related la those of the hybrid
contracts and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded
derivalives are separalely accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group
choose o designate the hybrid contract al fair value through profit or loss.

In order to avoid cerlain risk, the Group has designaled certain derivative
instruments as hedging inslruments. The Group uses hedge accounling
lo account for these hedging instruments which satisty specified criteria.
The Group's hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow
hedges.

Al the inceplion of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship betwsen hedging instrument and hedged ltem, as well as
its risk management objeclives and stralegy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at the inceplion of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivalives thal are used in hedging transaclions are highly elfectiva in
offselling changes in fair valuas or cash flows of the hedged item,

(a) Falr value hedge

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Gioup's exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognized assel or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitmenl, or an identilied portion of such an asset, liability or
unrecognized fiim commilment, that is attributable to a particular risk and
could alfect the Group's profil ar loss or other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designaled and qualily as
fair value hedges are recognized in the consolidated income slatement,
logether with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk, Changes in the fair value of the
derivalives, which are hedged for the risk exposure from fair value change
of non-trading equily Invesiment designaled as al FYTOCI, are recognized
in other comprehensive inceme.,

It the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the canrying amount of a hedged item for which the efiective
interest melhod is used is amaorlized 10 profil or loss over the period to
malunty. If the hedged ilem is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying
value adjustment is recognized in prafit or loss.

{b) Cash flow hedge

Fair value hedges are hedges ol the Group's exposure lo changes
in the fair value of a racognized assel or liabilily or an unrecognized
firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or
unrecognized firm commilment, that is altributable to a particular risk and
could affect the Group's profit o loss or olher comprehensive Income,

The effective poilion of changes in the falr value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges Is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recogmized in profil or loss in the periods when
the hedged item allecls profit or loss, in the same line as (he recognized
hedged item. If the cumulative amount in the cash flow hedge reserve
which recognized in other comprehensive income is a loss, and all or part
of the loss Is expecled lo be ireparable in the future accounting period.
the Group shall reclassified the expected irreparable part from olher
comprehensive income to profit and loss in the same period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

—  When the hedged cash llow alfects profit or lass, the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognized direclly in other comprehensive
income is recycled in the corresponding income or expense line of
the income statement. When the hedging relalionship ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria after taking into account any rebalancing of the
hedging relationship, including the hedging instrument has expired
or has been sold, lerminated or exercised, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in olher comprehensive income at thal time remains in
other comprehensive income until the hedged forecast Iransaction
ullimately ocours.

- When a lorecas! transaction is no longer expecled to ocour, any
cumulative gain or loss in equity is iansterred immediately to profil
or loss.

(16) Equity instruments issued by the Group

An equity instrument is any contract thal evidences a residual interest
in the assets ol the Group aller deducling all of its liabililies. Equily
instruments issued by the Group are recognized al the fair value of
proceeds received, net of Iransaction cost.

The distiibution lo the helders of equily instruments is recognized as profit
distribution.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group's properly and equipment compiise buildings, office and
machinery equipment. molor vehicles and vessels, aircralls and
conslruclion in prograss,

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairmenl. Historical cosl includes expendilure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of ihe items.

Subsequen! expenditures are included in the assel's carrying amount
or are recognized as a separale assel, as appropnale, only when it is
probable thal future economic benefils associated with the ilem will
llow to the Group and the cost of Ihe item can be measured reliably. All
olher repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to wiite down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

. \Uslles  Residualvaorales  Amual deprocaion ales
uildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.711%-5.00%
_Uliice and machinery equipment ) ) = - _?ﬁyaam e RS%_ o 3.80%-33.33%_
Motor vehicles and vessels - o 4-6 years 0%-5% 15,83%-25.00%
:;drcrag - R - 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assels' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporling period.

Properties in the couise of constiuclion for supply of services or administrative purposes are carled al cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such
properties are classilied lo the appropiiale category of piaperly and equipment when compleled and ready for intended use.

Gain and loss on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing Ihe proceeds wilh the carrying amounl. These are included in profit or

loss.



(18) Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assels are initially recognized al fair value of assels nol
retained plus related costs, and subsequenily measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each
reponting period. When Ihe fair value, less costs to sell, is lower than a
foreclosed asset's carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Any gain or loss ansing on the disposal of the foreclosed assel is included
in the consolidated income slatement in the period in which the item is
disposed.

The Group disposes of foreclosed assels through various means. In
principle, foreclosed assels should nol be lransferred for own use,
but, in the event that they are needed for the Group's own business or
management purposes, they are transterred at their net carrying amounts
and managed as newly acquired property and equipment.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.

Investment property is initially measured al its acquisition cost,
Subsequent expenditures incurred for the investment properly are
included in the cost of the investment pioperty if it is probable that
economic benelits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
lhe subsequenl expendilures can be measured reliably, Other subsequent
expendilures are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred,

Investment propeilies are measwed using the cost inodel. Depreciation is
recognized the same way as propetly and equipment and land use rights.

When an investment properly is sold, ransferred, retired or damaged,
the Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal. net of he
carrying amount and related expenses, in profilt or loss.

(20) Leases

{a) ldenlification of leases

At inception of a conlract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease, A conlract is, of conlains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right lo conlrol the use of one or more identified assels for a
period ol time in exchange for consideralion. To assess whelher a contract
conveys the right to conlral the use of an identified assel for & period of
fime, the Group assesses whether, hroughoul the period of use, customer
has both of the nght to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified assat and the right to direct the use of the
idlentified asset.

(b) As Lessee
Lease modilications

Lease madification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, thal was nol part of the original terms and
candilions of the lease, lor example, adding or terminating the nght to use
one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the contractual
lease term,

The Group accounts for a lease modiflication as a separate lease If both:

fi} the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
lo use one or more undetlying assels; and

i) the consideration for the lease Increases by an amoun!
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments la that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract

For a lease modification that is not accounled for as a separate |ease.
at lhe effeclive dale of the lease medilication the Group remeasures the
lease |iability by discounting the ravised lease payments using a revised
discount rate. The revised discount rate is delermined as (he interest rate
implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate al the effective dale of the modification, if the
interest rate implicit in 1he lease cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification thal is nol accounted for as a separale lease, lhe
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

(i) decreasing the carrying amount of the right-ol-use assel lo rellect
the partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that
decrease the scope or term of the lease, and recognising the gain or
loss relaling to the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or
loss; or
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(i) making a corresponding adjustment to the right-ol-use asset for all
olher lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Group considers a lease hal, al the commencement dale of the
lease, has a lease term ol 12 monlhs o less, and does not conlains any
purchase oplion as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of
the indlvidual underlying asset is not more than RMBS50,000 when it 1s new
as a lease of low-value assets, The Group chooses not 1o recognize the
right-ol-use assets and lease liabilllies for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, and the renlal expenses are recognized as “Operaling
expenses” in the income slalement on a stiaighiline basis over each
petiod of ihe |ease term.

{c) As Lessor

At the inceplion dale, a lease is classilied as a finance |ease if il Wanslers
substanftially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease.

At the commencement dale of the lease, the Group recognizes finance
lease receivable and derecognizes the assets under finance leases, The
Group presents lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment
in the lease for the initial measurement. The net Investment in the lease is
Ihe present value ol the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the
unreceived lease payments 1eceivable al the commencement dale, which
is discounted by the interest rate implicil in the lease.

The Group calculates and recognizes the interest income in each pefiod
during the lease term using the constani periodic rate of interest, and
recognizes such interest income in profit or loss.

(d) Lessee's incremental borrowing rate

It the interest rate implicit in the lease cannol be readily determined,
lhe Group uses the incremental boirowing rate as the discount rate to
calculate the present value of lease payment. The economic circumstance
and the observable interes! rale sel the foundalion for each institulion ol
the Group In determining he incremental borrowing rate. On this basis,
the applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the
adjustment of the reference Interest rate, which is determined according to
the situation of the institution and the underlying asset, the lease lerm, the
amount of lease liability and other specific conditions of the lease,

(e} Righl-ol-use assels

The right-al-use assels of the Group mainly include bulldings, vehicles
and olher right-of-use assels.

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes a
right-of-use assel. The cost of the right-ol-use assel comprises:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(i) any lease payments made al or belore the commencement date of
Ihe lease less any lease incenlives received;

(ili) any initial direct costs Incurred when the Group is & |essee; and

{iv) an estimale of cosls to be incurred by the lessee in dismanlling
and removing the underlying asset, restofing the site on which il is
located or restoring the underlying assel to the condilion required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are deprecialed on a slraight-line basis
subsequently by the Group, Il the Group is reasonably certain that the
ownership of the underlying asset will be transferred to the Group at
the end of the lease term, the Group depreciates the assel from the
commencement date 10 the end of the uselul life of the asset. Olherwise,
Ihe Group depreciates the asset from the commencement dale to Ihe
earlier of the end of the useful life of the assel or the end of Ihe lease
term.

The Group remeasures lhe lease liabilities al the present value ol
the changed lease payments and adjusis lhe carrying amounis ol
the right-of-use assets accordingly. When the carrying amount of the
fight-of-use asset Is 1educed to zero, and there is a further reduction in
the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognizes the remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profil ol loss.

()
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{f) Lease liabilities

Al the commencemen! date of the leasa, the Group measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments thal are nol paid at
that date, excepl for short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assels.

The lease payments need to be discounted using the interest rale implicit
in the lease, It this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rale of lessee as the discount rate. The Group
calculates Ihe interest expenses of lease liabililies in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognizes
such interest expenses in profit or loss, Variable lease payments that are
nol included in the measurement of lease liabililies are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

Alter he commencemen! date, the Group remeasures |ease liabililies by
discounting the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i)
there is a change in the in-substance fixed payments; (i) there is a change
in the amounts expecled lo be payable under a residual value guarantee,
(iii) there is & change In fulure lease payments resulting from a change
in an index ar a rale used to determine those payments; or (iv) there is a
change In the assessments of options to purchase the underlying asset,
extend or terminate the lease, or the circumstances of the aclual exercise
of these options.

(21) Intangible assels

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
canied al cosls less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Intangible assels include computer software and other
intangible assats. Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognized on a straighl-line basis over thell estimated uselul lives
which generally range from 1 to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amanization method of inlangible assets with finite uselil lives. The Group
has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

{22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is caried al cost less
any accumulated impairment loss and is presented saparately in the
consalidated statement of financial position,

For the purposes of impairment tesling. goodwill is allocated o each
of the cash-generating units (or groups ol cash-generaling unils) that
are expected to benefit from the synergles ol the business combination.
Cash-generating unit Is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inllows that are largely independent ol the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assels.

A cash-generaling unit 1o which goodwill has been allocaled is tested for
Impairment annually, or more lrequently whenever there is an Indication
that the unil may be impaired. For goadwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporling period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment befare the end of thal reporling period.
It the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocaled first 1o reduce
the carrying amounl of any goodwill allocated lo the cash-generaling unit,
and then to the other assets of the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata
basis, based on the carying amount of each asset in the cash-generating
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized direcily in the
consolidated income stalement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-gensrating unit, the atiributable amount
of goodwill capilalized is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

financial instruments and goodwill

Al the end of each reporling period, the Group reviews the canying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with fimite useful lives
to determine whether there is any Indication that those assels have
suffered an impairment loss. Il any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assels is eslimated in order o delermine (he extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

Il the recoverable amount of an assel is eslimated to be less than ils
carrying amount. the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to ils
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's eauity holders is recognized as
a liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by those charged with governance.

(25) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligalion as a
result of a past event, and it Is probable that the Group will be required to
sellle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the abligation,

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
10 settle the present obligation at the end of the reponting period, taking
into account the risks and uncerlainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimaled to setlle the
present obligation, ils carrying amount is the presen! value of those cash
flows,

(26) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
saleguard assels for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trusl companies,
other insltitulions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for
ils seivices provided under the cuslody agreements and does not have
any interest in the economic risks and rewards relaled lo assels under
custody, Therefore, assets under custody are nol recognized in the
Group's consalidated slatement of financial position,

The Group conducts entrusied lending arrangements lor ils customers.
Under the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants
loans to botrowers, as an intermediary, according 1o the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans.
The Group is responsible for the arrangemenlt and collection of the
entrusled loans and receives a commission for the services randered.
As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds,
they are not recognized as assels or liabilities of the Group.

(27) Contingent liahilities

(1

f—

A contingent liabllity Is a possible obligation that arises from past
evenls and whose existence will only be confimed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of ane of more uncerlain future events not wholly within
the conlrol of the Group. It can also be a presant obligation arising from
past events thal is nol recognized because Il is nol probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured rellably. A contingent liabllity is not recognized, but
disclosed,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group's accounling policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgmenls, estimales and
assumptions that alfect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
eslimates and related assumplions are based on hislorical experience and
other relevant laclors including on Lhe basis of reasonable expectations
for luture avents.

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions lo accounting estimales are recognized in the penod in
which the estimate is ravised if the rewsion affects only that period, or in
the period of the ravision and fulure periods if the revision affects both
cument and fulure periods,

The following are the critical judgements and key eslimation uncertainty
thal the management has made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and thal have the most significant effect on the
amounls recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the next
welve months.,

Measurement of credit impairment losses

For financial asse!s thal are measured at amorlized cosl and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and linancial guaraniee
contracts and loan commitments, the Group assesses the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information.

Expacted credit Iosses refer to the weighted average of the credit loss
of financial instruments weighted by the risk of defaull, Credit loss refers
to the difference belween all conlraclual cash llows receivable under
the contract and all expected cash flows discounted by the Group at
the original effective interest rate, thal is, the present value of lotal cash
sharlage. Among them, POCI financial assels should be discounted al the
credit-adjusted aclual interest rate of Ihe linancial assels.
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The ECL model involves periodic review of key definitions, parameters,
and assumplions, such as eslimates ol fulure macroeconomic condilions
and the borrower's credit behavior (e.g., the possibility of customer default
and corresponding loss). A number of significant judgements are required
in applying the accounling requirements for measuring expected credit
losses, such as:

- Segmentation of business operalions sharing similar credil risk
characterislics, seleclion of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Cnteria for determining whether there was a significant increase in
credit risk, ar a defaull or imparment loss was Incurred as well as
definition of default and ciedit impairment;

- Economic indicators lor forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and weightings;

- The eslimated fulure cash flows for loans andl advances lo cuslomers
al amortized cosl in Slage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumplions and estimation techniques used
in measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 50(2) Ciedil risk.

Consolidation of structured entities

Where lhe Group acls as assel manager of or investor in structured
enlities, the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group
controls and should consolidate these structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group's contractual
rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluales
the Group's power over the stiuclured enlities, performs analysis and
tests an the variable relurns from e structured enlities, including but not
limited lo commission income and assel management lees eamed as lhe
asset manager or service provider, the ratention of rasidual income, and. if
any, the liquidity and other suppant provided to the structured entities. The
Group also assesses whelher il acls as a principal or an agent through
analysis of the scope ol its decision-making authority over the structured
enlities, the remuneration to which it is entilled for its role as asset
manager or service provider, the Group's expasure 10 variability of returns
Irom ils other interests in the structured entilies, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entities.

Fair value of financial instrumenis

The fair value of financial instruments (that are not quoted in active markels
Is determined by using valuation lechniques. These include the use of
recent arm's lenglh transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset
value, comparable companies approach, and other valualion techniques
commonly adopted by markel parficipants. To the extenl praclical, the
Group uses only observable market dala, however areas such as credit
risk of the Group and the counterparties, weighled average cos! of capital,
perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayrment rale and similarity
to comparable companies and their performance indicators may not
be observable and require managemen! lo make eslimales and apply
judgements, Changes in assumpiions aboul these factors could affect the
eslimated fair value of financial instruments.

De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In the normal course of business, the Group transters its financial assets
through various types of transaclions including, among olhers, regular way
sales and translers, securilization, linancial assets sold under repurchase
agreements. The Group applies significant judgemenl in assessing
whether It has transferred these financial assets which qualify tor a ull or
parlial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transters
financial assets to stiuctured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and lhese structured
entities indicates thal 1l conlrals these struclured enlilies lo delerming
whether the Group needs lo consolidate these struclured entities.

(5)

(6)
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The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection
wilh such transfers to determine:

- whether it has transferred the rights lo receive contraciual cash
flows from the financial assels or the transfer qualifies for the “‘pass
thraugh® of those cash flows to independent (hird parties.

- Ihe extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets are transterred.

- Where the Group has neither retained nor lranslerred substantially
all of the risks and rewards asscciated with their ownership, the
Group analyzes whether It has relinquished its controls over these
financial assets and |f the Group has continuing involvemerit in these
transtened financial assels.

Income Tax

There are cerlain lransactions and activilies for which the ultimate tex
effect Is uncertain, The Group makes estimates and judgement for
items of uncertainly, faking into account existing taxation legislation and
past practice of relevant tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were inilially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax in the period In which such a
delermination is made.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assels are reviewed regularly 1o determine whether the
carnying amoun! exceeds the recoverable amount ol Ihe assels, Il any
such indication exisls, an impairment loss is provided,

In assessing he present value of goodwill generated from (he acquisition
of subsidiaries, (he Group estimates lhe present value of fulure cash flows
at appropriate discount discounting rates. In assessing the present value
of futwe cash flows of subsidiaries, significant judgements are exercised
over the related income, operaling expenses and discounting rate 1o
calculate the present value,

TAXATION

The Group's main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Corporale income lax

The corporale income tax rate applicable to the Group in Mainland China
is 25%. Taxation on overseas institulions s charged at the relevant local
rates. The pre-lax deduction ol corporate income lax shall be implemented
In accordance with relevant state regulations.

Value added tax (“VAT")

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on ils income from credit
business, fee income on financial services and Income from tading of
financial products at 6%.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policles for
Financial, Real Estale Developmenl and Educalion Ancillary and Other
Services” (Cal Shui [2016] No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding
Issues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management
Products™ (Cai Shui [2017] No.2) and *Circular on the Relevant Issues
concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Assel Managemenl Products® (Cai
Shui [2017] No. 56), managers of assel management products shall pay
VAT at 3% for taxable activities undenaken alter 1 January 2018.

City construction tax
Cily construction lax Is calculated as 1% o 7% of VAT,

Education surcharge
Education surcharge is calculated as 3% to 5% of VAT,
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6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Detalls of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2023 were as follows:

COB Capital Ca., Ltd. Mainland China RMBB7,687 100% directly held Equity investment

CDB Development Fund Mainland China AMBS0.000  100% directly held """'“‘“"“'L’n‘“a";‘;';ﬂ‘i : ;:“;";:’Im
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China AMB32,548  84.99% indireclly held Fund investment & management
CDB Financial Leasing Co., Lid. Mainland China RAMB12,642 64.40% directly held Leasing
CDB Securities Co., Lid. Mainland China RAMBY,500 B0% directly held  Securilies brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kang, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Invesiment holding
CDB Infrastructure Fund Co., Lid, Malnland China RMB30,000  100% directly held ”““'m"'“":‘;'::;':::fi iﬂ':‘:'im

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voling rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries,
and there was no restriction on the Group's abiility lo access or use its assets and setile its liabilities.

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Yenr ended 31 December

Interast income

Loans and advances to customers 555,443 553,119
Debl investment securilies (a) 59,864 60,841
Placements with banks and other financial institulions and linancial assets held under resale agreements 23,301 17,185
Balances with cenlral banks and deposils with banks and other financial institutions 3,432 2,134
Others - 1
Subtotal 642,040 633,280
Interest expense
Debt securities issued (387,149) (376,584)
Deposils from banks and other financial institutions (61,634) (65.531)
Due to cuslomers (10,135) (7,804)
Borrowings from governments and financial instilutions (21,171) (11,015)
Others (1.638) (1.126)
Subtotal (481,727) (462.970)
Net interes! income 160,313 170,310

(@) Interest income ol dabt investment securilies includes interest income of debt insiruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through
olher comprehensive income.

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary setvice fee 565 906
Loan arrangement fee 228 280
Credil commilmant fee (18) 83
Consullancy and advisary fee 196 535
Others 479 606
Subtotal 1,450 2410
Fee and commission expense {820) (908)

Nel fee and commission income 530 1,504
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9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange gain 7,750 53,529

Net gain/(loss) on hading assets and olher financial assels mandatorily classified at lair value through profit or loss 6414 {2.564)

Net loss on foreign exchange derivatives (3,228) (9,795)

Net gains/{loss) an interest rate derivalives gain on interest rate derivalives 2,147 {250)

Tolal 13,083 40,920
10.DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

' Trading assels and olher financial assels mandatorily classified al fair value through profit or loss . 17,879 ‘11.253

Equily insttuments al fair value through olher comprehensive income (Designated) 167 129
Tatal 18,048 11,382

11.NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Met (loss)/gain on disposal of debl instruments al fair value through other omprehansm income (B1) 159

12.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 6,408 7,230

Others 4,029 1,207
Total 10,437 8,437
13.0PERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Stalf costs ' ' 8,285 7974

Taxes and surcharges 4,689 4,421
General operaling and administrative expenses 3,231 2,918
Depreciation and amortization 1,085 2172
Tolal 18,190 17,485

14.CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances (o customers 83,137 104,284

Debt instruments at amortized cost {558) 4,424

Debl instruments al fair value through other comprehensive income 10 300

Loan commitments (3.179) 6,172

Financial guarantee contracls (23) (4)

Others 509 260

Total 80,088 115,426
16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current lax ' 38,737 49,500

Deferred lax (Note 27) (21,777) (36,783)
Total 14,960 12,807
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The income tax expense can be reconciled to proiil before income tax presented in the consalidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 Decamber

02

Prafit balare incame tax 97,147

102,377

Tax calculated at the PRC stalutory lax rate of 25% 25,595 24,287
Elfect of different tax 1ates on subsidiaries (108) 27
Tax effect of non-laxable income (12617) (12,632)
Tax effect of deductitle temporary differences not recognized 26 544
Tax effects of expenses not deduclible for tax purpose and ofhers 2,062 581
Income tax expense 14,960 12,807

16.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As al 31 December

Cash 2 3
Balances with central banks 98,364 113,857
Total 98,366 113,860

17.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As al 31 December

Deposits with:
Domestic banks 90,664 60,318
Other domestic financial institutions 651 13,417
Overseas banks 51,879 39,455
Other overseas financial instilutions 70 56
Sublotal 143,264 113,246
Accnued interests Q7 B0
Total 143,481 113,326
Less: Allowance lor Impairment losses - Stage 1 (59) -
Deposits with banks and other linancial institutions, net 143,422 113,326

As al 31 December 2023, {he restricted deposits wilh bariks and other financial institutions of the Group amaunted 1o RMB16,964 million (31 December 2022:
RMB18,270 millian), which were mainly pledged funds for barrowings from other banks and securily deposils pledge with clearing houses,

18.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:
Domestic banks 480,281 371.284
Other domeslic financial inslitutions B 15,000 14,001
Overseas banks 48,108 85,537
Sublatal 543,389 4j0.822
Accrued interesls 1,167 772
Total 544,556 471,594
Less: Allowance lor impairment losses — Stage 1 (300) (52)
- Stage 2 (9) (5)
Placements wilth banks and olher financial institulions, net 544,247 471,537

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparisan with fair values ol instruments recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of fulure cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore,
do nol indicate the Group's exposure o credil or markel risks, The fair values of derivalive instruments become favorable or unfavorable as a resull of fluctualions
in market interesl rales or foreign exchange retes relative lo their terms. The aggregale fair values of denvative financial assets and liabililies can fluctuate
significantly.
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The table below provides a detalled breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group's derivalive financial instruments outstanding
al the balance sheel date.

31 December 2023

Exchange rale derivalives
Currency swaps (Including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 445,774 2,269 (7.187)
Forelgn exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 1,278 19 -
Subtolal 2,288 (7.197)
Interes! rate denvatives
Interest rale swaps 159,477 1,281 (1,074)
Interest rate options 5,135 - -
Subtotal 1,281 (1,074)
Total 3,569 8,271

31 December 2022

Exchange rale derivatives
Currency swaps (including cross-currency intesasi rate swaps) 687,294 7,867 (15,376)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange oplions 3.607 23 {4)
Sublotal 7.690 (15,380)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rale swaps 420,050 3,403 (2,.971)
Interest rate options 6,011 - -
Subtotal 3403 (2,971)
Total 11.003 {18,351)

(2) Hedge accounting
Falr value hedges
The Group uses inleresl rate swap conlracts to hedge againsl changes In fair values allributable to interest rate risks of the negoliable cerlificales of deposits

issued by the Group as presented in "Due to Customers” in the cansalidated statement of financial pasition. As at 31 December 2023, the notional amount of the
Group amounted lo AMB7,542 million (31 December 2022. RMBB,282 million),

The Group's lair value changes on hedge instrumenis and the net gain or loss of hedged items arising from hedging risks, as well as the hedging ineftectiveness
portion recognized Irom changes in fair value gain or loss are nol material.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rale swap lo hedge agains! expasure to cash flow vaiiability attributable to interest rate risks, with the hedged items being borrowings from
other banks lor the Group's leasing business. The Group also uses cross-currency interest rale swap to hedge against exposure 1o cash llow variability altributable
to interest rate risks and exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being the bonds issued by the Group's subsidiary COB Leasing Co,, Ltd. As at 31 December
2023, the nolional amount of two hedge business mentioned above amounted to RMB15.599 million and AMB340 million. respectively (31 December 2022
AMB17,396 million and nil, respectively).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Greup recognized in other comprehensive incame a cumulative prafit or loss from fair value changes of cash llow hedging
and the profit or loss relating 1o the ineffective portion were insignificant.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As al 31 December

Analyzed by lype ol ccllateral:
Bonds 477,507 404,935
Others 1,161 1,322
Subtotal 478,668 406,257
Acciued inlefests 172 116
Tolel 478,840 406,373
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
Stage 1 - -
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 (1,315) {1.550)
Sublotal (1,315 (1,550)
Financial assets held under resale agiesments, net 477,525 404,823

The collateral received in connection with resale agreemants is disclosed in Note 48(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments ~ Collateral.
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21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(1) The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As al 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 14,190,321 13,851,010
Al fair value through profil of loss (b) 54,422 48,097
Loans and advances lo customers, net 14,244,743 13,899,107

(a) The composition of loans and advarice lo custamers measured al amorlized cost is as follows:

As al 31 December

Loans and advances lo cuslomers 14,646,153 14,222 605

Finance lease receivables and olhers 203,494 204,533
Subltatal 14,849,647 14,427,138
Accrued interests 36,819 43,075
Total 14,886,566 14,470,213
Stage 1 13,372,962 12,892,388
Stage 2 1,325,842 1,344,107
Stage 3 187,762 233,718
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
Stage 1 (238,554) (209,408)
Slage 2 (329,057) (254,675)
Stage 3 (128.634) {155.120)
Subtotal v (696,245) (619,203)
Loans and advance lo cuslomers measured at amortized cost, net 14,190,321 13,851,010

(b) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured al fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As al 31 December
Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 54,855 47,786
Fair value change (433) 311
Total 54,422 48,097

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Mote 42(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.
{2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As al 1 January 2023 209,408 254,675 156,120 619,203

Translers:

Transfers to Slage 1 46,845 (46,845) - -
Translers lo Stage 2 (14,613) 34,105 (19,482) -
Translers lo Stage 3 - (5,727) 5,727 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 43,974 5,167 17 49,158
Remeasurement (a) (26,283) 109,287 2,037 85941
Mature or reverse (21,208) (22,939) (7.815) (51.962)
Wiite-off - - (11.210) (11.210)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 5,205 5,205
Others 431 1,334 {1.858) (90)

As a 31 December 2023 238.554 329,057 128,634 696,245
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As al 1 January 2022 192,457 228,513 81,928 503,898

Transfers:

Transfers 10 Stage | 8,489 (B,489) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (18,017) 28,073 (10,0586) -
Transfers lo Stage 3 (8) (57,215) 57,223 -
Originated ar purchased financiel assets 44,932 19,506 4 54,442
Remeasurement (a) 3,076 48,743 40,845 92,664
Malture or reverse (22,645) {13,259) (16,918) (52,822)
Write-fl - (148) {9,612) (9,760)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 6,255 6,255
Others 1,124 7,851 5451 14,526
As a 31 December 2022 208,408 254.675 155,120 619.203

{a) Aemeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of Probability of Defaults (PDs) and Loss Given Defaulls (LGDs): transfers
among Stage 1, Slage 2 and 3 due lo financial instruments experiencing significant change of credil impairment in the periad, and the cansequent “set up” (or
“set dawn”) between 12-month and lifetime ECL.

(i) In 2023 major ehanges in the grass carrying amount of loans and advances to customers that have a great impact on the Group's credit loss allowance
includes:

As at 1 January 2023, (he gioss carrying amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 accounted for 90% of tolal beginning balance of loans and
advances to customers. The changes of the Group's ECL of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 were mainly driven by a net increase of nearly 3% in
the corresponding gross amount;

As at 1 January 2023, (he grass carrying amount of loans and advances 1o customers in Stage 2 accounted for 9% ol total beginning balance of loans and
advances 1o cuslomers, Approximalely 1% of the beginning balance of Stage | transferred to Stage 2 in 2023;

As al 1 January 2023, the gross carrying amount of loans and advances fo customers in Slage 3 accounted lor 1% ol lotal beginning balance of loans and
advances 10 customers. Approximately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage 2 transferred to Stage 3 in 2023. Such increase was oifsel by lhe decrease
resulling from write-offs and recovary of approximately 12% of the beginning balance ot Stage 3 loans and acvances to customars.

(i) For Ihe year ended 31 December 2023, the gioss carrying amount of the Ipans and advances to cuslomers of which credil loss allowances were lransterred
from Stage 3 to Stage 2, and from Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, which due to the modification af contractual cash flows but not resulling in derecognition
were not significant.

(3) Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral lypes are set out below:

Loans and advances lo customers are classilied as past-due |l the principal or the inlerest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by
instaliment, il any installmenl repayment is past due, the lotal balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due,

Past due

As al 31 December 2023

Unsecured loans 1,141 49 20,487 11,470 33,147
Guaranteed loans 615 6,786 2177 672 10,250
Laans with caollaleral
Loans secured by collateral 22,034 1,562 11,399 11,276 46,27
Pledged loans 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070
Total 36,724 12,173 36,656 28,185 113.738
As at 31 December 2022
Unsecured loans 10,671 0,323 14,220 626 34,840
Guaranleed loans 3.982 2175 491 730 7378
Loans with collateral
Loans secured by collateral 22,873 1,396 18,721 16,049 59,039
Pledged loans 26,825 2,194 5.198 5,021 39,238

Total 54,351 15,088 38,630 22,426 140,495
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22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatoilly classified at fair value through profit or loss

Government and quasi-government bonds 222 4241
Debl securities issued by financial institutions 41,457 60,308
Corporate bonds 10,299 17,024
Inter-bank certificates of deposil 117,890 68,507
Assel management plans a2 368
Stock and fund nvestments 13,294 16,568
Weallth management products issued by olher banks 3,743 3,450
Other equity investments 712,537 760,072
Subtotal 901.663 930,538
Financial assels al fair value through profit or loss (Designated) (a)
Corporate bonds 384 576
Assel management plans 14 14
Subtotal 398 590
Total 902,061 931,128

(8) Financial assels designated al fair value (hrough prolil or loss primarily include invesiments in bonds with funds from investors of wealth management
products, which were issued by the Group before 2019,

23.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

As al 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 592,081 826,566
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 240 500
Corporate bonds 105,936 103,969
Asset-backed security 20 -
Invesiments in trust plans and others 5453 3220
Subtatal . 703.730 834,275
Accrued interests 8,888 13,007
Tolal 712618 947,372
Stage 1 710,920 945,348
Stage 2 28 -
Stage 3 1,670 2,024
Less: Allowance for impairmen! losses
Stage 1 [10,128) (10,209)
Stage 2 (6 =
Slage 3 (1,498) (1.806)
Sublotal . (11,633) (12,015)

Debt instruments at amortized cosl, net 700,985 935,357
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As al 1 January 2023 10,208 = 1,806 12,015
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 = 13 (13) -
Originated or purchased linancial assels 45 = - 45
Remeasurement (a) (247) 6 - (241)
Malure or reverse (51) (13) (295) (359)
Foreign exchange diflerences 173 - - 173
As al 31 December 2023 10,129 6 1,498 11,633
As at 1 January 2022 5,214 - 1,790 7.004
Remeasurement (a) 4,451 - 25 4,476
Malure or reverse (52 - - (52)
Transfer out - - (1 (1)
Foreign exchange diflerences 596 - 2 598
As at 31 December 2022 10,209 = 1,806 12,015

(a) Femeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes In parameters such as probability of defaull and loss given defaull, credit loss changes due 1o
slage-transfer,

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As al 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Government and quasi-government bonds 551,841 420,534
Debt securilies issued by financial institutions 9,381 6,797
Corporate bonds 222 894 162,708
Assel-backed securities 166 285
Intar-bank certificates of deposil 373,033 414,787
Subtotal 1,157,315 1014111
Accrued interests 10,206 8,368
Tolal 1,167,521 1,022,499
Stage 1 1,167,504 1,022,466
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 17 a3
Equity instruments at fair value thraugh other comprehensive income (Designated)
Listed equity 3.460 3,354
Unlisted equity 2,000 2,000
Total 5,460 5,354
Financial Assets at lair value through other compiehensive income, total 1,172,981 1,027,853

The Group has elected 1o lirevocably designale sirategic invesiments of non-lrading equily Instruments al FYTOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in fait
value of such insttuments will no longer be reclassified to pralil or loss when they are disposad ol.
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As at 1 January 2023 128 - 1,324 1,452

Originated or purchased financial assets 84 - - 84
Remeaasuremen (a) 59 - 10 69
Repayment and transfer oul (35) - (8) (43)
As at 31 December 2023 236 = 1,326 1,562

As al 1 January 2022 "z - 1,034 1,151

Translers:

Slage 1 to Slage 3 @) - 9 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 56 - - 56
Remeasurement (a) a - 28 280
Repayment and transter out {46) - - (46)
Foreign exchange differences 1 - - 1

As at 31 December 2022 128 - 1.324 1.452

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in paramelers such as probability of defaull and loss given defaull, credit loss changes due o
stage-transler.

25.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of inlerest in associales and joint ventures is as follows:

As el 31 December

Investments in associales and Joint ventures 522 458
Nel 522 458

26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As al 31 December

Cosl (a) 181,560 162,655
Accumulated depreciation (a) (41,578) (33,776)
Allowance for impairment losses () (6,305) (6,573)
Fixed assal held lof disposal 633 702
Total 134,310 123,008

(a) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of properly and equipment are consisted of the
following:

Cosl

As al 31 December 2022 22,898 3,588 34,895 99,657 1.617 162,655

As al 31 December 2023 23,558 5,382 39,922 111,604 1.004 181,560
;Aeournulmad deprecialion

As al 31 December 2022 (8,624) {e.7a7) (3.623) (18.732) - (33,776)

As al 31 December 2023 (9,499) (3,143) {5.192) (23,744) - (41,578)

Allowance for impairment losses

As al 31 December 2022 72) (17 (575) (5,873) (36) (6,573)

As al 31 December 2023 (73) (17} (B45) 15.333) (37) (6,305)

Nel book value

As al 31 December 2022 14,202 774 30,697 75,052 1,581 122,306

As al 31 December 2023 13,986 2,222 33,885 82,527 1,057 133,677
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27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consaolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been oliset vihen thera is a
legally enforceable right o offsel current lax assels against current 1ax liabilities and when Ihe deferred income laxes relate to the same fiscal authority, The
following is he analysis of 1he deferred lax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assels 192,263 174,366
Deferred tax liabilities (6,589) 18,138)
Nel 185,674 166,230

(1) Movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Year ended 31 December

As al 1 January 166,230 129,853

Credited to profit or loss (Nole 15) 2777 36,783
Charged to other comprehensive income (2,329) 678
Others [S)] (1,084)
As al 31 December 185,674 166,230

(2) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are attribulable to
the following items:

As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022

.l o ]

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 712,529 178,132 628,362 157,080
Fair value changes of financial instruments 49.012 12,253 60,542 15,219
Provisions 19,915 4,979 23,118 5,779
Others 3,108 BO7 2,237 470
Sublotal 784,654 196,171 714,259 178,558
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair valus changes of financial instrumants (37,302) (8,325) (42,934) (10,733)
Others (6.921) (1.172) (8,729) (1,595)
Subtotal (44,223) (10,497) (51,663) (12,328)
Met 740.431 185,674 662.596 166,230

As al 31 December 2023, there were no signilicant deferred income taxes unrecognized.



160 ERFEEFT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

28, OTHER ASSETS

As al 31 December

Prepayment 1o vendors 13,815 11,889
Interest recelvable 7.933 7.824
Right-ot-use assets 1,979 1,890
Investmeni properties 1,954 1,876
Goorwill (1) 1,247 1,246
Intangible assets 1,053 797
Long-term deferred expenses 1,080 859
Deposits with securilies exchange 147 260
Others 13.228 13.050
Total 42,436 39,691
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Interest recevable (107) (15)

Others (2,801) (2,509)
Subtotal (2.908) (2,524)
Othar assels, net 39,528 37,167

(1) Goodwill

As al 31 December

Gross amount 1,247 1,246
Allowance for impairment losses (534) (534)
Nel balances 713 712

As al 31 December 2023 and 2022, lhe Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash llow lorecast of related cash-generaling unils, Based an
the result of the impairment testing, AMB534 million impairment losses on goodwill were recognized as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022° AMB534
million).

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits fram;
Domestic banks 2,430,145 2,472,383
QOther domestic financial inslitulions 44,845 31,552
Overseas banks 28,876 20,854
Other overseas financial institulions 687 103
Subtotal 2,504,553 2,533,892
Accrued interests 1,797 2.182

Total 2,506,350 2,536,074
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30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As al 31 December

Borrowings liom:
Domestic banks and other financial institutions 566,003 485,154
Overseas banks and olher financial institutions 70,666 55,733
Foreign governmenis 20,443 28,941
Subtolal 666,112 560,828
Accrued interests 7,839 3,034
Total 673.951 572,862

The collateral pledged under barrowings from governmenls and financial inslilulions is disclosed in Nate 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commilments -
Collateral.

31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As ot 31 December

Placements from:
Domestic banks 19,609 14.161
Overseas banks 23,304 2441
Subtotal 42913 38,632
Accrued interests 352 237
Total 43,265 38,869

32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's financial liabililies measured al lair value though prolit or loss mainly comprise of Ihe borrowing vilh
conversion options from non-financial enterprises,

33.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:
Bonds 17,039 14,937
Inter-bank certificates of deposil = 430
Subtotal 17,039 15,367
Accrued interesis 51 25
Total 17,000 15,392

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements |s disclosed in Nole 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

34.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As al 31 December

Demand deposits 647,531 949,186
Term deposits 104,916 110,442
Pladged deposits 1,938 1,426
Cerlificates of deposil 106,253 104,665
Subtotal 860,638 1,165,719
Accrued interests 2,616 2,005

Total 863,264 1,167,724
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35.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As al 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions m 12,301,027 11,730,446
Subordinated bonds Issued (2) 30,010 30,010
Tier-two capital bonds issued 8) 154,692 134,665
Sublotal 12,485,729 11,895,121
Accrued Interests 238,568 230,835
Total 12,724,297 12,125,956

As al 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no defaull related to any debt securilies issued by the Group.
(1) Debt securities issued by financial institutions

As al 31 December 2023

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic markel 2002-2023 2024-2065 1.89-5.90 11,256,362
RMB special bonds Issued in domestic matke! 2015-2021 2024-2037 2.69-4.27 926,084
AMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2022 2024-2032 2.65-4,50 14,480
Fareign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2023 2024-2037 0.63-6.29 654,678
Bonds issuad by the Bank 12,261,614
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2014-2023 2024-2027 1.38-5,77 25,673
RMB bonds Issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2021-2023 2024-2027 2.65-3.60 14,983
AMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2022-2023 2024-2026 3.35-3.50 1,599
Less: Debl secuiilies issued by the Group and held by entilles wilhin the Group (2,842)
Debt securities issued by the Group 12.301.027

As al 31 December 2022

AMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2022 2023-2065 1.65-5.90 10,488,749

RMB special bonds issued in domeslic market 2015-2021 2023-2037 2.76-4.27 1.063.885
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in domestic ma ket 2021-2022 2023 0.80-2.80 10,445
AMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2022 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 17,284
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2022 2023-2037 0.00-5.47 108,255
Bonds issued by the Bank 11.688.618
_ Fareign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas markel 2014-2022 2023-2027 1.20-5.30 31,145
AMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic markel 2018-2022 2023-2027 2.65-4.50 14,477
RAMB bills issued by subsidianes In overseas market 2022 2023-2024 3.05-3.40 899
Less: Debt securities (ssued by the Graup and held by enities within the Group (4,693)

Debt securilies issued by the Graup 11,730,446
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(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As al 31 December 2023

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Group and the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

As at 31 December 2022

AMB subordinated bonds Issued by the Group and the Bank in domestic markel 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not (o exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, lhe coupon rate of the bond remains unchanged,

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2023

AMB Tier-lwo capital bonds issued by the Bank in domeslic markel 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 140,776
USD Tier-iwo capital bands issued by the subsidiaries in overseas markel 2020 2030 2.88 4,916
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 154,692

As at 31 December 2022

AMB Tier-lwo capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2018-2022 2028-2037 2.85-4.45 129,837

USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by tha subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,828
Tier-lwo capital bonds issued by the Group 134,665

The Group issued Tier-two capilal bonds which have fixed coupan rates in yea 2020, 2022 and 2023. The Gioup has an option to redeem part or all of the
bond at tace value upen the closing of the filth year after the bonds' Issuance, If specified redemplion conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were
mel, subjecl to regulatory approval. Il the Group did nol exercise lhis optien, the coupon rale of the bands would remain Ihe same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capilal bonds have the write-down fealure of a Tier-wo capilal instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds
when regulatory Iriggering evenls as stipulaled in the oflering documents acour and any accumulated unpaid inlerest would become nol payable.

36.0THER LIABILITIES
As at 31 December
Deferred government subsidies lor education loans - 20,250 24,359
Pravision for loss on loan commitments and linancial guarantee conlracls 20,159 23,361
VAT and ather taxes payable 12,530 1243
Leases liabilities 10,357 6,501
Amounts received in advance 8,277 10,116
Payables lo other helders of consolidated structured enlities 7,608 9,328
Security deposils for leasing 6,906 7.242
Acciued staff cost 3.627 3,352
Maintenance deposits lrom lesseas 2,689 2,344
Payables lor security brokerage service 1,439 n
Others 8,504 9,104

Total 103.243 108,209
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37.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022

MOF 153,908 36.54

Huijin 146,002 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.50
Total 421,248 100.00

As al 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no change in the Bank's equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percenlage.

38.CAPITAL RESERVE

As al 31 December

Capital premium 182,650 182,650

39. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

As al 1 Januaty (14.624) (11,547)

Amount of loss of debl instruments measured al FYTOC! recognized direclly in other comprehensive income
- Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 9,110 (3,529)
- Net gain on invesiments in debt insiruments measured al FVOCI reclassified la profil or loss on disposal 264 -
- Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 113 244

Amount of loss of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income

— Fair value changes of investments in equily instrumenls designaled as FVTOCI (44) (621)
Less income 1ax effect (2,367) 829
As at 31 December (7.548) (14.624)

40.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriata 10% of its profit for the year. as determined undar the PRC GAAR lo stalutory
surplus reserve, When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank's share capital, the Bank would not be required to lurther appropriate to
statulory surplus reserve, The statulory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulaled loss of the Bank or to increase lhe
Bank's share capital upon approval. The remaining balance of the statulory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank's share capital after
such capitalization. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As al 31 December

The Bank (a) 272,496 255,123
Subsidiaries (b) 5,882 5,302
Total 278,378 260,425

{a) Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions® (the "Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012, the
Bank Is required lo eslablish a general reserve lo address unidentified polential impairment losses. The general reserve should nol be lower than 1.5%
of the outstanding balance of risk-bearing assels as al the year-end date.

{b) Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements In the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required lo appropriate cerlain amounts of its profit for the year
as general reserves.

41.0THER RESERVE

Other reserve includes remeasurement of employee benelits obligation and the eflective partion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges.
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42, RETAINED EARNINGS

As al 1 January . . . 513,776 - 465,883 i

Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 85,283 B2,728

Less: Appropriation lo stalutory surplus reserve (@ (7,381) (7.272)
Approprialion lo general surplus reserve (b) () (1.21) (6.419)
Approprialion lo general reserve L) (i) (17.953) {1.914)
Dividends (b} () (20,683) (19,740)
Others (43) 510

As at 31 Decembel 545,728 513,776

(a) Profit appropriation for 2023

The Bank appiopriated AMB7,381 million to the slalutory surplus reserve based on profit for Ihe ye—ar of 2023. Other proposal far profit appropriations of the
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 is pending for approval by the Board of Directors.

(b) Profit appropriation for 2022

Pursuant to the Board of Direclors’ Meeting held on 26 December 2023, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approved as following:

() An appropriation of AMB7,271 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

(i) An appropriation of AMB17,373 millien to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group's consolidated financial stalements for
the year ended 31 December 2023,

filiy A cash dividend of RMB20, 683 milllion by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 which has been included in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023. As ended 31 December 2023, the cash dividend has been paid.

(c) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, retained earnings include surplus reseive appropriated by the Bank's subsidiaries that attiibutable 1o the Bank amounting
AMB 10,558 million and RMBB,529 million,

43.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

CDB Capital Co.. Ltd. 10,367 10.252

CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 13,273 12,205
CDB Securities Co,, Lid, 3,349 3,208
Total 26,989 25,755

44,CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise lhe following balances:

As al 31 December

Balance wilh central banks and deposils wilh banks and other financial institutions 168,680 141,569

Balances with an ariginal maturity of three months or less:

Financial assels held under resale agreements 476,884 404,707
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 135,435 118,323
Investments in government bonds 7.436 1,784

Total 788,435 666,383
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45.STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Consolidated structured entities

Stiuclured enlilies consolidated by the Group include certain assel-backed securities, assel management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed by
the Group, The Group has power aver lhese struclured enlilies, is enlilled lo variable returns from lis involvement in related activilies and Is able to use ils
power to affect the amount of its variable returns from such struclured enlities, Therefore, the Group has control over these structuied entilies.

As at 31 December 2023, the tolal assets of the consolidated struclured enlities referred to above totaled RMB12,519 million (31 December 2022: AMB14,600

million).
(2) Unconsolidated structured entities

(a) Structured entilies Issued, Initiated and managed by the Group

—_—

Unconsolidated slruclured enlilies issued, initialed and managed by the Group primarily Include non-principal guaranteed weallh management products,
assel-backed securities, assels management plans and funds. The Group has no plans lo provide financial or other support fo these unconsolidated
slructured entilies.

As al 31 December 2023, the total assels of unconsolidated structured enlilies issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted (o AMB146,322 million
(31 Decembesr 2022: RMB162,668 million). The carrying amount of the Group's share In these structured entities amounted to RMBB,525 million (31 December
2022: RMBB,491 million). These amounts represented the Group's maximum exposure lo these struciured entities.

(b) Struclured enlities Issued, iniliated and managed by the third parly

The Group classifies Its interest held in other structured enlilies issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets al lair value livough other comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2023, the informaion on the amaunl of total
assats of Ihese unconsolidated structuied enlitias was not readily avallable from the public domain.

As at 31 December 2023, Ihe balance of structured entilies issued by other inslilutions held by the Group amounted to RMB17,760 million (31 December 2022:
RMB20,040 million), Among them. the balance reported on trading assets and ather financial assets amounted to RMB17,539 million (31 December 2022:
AMB19.755 million), and the balance reportad on the Investment on debt instruments al fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to RMB121
million (31 December 2022: AMB285 million).

46.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it lransfers loans lo struclured entilies which issue asset-backed securities 1o investors, The Group
assessed among olher faclors, whether or not lo derecognize \he Iransferred assels by evalualing the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the
assels and whelher it has relinquished its contiols over these assels based on Ihe criteria as detailed in Note 3(13) (h) and Note 4(4).

As at 31 December 2023, the unexpired assel-backed securilies included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of AMB143 million
(31 December 2022: RMB148 million), which retained substantially all the risks and rewards of thesa special purpose trusts and Iherelore has not been
deracognized in the consolidated linancial statements.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no continuing invalvement in these assets. And the Group had no balance in respect of loans transferred
that qualified for full derecognition.

47, SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reparling in order 1o assess performance and allocate resources, Segmenl informalion is presented on the same basis as the
Group's management and internal raporting,

All tfransactions between operaling segments are conducted on an arm's langih basis, with intta-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office
level. Income and expenses direclly associaled with each segment are included in delermining operaling segment perfarmance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity invesiment, leasing and securilies. The Group's main operaling
segmenls are sel oul below:

(1) Banking operations
This segment consisls of corporate banking, debl issuance and treasury operations, The corporate banking opeiations primarily consist of lending, deposits,
agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash managemenl, remilance and selllement, custody and guarantee services, Debt issuance is the major
source of lunding to corporate banking operations. The lreasury operalions primarily include monsy market transactions, foreign exchange tiansactions, bond
investmenis, customer-based interes! rate and foreign exchange derivalive transactions and asset and liability management,

(2) Equity investment
This segment consisls of equily investment aclivities.

(3) Leasing operations
This segment consists of linance lease and operaling lease business in which the Group acls as a lessor.

(4) Securities operations

This segment consists of securily brokerage, proprietary trading and undetwriling operations.
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Interest income 630,685 2,044 11,682 1,182 (3,553) 642,040
Interest expense (472,260) (1,857) (10,405) (760) 3,555 (481,727)
Net interest income 158,425 187 1,277 422 2 160,313
Include: Net interest income from customers 158,274 205 1,510 324 - 160,313
Inter-segment el intarest income/{expenses) 151 (18) (233) 98 2 =
Net fee and commission income 164 150 (86) 272 30 530
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 138 151 (25) 266 - 530
Inter-segment net fee and commission 26 (1) (61) & 30 -
Other income, net (a) 26,417 B,122 7,609 265 (1,025) 41,388
Operaling expenses and credit impairment and
other impairment losses on assets {88,679 £ B:49) (488) (89 (39854)
Profit before income tax 89,377 8,134 5,452 471 {1.057) 102,377
As at 31 December 2023
Segmenl assets 17,998,894 236,084 407 672 45,604 (225,995) 18,462,259
Unallocated assels 192,263
Tolal assets 18,654,522
Segment liabllities 16,625,882 61,208 371,400 29,582 (119.869) 16,968,203
Unallocated liabilities 6,580
Tolal liabilities 16,974,792
Other infarmation:
Deprecialion and amartization 1,766 142 6,098 55 (88) 7.963
Capital expenditure 1,297 27 19,134 10 - 20,468
Credit Impairment losses 79,644 (407) 744 (686) 174 80,089
Other impairment losses on assels 76 - 1,499 - - 1.875
Credit commitments 3,626,788 244 - - (17,432) 3,609,600

Interest income 623,239 10,758 1128 (2.611) 633,280
Interest expensa (454,046) (1.908) (8.207) (531) 2617 (462.970)
Net interest income 168,293 (1,137) 2,551 597 6§ 170,310
nclude: Net inferest income from customers 167,271 (64) 2726 377 - 170,310
Inter-segment net inlerest income/(expenses) 1,022 (1,073) (175) 220 & -
Nel fee and commission income 609 592 (51) 373 (19) 1,504
Include: Nat fee and cor ior from ci s 559 592 (o) 363 - 1,504
Inter-segment net fee and commuission 50 - 41 10 (19) »
Other income, net (a) 47,415 6,300 7.812 881 (933) 61,275
D’f::;i?ﬂ::{’;";‘;‘:fa‘:’::‘: ppuirokgt St i (128,631) (980) {5,354) {1,096) 119 135,942
Profit before income tax 87,686 4,775 4,958 555 (827) 97,147
As al 31 December 2022
Segment assels 17,651,016 228,772 352,886 43,714 (205,671) 18,068,717
Unallocated assets - 174,366
Total assets 18.,243.083
Segment liabilities 16,322,299 62,195 318,803 28,126 (102,147) 16,629,366
Unallocated liabillies o o 8,136
Total liabilities 16,637,502
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 2,006 (137) 5,381 60 122 7432
Capital expenditure 647 315 14,068 9 - 15.03_6_-
Credit Impairment losses 113,425 4 1.227 548 222 115,426
Other impairment losses on assels 1 - 3,030 - - 3,03
Credit commitments 3,737,608 244 - - (9,000) 3,728,852

(a) Other income includes nel Irading and foreign exchange gain, nel (loss)/gain on derecognilion of debl instruments at amorlized cost, dividend income,
net (loss)/gain on investment securities, other income and share of profit of associales and joint venlures.
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48.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the MOF owned 36.54% of e issued share capilal of the Bank,

The Group enfers inta Iransactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of
lransactions with Ihe MOF are as follows:

As al 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 54,987 56,248
Interest rate range (%) 1.65-4.42 1.98-4.42

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,736 2,137
Nel trading gain 34 74
{2) Huijin

Huifin is a wholly owned subsidfary of China Investment Corporation, wilth a registered capital of RMB828,200 million, lts principal activities are equity
investments as authorized by the Chinese State Council and il does nol engage in olher commercial operations. Huljin exercises Its rights and assumes the
obligatians as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government. As al 31 Decamber 2023 and 2022, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital
of the Bank.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As al 31 December

Trading asssts and other financial assets mandatorily classilied al fair value thraugh profit or loss 634 1.706
Debl instruments a fair value through other comprehensive incame 93.612 B3,106
Interest rate range (%) 2.44-4.20 2.15-4.23

Year ended al 31 December

Interest income 2522 2,240
Nel trading gain 16 78

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with enlities conlralled or jointly cantrolled by Huijin are carried out in the Group's ordinary course of business undar
normal commercial terms.,

(3) Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood')

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Stale Administration of Foreign Exchange ol China. lis principal activilies are domestic and overseas
investments in project, equily, debl, loan and fund, liduciary management and investment management,

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, Bultonwaod uwne:: '2?.19!6.01‘ the issued share capital of the Bank.

Transaclions with Buttonwood and transactions with enlilies contralled or joint conirolled by Bultonwoad are carried out in the Group's ordinary course ol
business under normal commercial terms.

(4) Transaction with subsidiaries
The carrying amoun! of transaclions with subsidiaries included in the Bank's statemant of financial positian is as follows:

As at 31 December

Assels

Placements with banks and other linancial institutions 9,953 4,959
Derivative financial assets - 1
Loans and acvances lo cuslomers 44,831 41,406
Other assets 20 22
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial instilutions 10,037 9,77
Derivative financial lfabilities - 15
Due lo cuslomers 154,158 121,920
Debt securilies issued 2,902 4,569
Other liabilities g 6

As at 31 December 2023, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and financial quarantes contracts issued 1o subsidiaries were RMB17,432 million
(31 December 2022: RMB3,000 million).
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Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank's incame statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,853 1,816

Interes! expense (1.864) (1,008)
Fee and commission income 51 60
Fee and commission expense (5) (10)
Dividend income 12,018 7.863

Transactions between the Bank and ils subsidiaries are carried out on noimal commencial lerms in ordinary course of business.

(5) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between Ihe Group and ils associates and joint venlures are catiied out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The Group's
liansaclions and balances with associales and joint ventures for 1he yeais ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were not significant,

(6) Key management personnel

Key management persannel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility lo plan, direct and contral the activities of the Group. During the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no malerial transactions wilh key managemenl personnel.

(7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no malerial fransaclions with the Annully Scheme set up by the Bark, apart lrom the
obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.

49.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(1) Legal proceedings

As al 31 Decamber 2023 and 2022, the Group was Invalved in certain lawsuils arising from its normal business operations. After cansulling legal professionals,
managemen! of the Greup believes that the ullimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a malerial impact on the linancial posilion or operating resull of
the Group.

(2) Credit commitments

As ot 31 December

Loan commitments 3,603,476 3,716,738

Letlers of guarantee Issued 3,047 3,703
Bank acceptance 1,623 6.375
Letters of credit issued 1,154 2,036
Tatal 3.609.600 3,728,852

As at 31 December 2023, the amoun! of credit commitments wilh ariginal maturilies of less than one year was RMBE0, 147 million (31 December 2022
RMBSD,793 million), with the remainder of the credil commitments were all with original malurilies aver one year.

(3) Capital commitments

As al 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

— equily instruments 41,341 47,833
- property and equipment 27,278 38,001
Total 68.620 85,834

The Group's capital commitments of property and equipment are mainly property and equipment for lease. As al 31 December 2023, the Group's capital
commitments of property and equipment for lease were AMB26,700 million (31 December 2022: AMB37,333 million).
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(4) Finance lease commitments
At Ihe end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following finance lease commitments:

Contractual amount

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, Ihe Group's finance lease commitments were all within one year,
(5) Collateral
(a) Assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the and of each reporting period are as follows:

As al 31 December

&

Bonds

18,611
Negotiable Certificates of Depasit = 500

As al 31 December 2023, he principal of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB17,039 million (31 December 2022:
FAMB15,367 million) as sel out in Note 33. All repurchase agreements were due within 1 year from the eflective dale of these agreaments,

In addition, certain finance lease receivables, leased assels under aperating lease, bonds and deposits with banks, where the Group was a lessor, were
pledged as collateral for borrowings from other banks, As at 31 December 2023, carrying amounts of these callateral amounted to RMB224,744 million (31
December 2022; AMB158,952 million).

As at 31 December 2023, certain bonds were pledged as collateral for due to customers and seeurities lending by he Group, the carrying amaunts of two
business mentionad above amounted to AMB3,271 million and 1,322 million, respectively (31 December 2022: AMB2,001 millian and 846 million, respectively).

{b) Collateral accepled

The Group received securities as collateral in connection wilh the purchase of financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20), The Group did not hold any
collaleral thal can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

50.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group's activities expose il 1o a vaiiely of financial risks. The Group analyzes, identifies, monilors and reports on (hese financial risks or the combinations
of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a core characterislic of a financial undertaking, and business operalions cannat be carried out
without being exposed (o operaling risks. The Group's aim is, therefore, 1o achieve an appropriate balance belween risks and returns, and minimize the
potential adverse elfects these risks may have on Ihe Group's financial peiformance,

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate debts wilh different maturities, and eans spread income by investing these
funds in medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure seclors, basic industries and pillar industries. The Group seeks lo increase ils prafitability by
minimizing the funding cosls as il issues different lypes of bonds, where feasible under market conditions, 1o meet ils asset and liability management needs
and funding needs.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivalive Iransactions including, among others, currency lorward, curency and interest rate swaps, inleresl rate
{loor options, for risk management purposes as well as to meel lhe needs of ils customars.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in ils risk management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation of the risk
limits in refiance of raliable and timely information from ils information systems, as part of ils efforts o identify and analyze risks, The Group regularly reviews
and conlinues to make impravement (o lts risk management policies and systams to reflect changes in markets and produets, and incorparate best praclices.
The most Important types of financial 1isks to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure lo credit nisk which represents the potenlial loss that may arise from a cuslomer's or counlerparly's tailing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group's business, management Iherefore carefully manages its exposure to credil risk, Credil
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead lo loans and advances, and inveslment activilies including debt instruments and derivatives.
Ofi-balance sheel financial instruments, such as loan commitments and linancial guarantee contracts, also expose the Group fo credit risk.

(2

—_—

In accordance with the former CBIRC's regulatory guidelines on the internal credit rating approach, and in light of its unique business fealures, the Group has
eslablished its credil raling framework, including credil rating methodologies, procedures, conlrol and management, data collection and IT infrastucture. ILis a
two-dimensianal risk rating framework that incorporates bolh customer credil ratings for their prababililies of defaull and the facility credit ratings for estimated
loss given default when the customers become default. To ensure the accuracy and comprehensiveness of the ratings, the Group has also established internal
quidelines and criteria lor counlry rating, sovareign rating, regional rating and industry rating,



(a) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures
on the entire credil process, including credit due diligence and loan
applications, credit review and approval, loan disbursement, post-lending
monitoring and non-performing loan managemenl, By applying strict
and standardized credit operational procedures, the Group stiives
to strengthen Ils end-to-end credit managemenl far pre-lending due
diligence, credit rating, review and approval, disbursement review
and approval, and post-lending monitoring, impiove the mitigating
effecliveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal of
non-performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management
systems, as pari of its efforts 1o comprehensively enhance its credit risk
management capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a linancial assat, in whole or in part, when it comes
to the conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that
it cannot reasonably expect lo recover the whole or part of the linancial
assel. Indicators that it has become Impossible o reasonably expect to
recover a financial asset, in whole or In pail, include: (1) enfarcement has
been compleled; and (2) the Gioup has no olher recovery alternalive but
to foreclose and dispose of he collaleral, and does not expect the value
ol the callateral lo fully cover the principal and inlerest of the financial
asset,

Apart from the credil risk exposures on credit assels, the Group is
also exposed 1o credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and
it manages its risk exposures on its lreasury operations by carefully
screening counterparties with acceplable credit quality, balancing
credil risk and investinent returns, adapling raling-based underwriling
by comprehensively cansidering the internal and external credil rating
intormation, and raviewing and adjusting credit limits in a timely manner
through limit management systems, In addition, the Group also provides
off-balance sheet loan commitments and finanoial guarantee services to
cuslomers, which may expose the Group to the risk of having to make
payments on behall ol customers in case Ihey delaull, where the risk
approximates that of a loan. For these operalions, the Group adopls risk
conlrol procedures and policies similar 1o those applicable to the credit
business lo minimize their credit risk.

(b) Collateral

The Group has adopted a serles of ciedit risk miligation policies and
measures, including the requiremant for collateral. The Group has
developed operational guidelines lor the acceptability of specific assets
pledged as collateral and Iheir capability lo mitigate credit nsk, and
regularly reviews the assessment resulls of the collateral.

The primary lypes of collateral are rights and commercial assels such as
toll collection rights, real estales, land use rights, equily securilies, cash
deposits and equipment, collaterals held for financial assels other than
locans and advances to customers aie dependent on the nature of the
financial instruments. Debl instruments are generally unsecured, but for
asset-backed securities and other similar instruments, they are generally
secured by poals ol financial assels. As at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, the Group held no significan! loreclosed assels.

(¢) Credil ralings

The Group uses internal client credil ratings to reflect the probability of
default assessments of individual counterparties, and employs dilferent
intemal rating models for different types ol counterparties. Botrower
information and specific information (e.g., the borrower's revenue and the
industry/sector it operales in) is incorporated into the rating models, and
also includes external dala of the borrower as supplementary informalian.
In addition, the models also fully consider the expert judgments of cradit
and risk management offlicers, thus enabling the cedit ratings to capture
factois that may not have been considered by other sources.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The Group applies ECL models to calculate the ciedit loss allowance for
its debt financial instruments canried al amortized cost and FVTOCI, as
well as loan commilmenis and financial guarantee contracts, The method
applied by the Group in assessing the axpecled credit loss of its financial
assels is a risk parameters model,

For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of
expected credit loss, the group assesses whether the credit risk of the
relevant financlal instruments has increased significanily since the inilial
recognition and uses a “three-Stage” model lo measure the credil loss
allowance and ECL:
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Stage 1: A financial instrument whase credit risk has nol increased
significantly since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition,
but it is not considered as a

financiel instrument wilh credil impairment.
Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred,

A Stage 1 financial instrument credil loss allowance is measured at an
amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument
in the next 12 menths, Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall
have their credil loss allowances measured al an amount equivalent to the
expected credit loss of the financial instrument expected Lo arise over ils
remaining duration,

Purchased or ariginated credit-impalied financial assets are those financial
assels (hal are ciedil-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifelime basis.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex models and assumptions in calculating the expecled credil
loss. These models arl assumptions relate to the fulure macroeconomic
conditions and the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
defaull by customers and the corresponding loss). In assessing the
expected credit risks in accordance with accounting standards, the Group
uses judgments. assumplions and estimates where appropriale, including:

- Segmentation ol business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics;

- Selection of appropriate models and determination of ralevant key
measurement parameters:

- Determination of the criteria for significanl increase in credil risk
("SICR");

- Delinition of default and credil impairment;

- Establishment ol the number and relative weightings of
forward-looking scenarios,

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances 10 customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characleristics

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis,
a grouping ol exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk
characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous,
In performing this grouping, the Group uses information such as the
type of borrower, industry, usage, and type of collaleral 10 ensure the
reasonableness of Its credit risk grouping.

Selection of appropriate models and determination of ielevant key
measurement paramelers

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and
whether a financial asset has become credil-impaired. the Group
recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credil loss
for the next 12 months ar the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key
paramelers of ECL measurement include possibility of delault (PD), loss
given defaull (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD), The Group establishes
its PD, LGD and EAD based on the intermal rating system currently used
for risk management purposes. In accordance with the requirements ol
IFRAS 9, the Group performs quantitalive analyses of historical stalistics
(such as counterparty ralings, guarantes methods and collateral types,
repayment methods. etc.) and forward-looking information,

The parameters are defined as follows:

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulling on its financial
obligation, either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over the remaining
litetime (Lifetime PD) of ihe obligation. The delinition of default refers 1o
the failure 1o pay the debl as agread in the contract or other violations
of the debt coniract that have a significant impact on the normal debt
repayment.

LGD represenis the Group's expeclation ol the extent of loss on defaulled
exposure, LGD is expressed as a peicentage loss per unit of exposuie al
the time of default (EAD).

EAD Is based an the amounts the Group expects 1o be owed al the lime
of default.
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The group uses an intemal credit raling to track the defaull probability
assessment rasulls of a single counterparly and adopls different inlernal
rating models far different types ol counlerparties. Borrowers and
specific loan informalion collecled at the time of a loan application are
incorporaled into Ihe raling model. The group regularly monitors and
reviews the assumptions associated with the calculation of expecied
credil loss, including the probaility of default and changes in value of the
collateral aver each period.

In 2023, no significant changes were made to the estimated methadology
or key assumplions,

Delermination of the criteria for SICR

The Group assesses whelher the credil risk al the relevant financial
instruments has increased signilicanlly since the initial recognition al
each balance sheel dale. For the puipose of slaging an assessment of
ils financial assels, the Group thoioughly considers various reasonable
and supportable criteria that may reflect whether or not there has been
a significant change in their credil risk. Key lactars considered include
regulatory and operaling environments, inlernal and exteinal credit ratings,
solvency, viabilily as a going concem, lerms of [pan contracts, repayment
bahaviors, among others. The Group compares the risk of defaull of
financial Instruments on the reporting date against that on the |nitial
recagnilion date In order lo determine the changes of default risk,

The Group sels quantilative and qualilative criteria 1o help determine
whether the cradil risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since its initial recognition. The crileria include changes in the borrower's
PD, changes In ils credit risk rating and other faclors. The Group decided
that credit risk has significantly increased I conlractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, The Gioup assumes that the credit risk on a
financial insiument has not increased significantly since initial recognition
il the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk al the
repaiting date, As of the report date, low credil risk financial instruments
with a high credit rating (internal rating above admittance threshold) are
deemed lo have a low credit risk and no assessment s performed as
to whether lhe credil risk on the reporl date has signilicantly increased
compared wilh the initial recognition.

Delinition of delault and credit impairment

The crileria used by the Group lo determine whether a credit impairment
oceurs under IFAS @ is consistent with the internal credit isk management
objectives. In assessing whelher a borrower has become credil-impaired,
the Group mainly considers the following quantitative and qualitative
faclors!

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrowar;

- Abreach of contract, such as a defaull or past due evan! in relation
to interest or principal payment, or the borrower 15 overdue for more
than 90 days In any principal, advances, Interest or investment in
corporate bonds due (o the Group;

- The lender of the boirower, for economic or conlractual reasons
refating 1o the borrower's financial difficully, having granted lo |he
borrewer a concession that the lender would not olherwise consider;

- Il is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankiuplcy or
other financial reorganizalion;

- The disappearance of an aclive market for that financial asset
because of financial difficullies;

~  The purchase or origination of a financlal asset at a deep discount
Ihat rellects the Incurred credit loss.

The credit impairment of a financial assst may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios

The assessmenl of whether there has been a significant increase in
credil risk and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking
Infermation. Through the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies
the key economic Indicators that affect the credil risk and ECL of various
business types, including macroeconomic index, Enlerprise prospect
index and Real eslate index, elc. The impact of these economic Indicators
on the PDs and Ihe LGDs varies from one lype of business to anolher,
The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert
lorecasts and slatislical analyses to determine the relationships between
these economic indicators and Ihe PDs and LGDs, The Group assesses
and forecasts these economic indicalors al least on an annual basis,
calculates the best eslimates for the fulure, and regularly reviews the
assessmenl resulls,

Based on statistical analyses and experl judgements, the Group
determines the weighlings of the oplimislic scenario, base scenario and
pessimistic scenario and the corresponding macro-economic forecas!
under each scenario. The group’s multi-scenario economic farecasts
include the most likely base scepario and a number of possible scenarios
thal reflect positive or negalive lrends In the economy. The gioup assessas
and determines the weighling ol each scenario, The weighling of base
scenario is grealer than the aggregated weighlings of the rest scenarios.
The Group uses tha weighled 12-month ECL (Stage 1) or weighted liletime
ECL (Stage 2 and Stage 3) to measure relevanl impairment allowances,
These weighted credit losses are calculaled by mulliplying the expected
credil loss under each scenario by the corresponding scenario weighting,

ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial stalements
reflect the effect of a range ol possible economic oulcomes, and lhe
weighted amount of the expected credil loss recognized in the financial
slatements is generally higher than that calculated by using only the
benchmark scenario, In 2023, the Group has taken into account different
macroeconomic scenarios and made forward-looking forecasts ol
macroeconomic indicators. Including: quarler-on-quarter GDP growth,
used to eslimate ECL, 1anges from 4.57% 1o 4.78% in the neulral scenario
for 2024,

At 31 December 2023, the Group concluded thal three scenarios are
appropriale, being the oplimislic scenario, base scenarlo and pessimistic
scenario, As al 31 December 2023, the incremental impact o the credil
loss allowance ol using the probability-waighted ECL against the base
scenario was less lhan §%.

Scenario weightings

Scenario weighting is one of the important melhods of sensilivily analysis.
The decremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase
of prabability-weighting of the oplimistic scenario and a 10% decrease of
Ihe probability-weighting of the base case scenario when measuring the
ECL derived from using aforesaid three scenarios, The incremental impact
would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase on probability-weighting
of the pessimistic scenatio and a 10% decrease on probabilily-weighled
ol the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using
aforesaid three scenarios,

The estimated fufure cash flows for loans and advances (o cuslomers at
amortized cost in Stage 3

Al each measuremen! dale, the Group projects the fulure cash inflows af
each future period related to credil-impaired financial assels. The cash
flows are discounted and aggregaled lo determine the present value of
the assets' future cash flows,



% I8FE » FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 173

(e) Maximum exposure o credil risk before taking Into account any collateral held or other credil enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating o financial essels

Balances with cenlral banks 98,364 113,857
Deposits with banks and other linancial institutions 143,422 113.326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 544,247 471,537
Derivative financial assets 3.569 11.093
Financial assets held under resale agreements 477,525 404,823
Loans and advances ta customers 14,244,743 13,899,107
Financial Investments 731,493 756,510
Tiading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 731,095 755,920
Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 398 580
Debt instruments al amartized cost 700985 935,357
Debt instruments al fair value through other comprehensive income 1,167,521 1,022,499
Otheis 8,536 11,571
Subtotal 18,120,405 17,739,680
Credil risk exposures relating lo credit commitments
Loan commilments 3,603,476 3,716,738
Letlers of guaraniee issued 3,347 3,703
Bank acceplance 1,623 6,375
Letters of credit Issued 1,154 2,038
Subtolal 3,608,600 3,728 852
Total 21,730,005 21,468,532

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposures o the Group as al 31 December 2023 and 2022, wilhout taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidaled statement of financial posilion. the exposures set oul abova are
based on carrying amounts of these assels.

(f) Credit commitments and provision
Change In provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee cantracts

As at 1 January 2023 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

Transfers:

Translers to Stage 2 (956) 956 - =
Transfers to Stage 1 2,763 (2,763) - =
Remeasurement (a) {1,946) 4,003 - 2,147

Charge for the year 2,841 - - 2,841

Malure af reverse (3,087) (5,187) = (8,284)
Faraign exchange differences 10 B4 = 94

As at 31 December 2023 7,505 12410 244 20,158

As al 1 January 2022 4,019 12,930 244 17,183

Transfers:

Trarislers lo Stage 2 (5,079) 5,079 - -
Transfers (o Stage 1 879 (879) - -
Remeasurement (a) 6,910 4,175 - 11,085

Charge lor Ihe year 3.008 - - 3,008

Malure ar reverse (1,888) (6,600) - (8.,488)
Foreign exchange diffeiences Kl 532 - 563

As al 31 December 2022 7.880 15,237 244 23,361

(a) Remeasurament includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of PDs and LGDs; transfer among Stage 1, Slage 2 and 3 due 1o
loan commitments and financial guarantee conltracls experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the period, and the
consequent "sel up” (of “set down") belween 12-manth and lifelime ECL.
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(g) The fallowing financial insiruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss
The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances o customers into “Low Risk”, “Medium Risk”, “High Risk".

= 'Low Risk" exposures demonsirale a sirong capacily to mes! financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of dafault and/ar low levels of
expecled loss.

= "Medium Risk" exposures require closer monilonng and demanstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, wilh low defaull risk.
- "High Risk® exposures require varying degrees of special attention and defaull risk is of greater concarmn,

The fallowing financial instruments subjsct to impairment are analyzed for the dillerent expecled credil loss, unless ofherwise stated, Stage | represents a
12-monih expecled credit loss. and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expecled credit loss,

Loans and advances to customers al amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 13,372,962 - - 13,372,962
Medium Risk = 1,325,842 - 1,325,842
High Risk = - 187,762 187,762
Total 13,872,962 1,325,842 187,762 14,886,566
Less: Credit impairment losses on assels (238.554) (329,057) (128,634) (696.245)
Net 13,134,408 996,785 59,128 14,190,321
| . ses w

Credit Grade

l.ow Risk 12,892,388 - - 12,892,388
Medium Risk - 1,344,107 = 1,344,107
High Risk - = 233,718 233718
Total 12,892,388 1,344,107 233,718 14,470,213
Less: Credit impairment Insses on assets (209,408) (254,675) (155,120) (619.203)
MNet 12,682,980 1,089,432 78,598 13,851,010

-A o sms
Credit Grade

Low Risk 710,920 - = 710,920
Meadium Risk = 28 = 28
High Risk = - 1,670 1,670
Tolal 710,920 28 1,670 712,618
Less: Credit Impairment losses on assels (10,129) {6) (1,498) (11,833)
Net . 700.791 22 172 700,985

cel

Credil Grade

Low Risk 945,348 - - 945,348
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - = 2,024 2,024
Total 945,348 - 2,024 947,372
Less' Credil impairment losses on assets (10.209) - {1,806) (12,015)
Net 935,139 - 218 935,357

Debt instruments al fair value through ather comprehensive income

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,167,504 - - 1,167,504
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - = 17 17
Total 1,167,504 - 17 1,167,521

Expected credit loss on assels (238) - (1.326) {1.562)
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,022,466 - - 1,022,466
Medium Risk = - - -
High Risk - = a3 33
Total 1,022 466 - a3 1,022,499
Expected credit loss on assels {128) - (1,324) (1,452)

Lean cammilmenis and linancial guarantee contracls

Cradit Grade

Low Risk 3,489,940 - - 3,480,840
Medium Risk - 19,416 - 119,416
High Risk - = 244 244
Total 3,489,940 119.416 244 3,609,600

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,568,268 - - 3,568,268
Medium Risk - 160,340 - 160,340
High Risk - - 244 244
Total 3,568,268 160,340 244 3.728.852

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7.505 = = 7,505
Medium Risk = 12410 = 12410
High Risk = = 244 244
Total 7.505 12.410 244 20,159

| 31 December 2022

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7.880 - - 7,880
Medium Risk - 16,237 = 15,237
High Risk - - 244 244
Total 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

Collateral and Other Credit Entrancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for tinanclal assals considered to be credil-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will lake possession
of collateral to miligate patential credit loss. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigale potential loss are shown
below:

Cradit impaired assels

Loans and advances lo customers 187,762 (128,634) 58,128 30,352
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,670 (1,498) 172 -
Debl instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 17 (1,326) 17 -

Total 189,449 (131.458) 59,317 30,352
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Credit impaired assets

Leans and advances lo cusiomers 233,718 (155,120) 78,598 58,653
Debt instruments at amartized casl 2,024 (1,808) 218 -
Debt instruments at fair value thiough other comprehensive income 33 (1,324) 33 —
Total 235,775 (158,250) 78.848 58.653

The fair value of colialeral presented in Ihe lable abiove is up to the book value of the credit risk exposure. As at 31 December 2023, (he quality of the Group's
collateral or credit enhancement did not change significantly compared to prior year.,

(h) Loans and advances lo cuslomers
The principal of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturily are as lollaws:

Unsecured loans 497,271 1,531,358 2,384,665 4,413,204
Guaranteed loans 79,015 234,832 947,095 1,260,942
Loans secured by collateral 12,327 71,083 1,886,124 1,949,534
Pledged loans 6,719 35,062 7,238,951 7.280,732
Total 595,332 1,872,335 12,436,835 14,904,502

Tolal

Unsecured loans 546,288 1,381,515 2,229,330 4,157,133

Guaranteed |oans 110,219 241,722 829,154 1,181,005
Loans secured by collateral 57517 169,704 1,637,374 1,864,595
Pledged loans 13,096 48 B4 7,210,161 7272101
Total 727,120 1,841,785 11,906,019 14,474,924

Loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Loans and advances to customers

Road transportation 2,815,160 19 2,629,214 18
Urban renewal 2,640,962 18 2,791,908 19
Wn::j:l lli:::semalinn, enviranmenlal protection and public 1,552,228 10 1,503,640 10
Eleclric power, heating and water production and supply 1,529,245 10 1,436,376 10
Urban public transportation 1,173,226 8 1,062,034 7
Railway transporiation 1,136,320 8 1,006,774 8
Manufacturing industry 1,084,370 7 1,015,403 7
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical indusiry 554,406 4 570,021 4
Other transportation 528,563 4 511,028 4
Education 312,282 2 281,996 2
Mining industry 239,530 2 322,431 2
Financial industry 161,892 1 149,456 1
Tel:z;;q;r::n‘aeaﬂnn and olher information transmission 72,632 1 75.979 1
Others 1,103,686 5] 1,028,664 7

Total 14,904,502 100 14,474,924 100




Restructured loans

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 177

The Group somelimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies (he lerms of loans and advances provided lo cuslomers due lo deterioration in the barrover's
financial posilion which resulted In Ihe borrower's inability 1o maet its repaymeni obligalions, with a view lo maximising recovery, Such restrucluring aclivilies
include extended payment lerm arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness, efc. Restructuring measures are based on indicators or criteria
which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue, These measures are kepl under continuous review, As al 31 December
2023, the Group's tolal restructured loans amounted to AMB261,770 milllon (31 December 2022: RMB69,239 million),

() Investmenl in debt instruments

Carrying amount of investment in debl Instruments analyzed by credil rating from independent raling agencies is as follows:

As ol 31 December 2023

Debt securilies issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 85,060 8,854 10 - 1,065,884 - 1,159,808
Financial institutions 53,158 455 5,088 3,656 - - 62,357
Corporales 330,701 1,063 8 192 - 2,605 334,559
Assel-backed securilies 180 8 - - - - 188
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (a) 467,873 - 16,840 6,323 - - 491,036
Wealth management praducts issued by other banks - - - 5. - 3,743 3,743
Investmenis in trust plans and olhers 10 at - - - 3873 3914
Asset management plans - - - - - 335 335
Total 936,982 10,401 21,946 10,171 1,065.884 10,556  2.055,940

Debt securities issued by:

Governmenis and tuasi-govermnmenis 85,528 2,666 10 - 1,190,006 - 1.278.210
Financial institutions 77,448 728 3,364 2727 - - 84,267
Corporates 271,008 2,646 n7 262 - 3s5n 278,204
Assel-backed securities 257 32 - - - - 289
Inter-bank ceilificates of depaosil (a) 441,779 - 31,978 9,576 - - 483,333
Weallh management products issued by other barks - - - - - 3,450 3,450
Invesiments In trusl plans and others - - - - - 1,316 1,316
Asset management plans - - - I 382 382
Total 876020 __ 6072 _ 36060 _ 12565 1190005 _ B713 2129451

(a) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates ol deposit.
(b) Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBOC, Huijin and Policy banks

of China.

(c) Olher unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinaled bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset
management plans, and weallth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans,
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(i) Financial assels other than loans and advances lo customers by nature of counterparties:

Balances \nihh central banks 98,364 - - 98,364
Deposits with banks and other financial institulions - 143,422 - 143 422
Placemafls with banks and other financial institutions - 544,247 - 544,247
Derivallve-financml assals - 439 3,130 - 3,569
@mal assals held under 1esale agreements - - 477,456 69 477,528
_Plnancial assel_smlu;sgled al fair value thraugh profit or In;s 2122 174,616 554,755 731,493
7Debt instruments at amortized cost - ) 599,487 244 101,254 700,985
Debt 'ms1rumenls_a| fair value through other comprehensive income 558,200 382,766 226,555 1,167.521
_ Other financlal assets 2,441 963 5.132 8,536
_Tolal 1,261,053 1,726,844 887,765 _ 3,875,662

31 December 2022

_Balances with central banks 113,857 - - 113,857
Deposits with banks and other financial institulions - 113,326 - 113,326
Placements wilh banks and other lin;lclal Institulions _ - 471,537 - - 471,537
Derivaiive_ﬁnancial assals 4,107 6.986 - 11,083
Financial Essa:held under resale agreements ) - 404,823 - 404,823
Financial assels measured at fair value (hraugh profit or loss 474 149,231 602,538 756,510

_Debt instruments al amortized cost 838,377 514 96.&166_ 936,357
Debt Insuumanls_ al fair value lhrough other comprehensive income : 435,092 421,954 165,453 1,022,499
Other financial assets 3,467 2,138 5,066 11,5M
Total 1,399,641 1,570,509 870,423 3,840,573

(3) Market risk

Market risk refers o the risk ol fluctuations in the Group's on and of-balance sheet aclivities. ailsing fiom changes in market prices including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and slock and commodity prices, The Group's major markel risks are interes! rate risk and foreign exchange risk in it trading book
and banking book.

The abjective of the Group's markel risk management is lo establish an effective markel risk management system, which can lully identily, accurately measure,
continuously monitor and effectively control markel risks in trading and nan-trading businesses, and ensure thal market risk exposures are contralled within an
acceplable range of the Group. and achieve a balance between risks and benefils.

Markat risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Direclars and ils affilialed commillees. The Governors on Risk Management supervise
overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports periodically 1o ensure that all markel risks are effactively managed,

Segregation of trading book and banking baok

The Group's exposures o marke! risk mainly exist in its trading book and banking book.

Tiading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held for rading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and
off-balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Markel risks arising from Irading and banking books are managed by the Risk Management Department and Ihe Business Developmenl Depariment within
the scape af their respeclive roles and responsibililies. The Risk Management Depariment is responsible for managing the market risk of the whele bank, and
specifically manages the market risk of the Ireasury transaction business. The Business Development Department assumes the responsibllity for the overall
assel and liability management as well as management of inferest rate risk and forelgn exchange risk in the banking book, and the perjodical preparation of
interest rale risk and foreign exchange risk reports related to banking book,

Markel risk measuremenl and managemenl approaches
Markel risk is monitored and managed through established limits, markel value revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensilivity analysis indicaltors,

Trading book

The Group monitors and manages ils various nsk exposures in trading book through exposure limit centrol, stop-loss limit control and sensitivity limit control,
The Group eslablishes appropriate risk limits considering various risk factors of markel risk, business complexily and olher faclors. The Risk Management
Department is responsible tor the identification, measurement, manitoring and reporling of risk expasures from all trading partiolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitars market risks for banking mainly through sensilivity analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, The Risk Management
Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement results 1o Risk Managemeant Commitlee by means of market value revaluation, duration analysis, etc.
The Business Development Depariment s responsible for the accurate and timely identilication and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
nisk using gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis and olher methods,

For sensilivity analysis of interest rale risk and foreign exchange risk, please refer ta Note 50 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 50 (3) (b) lorelan exchange rate
risk (including tracling book and banking book).
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(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk of the banking book is the iisk of loss arising from unfavarable movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk,

The Group's pricing shiategy in China mainland is impacted by the macro-economic environment and the manetary policies of the PBOC. The PBOC
established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby linancial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credil risk, commercial and
markel laclors. In general, Ihe interest rates of interest-bearing assets and liabililies with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the same direction.

Interest rate risk of the Bank's banking book Is principally managed based on assessing impact ol interest rate change on both the income and economic
value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and liabllity struclure and uses hedging
instruments to miligate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of irading book is mainly managed and manilored by using interest rate limits,
sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-lo-markel and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest 1ate risk, the Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps. portfolio duration and manitars the sensitivity
of projected net interest income and fair value changes to inlerest nel moves under varying interest rale scenarios (simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarizes the Group's linancial assets and liabilities al carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or malurity
dales,

Financial assets:

Cash and balances wilh the cenlral banks 98,364 - - - = 2 98,366
Deposits with banks and other linancial 119,681 3113 12,686 _ _ 7,742 143,422
institutions
Placements with banks and other financial 226,381 248,849 67,850 _ - 1167 544,247
institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - = = 3,568 3,569
Financial assets held under resale 475,884 400 . o - 241 477525
agreements
Loans and advances 1o cuslomers 4,704,724 8,226,131 245,425 217,688 814,032 36,743 14,244,743
Financial assets measured at fair value 15,203 120,481 10112 36.472 70120 640,673 902,061
through profit or loss
Include: Trading assels and ather linancial
assals mandatonly classified ar 15,203 120,300 8912 36,472 70,120 649,656 901,663
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assels al fair value through - _
profit or loss (Designated) ol 161 iz 1z &
Debt instruments at amortized cost 12,607 234,774 444,585 13 = 8,888 700,985
Financial assets at fair value through other
142,307 141,647
comprehensive ncome 399,236 155,154 318,958 15,679 1,172,981
Other flinancial assets 172 = & = = 8,364 8,538
Total financial assets 6.053.252 8,988,902 1.099.816 396,598 1,025,798 732,068 18,286,435
Financial liabililies:
Dfpuglts from banks and other financial 553,566 1,944,613 100 o _ 8.071 2,506,350
nstitutions
Borrowings from governments and financial _
institutions 268,521 352,031 45,500 60 7,839 73,951
Placements from banks 25,525 15,304 1,451 83 550 352 43,265
Financial liabilities measued at fair value L N
through profit or loss 5 - - 2621 28
Derivative financial liabilities - - - = = 82N 8,271
Financial assets sold undel repurchase = =
agreemants 15,461 1,578 - 51 17,090
Due lo cuslomers 747,420 89,734 11,281 4,143 2,148 8,530 863,254
Dabt securities issued 1,024,225 1,108,774 5,207 684 4,360,883 784,153 238,568 12,724,297
Other financial liabilities 1,440 2 500 3 > 27.741 29,686
Total financial liabilities 2,636,158 3,512.036 5,266,516 4,365,182 786,849 302,044 16,868,785

Nel interest repricing gap 3,417,094 5,476,866 [4,166,700) (3.868,584) 238,950 430,024 1,427,650
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Financial assets:

Cash and balances wilh the central banks 108,410 - - - - 4,450 113,860
Deposits with banks and other financial - .

institutions 101,591 33n - 8,924 113,326
Placements with banks and ather financial _ _

institutions 155,609 264,786 50,370 772 471,537
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 11,003 11,003
Financial assels held under resale

agreements 404,707 - - 18 404,823
Loans and advances lo cuslomers 4,350,965 8,185,972 261,212 229,004 828,789 43,075 13,809,107
Financial assets measuied al falr value 31,555 53,997 25827 50,321 78,016 691,412 931,128

through profit or loss
Include: Trading assets and other financial

assets mandatorily classified at 31,555 53,897 25,256 50,321 78,016 691,393 930,538
fair value through prafil or loss
Financial assels al fair valse through _ _
profit or loss (Designated) - - &7} i o
Debt instruments at amortized cosl 28,523 300,221 536,703 56,813 - 13,097 935,357
Financial assels at fair value through other
073 ag,
~ comprenensiva income 185,035 350,560 207,364 102 058 13,742 1,027,853
Other financial assets 270 - - o - 11.301 11,571
Total financial assets 5,377,665 9,158,867 1,171,476 438,301 975,864 797,482 17,818,655
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial _ _
institutions 503,720 2,021,081 - 11,273 2,536,074
Borrowings from governments and linancial ; 928 _ "
instilulions 247,924 281,013 22,063 17, 3,084 572,862
Placements from banks 22,850 13,339 1,785 92 566 237 38,869
Financial liabilities measured at fair value _ _
through profit or loss - - - 2488 2458
Derivative financial liabilities - - - = - 18,351 18,351
Financial assels sold under repurchase _ N
agreemens 15.208 158 - 25 15,392
Due to cuslomers 1,066,631 78,877 12,033 4,074 2,110 3,900 1,167,724
Debt securities issued 921,232 987,506 5,022,845 4,263,996 699,542 230,835 12,125,956
Other financial liabilities 104 ? 14 50 - 17,954 18,124
Total financial liabilities 2,777,669 3,381,977 5,059,640 4,286,140 702,218 288,203 16,495,847
Nel interest repricing gap 2,500,996 5776890 _ (3.888,164) _ {3.847.B39) 273,646 500,279 1,423,808

Sensitivily analysis of nel inieres! income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shit of 100 basis poinls in all financial instruments’ yisld curvas an
the Group's net interesl income and olher comprehensive income for the next twelve moenths from the reparting dale, based on the Group’s net positions of
interesl-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities mave by the same amount,
and does nol reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movemants,

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Increase 100 basis points 50,438 (35,660 44,413 (25,932)
Decrease 100 basis points (50,438) 40,481 (44,413) 28,503

The sensilivily analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interes! rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial
liabilities held &t the peried end remains unchanged and does nat take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment oplions on debt securities
into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on olher comprehensive incame reflects only the effect of changes in interest rales on fair value changes on financial assels al FVTOCI
held at the periad end.

The assumptions do nol consider (he Group's capital and Interest rale risk management policy. Therelore, the above analysis may dilfer from the actual
situation. In addilion, the impact of interest rale fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the polential impact on nel interest income and ather
comprehensive income of the Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk siluation, The impact did nol lake inlo account the
risk management aclivities to mitigate the Interest rate risk.
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(b) Forelgn exchange rate risk
The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from maoves of foreign currency exchange rates on ils financial position and cash flows.

‘The Group's primary business is conducted in RMB, with cerlain foreign currency transaclions in USD, Euro ("EUR"), Japanese Yen (UPY") and. to a much
lesser extent, other currencies. The Group's foreign currency exposures are mainly concentrated on USD. RMB depreciated by 01181 AMB/1 USD during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: appreciated by 0.5889 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rale risk primarily Ly using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivily analysis of foreign currency
exchange rates, and Earnings at Risk ("EaR”). The Group adjusls ils asse! and liabillly stiuclure and uses hedging instruments lo miligale the foreign
exchange risk to the extent possibile,

The lable below summaiizes the Group's exposure 1o loleign currency exchange rate risk al the end of the reporting period, with the Group's assets and
liabilities presented al carrying amounts in AMB or AMB equivalents categorized by the onginal curency.

As al 31 December 2023

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 95818 2,534 14 2,548 98.366
Depasits with banks and olher financial institutions 53,318 65,060 25,044 90,104 143,422
Placemants with banks and other financial institutions 428,180 98,773 17,294 116,067 544,247
Darivative financial assels 2,358 1,078 196 1,211 3,669
Financial assels held under resale agreemenls 477,525 - - - 477,525
Loans and advances (o customers 13,366,403 707,974 170,366 878,340 14,244 743
Financial assets measured al fair value through profit or loss 875,009 26,773 279 27,052 902,061
nehide. mef;;ﬁsr:ﬁn?sﬁﬂfmﬁ;ﬁ? b 87461/ 26773 279 27,082 901,663
F% a{s::}fs at lair value through prolit or loss 208 __ _ _ 208
* Debt instruments at amortized cost - 603,927 97,058 - 67,058 700,985
Hfm::’;‘:ﬂm':d S8 i VAR T et 1,131,408 20,798 20,775 41573 1,172,981
Others 5540 2,585 411 2,996 8,538
Total linancial assels 17,039,486 1,022,630 234,319 1,256,949 18,206,435
Financial liabilities:
Depasils from banks and other financial institutions 2503915 2,316 119 2,435 2,506,350
Borrowings from governments and linancial institutions 408,894 265,057 = 265,067 673,951
Placements from banks 18,746 13,453 11,066 24519 43,265
Financial liabllities measured at fair value through prolit or loss 2,620 1 - 1 2,621
Derivative linancial liabililies 7212 503 556 1.089 8271
Financial assels sold under repurchase agreements 15,958 - 1,132 1,132 17,080
Due to customers 692,704 103,713 66,837 170,550 863,254
Debt securities issued 12,628,393 74,074 21,830 95,904 12,724 287
Others 22,327 6,843 516 7,359 29,686
Total financial liabilities 16,300,769 465,960 102,056 566,016 16.868.785
Nel on-balance sheel position 738,717 556,670 132,263 688,933 1,427,650
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Nolional amount) 225,654 (112,644) (73.589) (186,233) 39,421

Credit commitmenls 3,481,729 103,588 24,283 127,871 3,609,600
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Financial assels;

Cash and balances wilh central banks 109,357 4,503 - 4,503 113,860
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 40,128 52,168 21,080 73,198 118,326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 367,542 81,602 12,393 103,985 a471,537
Derivalive linancial assats 9,225 1,762 106 1,868 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements 404,823 - - - 404,823
Loans and advances to customers 12,880,085 848,826 170,226 1,019,052 13,899,107
Financial assels measured al fair value through profit or loss 901,318 27.206 2,604 29810 831,128
e %ﬁﬁﬁ”ﬁfmﬂﬁiﬂm@ 900,728 27,206 2601 29810 30,558
Financal assets atfar value frough proff or foss - ~ - ~ #90
(Designated)
Debt instruments al amortized cost 840,271 05,086 - 05,086 835,357
Financial assels measured at fair value through other
cenorshensive ioome 975,684 38,353 13,616 51.969 1,027,853
Others 7,271 1,044 256 4,300 11,57
Total financial assels 16,535,874 1,163,550 220,231 1,383,781 17,919,655
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other finangial institutions 2,521,230 6511 8,333 14,844 2,536,074
Borrowings from governments and financial instilutions 328,572 242,188 2102 244,200 572,862
Placements from banks 14,153 15,238 9478 24.716 38,869
Financial llabililies measured at fair valiie thiough proiit of loss 2,494 1 - 1 2,495
Derivative financial liabllities 16,916 970 465 1,435 18,351
Financial assets sold under rapurchase agreements 14,058 433 - 433 15,392
Due to cuslomers 1,004,043 110,364 53317 163,681 1,167,724
Debt securilies issued 11,970,722 102,203 53,081 155,234 12,125,956
Others 15,443 1,174 1.507 2,681 18,124
“Total financial liabilities 15,888,632 479,082 128,233 607315 16,495,847
Net an-balance sheel position 647,342 684,468 91,908 776466 1,423,808
Currency foiwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amaunt) 3,19 (272,746) (66,697) (339,443) 1,748
Credit commilments 3,560,564 121,537 46,751 168,288 3,728,852

The table below indicales the polential effect on pralit before tax arising from 1% possible movemen! of AMB spol and forward foreign
exchange rates against a basket of all other currencies on the nel posilions of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities and derivative
instruments in the statement of financial position. There is no significant impact on the Group's other comprehensive income.



W#IEE ) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 183  co

As at 31 December As al 31 December
2023 2022

1% appreciation 4,435 4127

1% depreciation (4,435) (4,127)

In analyzing the impact an profit batore lax exchange gain o loss due possible exchange rate movemenls, simplified assumplions and scenarios are adopted
and do not take into account the following:

—  changes in the Group's nel position in USD subsequent to the balance sheel dale;
- the impact on the cuslomers’ behavior due lo the movement of the exchange rate; and
- the impact on matket prices as a result of the movement of exchange rate,

(4) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity, however is unable lo raise sufficient funds al a reasonable cost lo increase
ils assels as needed or 1o replace malured debl. The consequence may be the failure to meel obligalions to repay debtors and depositars and fulfill
commilments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches include ihe
{orecasling and maniloring of fulure cash llows, siress tesling scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2023, the Bank continued 1o oblain funds from markets thraugh Ihe issuance of financial bonds. In accordance with the approval from the former CBIRC, all
RMB bonds issued by the Bank enjoy Lhe same credit of palicy linancial bonds for a long time without the maturity date of debt credit, which enables the Bank
1o continuously raise funds in the domesltic markels by Issuing new bonds.

Objectives of liquidily risk manag it and pr

The Group is exposed lo daily calls on its available cash resources from current customer deposit, matured customer term deposils, repayment af delit
securities issued, loan drawdown, [ullil obligations under guarantees and olher calls on cash sellled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and malurities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is an important mission of the Group. Il is
impracticable for the Group lo be completely malched in such positions since business lransactions are often of uncertain terms and of different lypes, A
mismalched position might enhance profitability, but at the same lime canies the risk of loss. The Group lakes effect 1o manage its mismatched positions
within a reascnable range.

The Business Developmenl Department and Treasury Department are the execulion departrments for detailed daily management. The Group's liquidity
management processes include:

-~ Projecting cash llows by major currencies with consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Monitering the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;

- Managing the concentration risk ol debl maturities; and

- Maintaining dety financing plans.

The Group does no! need to mainlain cash resouices 1o meet all of its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Gioup has Ihe abilily lo finance of new
debts in the market, In addition, experience shows that a ceitain level of matured llabilities such as term deposil from customers will be renewed and nol lo be
withdrawn. Management maintains an appropriate level of highly liquid assels o address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties (o draw all of the commitled funds under lellers of guarantees o |ellers of credl! Issued. The lotal
oulstanding conlractual amount of commitmen! lo extend credit does nol necessarlly represent fulure cash requirements, since some af these commilments
will gither expire, be terminated or nol meeting requirements for drawdown due o customers' inabilily to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial Instruments

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group lo maintain a wide divarsificalion in terms of liquidity provider, product. term, curtency and
geographical area,

The Group's funding policy is to seek a lang-term healihy balance between its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a presence
and parficipation in, and constanlly making relurns to, the debl capital markets, and to raise funds undert its dillerent funding pragrams. The Group Issues
fixed rate and floating rale ciebl securities sach year, These debl instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or the bond holders to
redeem them pricf lo the bonds’ respective matunly. However, bonds with redemption oplions only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. As at 31
December 2023, long-term (with a maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to AMB10.71 trillion, and other long-term
debls (include deposils from banks and other financial instilutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements and due 1o customers) ameunted to AMB161.82 billion.
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The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under nan-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or gross by
their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash llows of these financial
instruments by the Group may have different with the table as below:

As al 31 December 2023

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

e - gsie7 190 3 - - = - 98,366
Deposits with banks and other

ety 928 105054 13504 4,180 3178 18418 - = 145,272
Placements with banks and other

U - - 104300 125791 252532 69,379 = 3 552,002
Financial assets held under

seemchind 69 - 301184 65938 a0a = . c 477,599
Loans and acivances lo 46,938 - 864740 350579 1427679 6250123 4688322 7348220 20494610

customers
Financial assels measured al fair )

e 175,667 - 1023 8657 144,125 142980 171530 267,015 020,209
Di’:s"“"'""'“e"“ ot amortized 1,670 = 407 15860 165347 500,016 133,740 - 826,040
Financial assels measured

al fair value through other 5474 - 328585 72023 174624 973379 174346 175046 1,303,477

comprehensive income
Other financial assets 301 5,206 25 4 166 1,063 708 - 8,600

L ";“'“m""’ financial 231.047 200517 1213179 672088 2168050 7373358 5168646 7790290 24,826,184

Nan-derivative financial liabililies

Deposits fram banks and other

financial institutions - 74283 20843 454,880 1,995,050 108 - — 2554164
Borrowings lrom governments

and financial institutions - - 29,283 187,538 361,528 105,291 7.824 691,465
Placements from banks - - 16,405 9411 15,893 1,588 140 531 43,978
Financial liabilitles measured al

fair value through profit of loss Ik & - - - 2621 & - 2,621
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements = - 12,587 2976 1,615 - - - 17.148
Due to customers - 702,687 11,763 39,301 91,813 11,890 5,795 3,773 867,122
Debt securities issued - - 368,684 454,448 1,370,054 6,571,124 4,970,037 1,161,856 14,906,103
Other financial liabilities 7 8,528 3,281 3,869 7,995 4,685 1,395 - 29,760

Total non-derivalive financial
liabilities

Net position 231,040 {575.881) 741,363 (480.336) (1.675.889) 676.941 173,555  6.624.130 5,713,823

7 785,498 471,816 1,152,424 3843948 6,607,417 4,905081 1,166,160 19,112,361

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives sellled on a net basis;
- Net inflow - - (95) 69 29 207 62 45 ar
Derivalives sefled on a gross
basis:
- Total inflow - - 78,050 51,087 310,131 15,159 - - 455,377
Total outflow - - (81,038) (51.278)  (316.259) (14,909) - - (463,484)

Total derivative cash flows - - (2,083) (172) (6,099) 457 62 45 (7.790)
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Non-derivalive financial assels

As at 31 December 2022

Cash and balances with central _ 113,681 180 _ _ _ _ _ 113,861
banks
Deposits with banks and other _ _ _ _ 9
financial institutions 1353 90621 233 7,064 113,557
Placements with banks and alher
financial instilutions - - 115,972 82,067 228,205 51,674 477,918
Financial assels held under _ B 404,911 _ _ _ _ ~ 404,911
resale agresments
Los Gicl:adviindos o 56,325 - 136345 2965176 1639202 6105694 4678759 6950197 19,862,698
cuslomers
Rnancip) sxsem il at a0y g gy B604 43511 199251 101504 108801 229900  957.797
value through profit or loss
DZ’;'!'t“s"“m“""‘ At amprized 2,024 - A7 32784 233050 594644 162,614 - 102553
Financial assets measured
al falr value through other 5,357 - 97,862 96,300 372,152 340,496 123,427 91,026 1,126,720
comprehensive incame
Other financial assels 1,261 6,145 45 2,896 1,193 63 16 a0 11,649
T";”:L::;"""""“"" Hnsnolal 251270 213897 706762 553744 2680117 7.284075 5073617 7.271.153 24084644
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Oopasile o binks 2l other - 57358 5500 453,194 2,046,777 - = - 2,562,838
financial institutions
Boriawings fro gaveeimasts - - 30315 154877 265007 118552 24667 - 593218
and finangial instituwions ! ' ' ' ' )
Placernents from banks - - 11,560 11,491 13,810 2,058 96 611 39,626
Financial liabllities measured at _ B B _
fair value through profit or loss B2 B - Sl 240
Firsnclalieseela. sck! unie - - 14057 1,192 161 n - - 15410
repurchase agreements
Due to custamers ~ 1,029,288 6,334 34,951 79,918 13,735 5,446 2,852 1,172,524
Debl securities issued - - 307,008 404,234 1,230,128 6,379,368 4,953,985 1002436 14,367,150
Other financial liabilities 1,941 3,424 99 26 2,677 9,380 571 12 18,130
Tﬂ:;;ﬁ;:: erivalive financial 2093 1090070 374882 1050765 9,838,478 6523003 49687178 1,05911 18,771,400
Nel posilion 249 (876,173) 391,880  (506,021) _(95B.361) _ 760,982 B6.430 B.175.242 _ 5.323.244
Derivative cash flows
Detivatives setlled on a net basis:
Net inflow = - (153) U (297) (121 a4 61 (429)
Darivatives sellled on a gioss
basis:
Total inflow - - 193,834 115,619 404,620 7,961 5 - 722,039
Tolal outllow = - (196,388)  (116,428)  (411,358) (7.634) (4) - {731,810)
Total derivalive cash flows — — (2,705) (816) (7.035) 200 95 61 (10,200)
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Off-balance sheel ilems

Lellers of guarantee issued, lellers of credit issued, bank acceplance and loan commilments are included below based on the earliest contraciual malurity
date,

As at 31 Dacember 2023

Loan commitments 33,329 1,555 73,898 210,450 243,284 3,040,960 3,603,476
Letters of guaraniee issuad 132 300 364 2,541 10 - 3,347
Bank acceptance 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
Lellers af credil issued 13 45 1,096 = - = 1.154
Total 33,737 2,475 76,143 212,891 243,284 3.040,960 3,609,600

i

As at 31 December 2022

~ Loan commilments 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,249 268,101 3,076,368 3,716,738
Letters of guarantee issued 5 - 256 3,442 - - 3,703
Bank acceptance N 1,358 1,694 3,323 - - - 6,375
Lelters of credi issued 298 109 1,461 168 - - 2,036
Total 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,859 268,101 3.076,368 3,728,852

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The besl evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, If ihe markel for
a financial instrument is not aclive, fair value is delerminad using valuation techniques. The valualion lechnique makes maximum use of abservable markel
data and relies as ittle as possible on the unobservable inpuls, The valuation techniques adopled by the Group incarporate all factors that marke! patticipants
could consider In selling a price, and are consistent with accepled economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments,

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are securilies and funds listed on exchange. The lair values are quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabililies.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are securilies Invesiments, darivalives, underlying assels of wealth
management business and the associated liabilities to investars in relation to the wealth managemenl business. Fair value of securiies investments
denominated iin AMB is deletmined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debl invesimenis
denominated in foreign cunencies is deteimined based upon the valuation resulls published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of derivalives is calculated by
applying discounted cash flow method or the Black Schales Pncing Model. Al significant inpuls for the fair valualion of Ihese financial assels and liabilities are
observable in he maiket.

Level 3 financial assets of he Group are primarily unlisted equity investments and equity investments wilh embedded derivalives. Management uses valuation
techniques to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash flow method, nel assel value, and comparable companies’ approach, The fair
value of these financial instruments based on unobsetvable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, including
credil risk of the counterparties. weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growih rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rale and similarity lo comparable
companies and thelr performance indicators, etc.



{a) Financial Instruments measured el fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows.
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Financial assets

As at 31 December 2023

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rale denvalives - 2,288 - 2,288
- Interest rate derivatives - 1,281 - 1,281
Loans and advances to cuslomers - - 54,422 54,422
Financial investment
Financial assels measured al fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets and other financial assets mandalotily classified at
fair value through prolil or loss
- Bonds 430 53,014 434 53,878
- Inter-bank cerlificates of deposil - 117,890 - 117,880
- Stock and fund 12,538 720 35 13,204
- Wealth management products issued by othar banks - 3,743 = 3,743
- Equity investments 9,360 11,204 691,973 712,637
- Assel management plans - az1 - 321
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 203 181 3e4
- Assel management plans - 14 - 14
Financial assets measured at fair value thiough other
comprahensive income
- Bonds 2,790 791,568 17 794,375
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 373,146 = 373,146
~ Equity investments 3,460 - 2,000 5,460
Tolal 28,579 1,355,392 749,062 2,133,033
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - (2,621) (2,621)
Derivative financial liabililies
— Exchange rate derivalives - (7.197) - (7.197)
- Interest rate derivalives - {1,074) - (1,074)
Total - (8,271) (2,621) {10,892)
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As at 31 December 2022

Financial assels
Derivative financial assels
- Exchange rate derivatives - 7,680 - 7,690
- Interest rate derivatives - 3,403 - 3,403
Loans and advances to cuslomers - - 48,097 48,097
Financial investment

Financial assels measured al fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and olher financial assets mandalorily classified
al fair value through profit or loss

- Bonds 264 80,831 478 B1,573
— Inter-bank certificates of deposil - 68,507 - GB,507
~ Stock and fund B.736 G617 7.215 16,568
~ Weallh management products issued by other banks - - 3,450 3,450
- Equily investments 11,224 17,106 731,742 760,072
- Asset management plans - 368 - 368
Financial assels at fair value through profil or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 576 - 576
— Assal managament plans - 14 - 14

Financial assats measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- Bonds 4,934 602,706 33 607,673
= Inter-bank certificales of deposit - 414,826 - 414,826
- Equily investments 3,354 - 2,000 5,354
Total 28,512 1,196,644 793,015 2018171
Financial liabilities
Finanoial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - (2,485) (2,485)
Derivalive financial liabllities
- Exchange rale derivalives - (15.380) - (15,380)
- Inleresi rate derivalives - (2.971) - (2.971)
Total = (18.351) (2,485) (20,846)

There were no significant trensfers between Leval 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assels and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consalidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assels

As at 1 January 2023 48,097 742,885 2,033 793,015

Disposals - (9,586) (12) (9.598)
Additions 8,217 14,362 - 22,638
Selllements (5,392) (63,449) - (68.,841)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (B,437) - (8,437)
Total loss recognized In

~ Profit or loss 3,440 16,606 = 20,046

— Ofher comprehensive income - 242 (4) 238
As at 31 December 2023 54,422 692,623 2,017 749,062
Change in unrealized loss far the year recognized in

— Profit or loss 3,440 6,083 - 9,533

- Other comprehensive income - 225 (4) 221
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Financial assets

As al 1 January 2022 45,073 717,853 2,103 764,829

Disposals - (15,873) - (15.873)
Additions 9,624 © 82,615 k] 102,272
Selllements (4,614) (58,678) - (63,202)
Transter out from Level 3 - (3,606) - (3,606)
Total loss recognized in

- Prolil or loss (1,986) 8,846 (102) 6,758

~ Other comprehensive income - 1,928 (1) 1,927
As al 31 December 2022 48.097 742,885 2,033 793,015
Change in unrealized loss for the year recagnized in -

~ Profit of loss (1986) 1136 (102) (952)

- Other comprehensive income - 1,928 (1) 1,827

(b) Financial instruments not measured al fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabililies caried al ather than fail value, the following methods and assumplions were used Lo eslimale the fair
value of each type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Lavel 2.

(i) Cash and balances with central banks, deposils with banks and clher financial inslitulions, placements with banks and other financial institulions, financial
assels held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and ofher financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, cuirent receivables or payables due in ona year within olher assets and othar liabilities.

Given Lhat these financial assels and liabilities are short-lerm in nalure and reprice o current markel rales lrequenily, the carrying amounts approximate
Ihe fair value.

(i) Debt investments

Fair value of listed securities s estimated using quotad markat price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation lechniques that take
into consideration future cash flows and markel price of similar quoted securities.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts ol variable rate loans and advances lo cuslomers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market
rales which are based on PBOC's established rates and are adjusted when applicable, Fair value of fixed rale loans and advances to cuslomers is
estimated using a discounted cash llow analysis utilizing the rates currenlly offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and botrawings

Fair value of fixed rale customer deposits, deposits from banks and olher financial instilulions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow
analysis utilizing the rates currently offered tor deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financfal instruments relerred Lo in () 10 (iv) are approgimate fair value,
(v)] Debt securities issued

Fair valug of debt securities issued is delermined using quoted markel prices where available or by relerence 1o quoled markel prices lor similar
instruments. For those securilies where quoled markst prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, & discounted cash flow
analysis is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments.

The lables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debl securilies issued:

As al 31 December 2023 As al 31 December 2022

Debt securities issued 12,724,297 13,148,371 12,125,956 12,438,951

(6) Capital management

Capilel of the Group uses lor capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consalidated statement of financial
posilion. The purpose of Ihe Group's capital management is:

- lo comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where Lhe Group entilies operale;
- losaleguard the Group's abilily 1o conlinue as a going concern so Ihat it can conlinue to generale returns for equily holders; and
- lomaintain a strong capital base 1o support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of requlatory capilal are closely monitored by management in accordance wilh the guidglines eslablished
by the Basel Commiitee and relevant regulations promulgated by the NFRA, Required information related to capital levels and ulilizalion is filed quartarly with
the MFRA. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total capital of RMB1,912,3056 million, total Tier | capital RMB1,569,809 million, total Core Tier 1 capital
RMB1,568,398 million, capital adequacy ralio 11.85%, Tier 1 capilal adequacy ralio 9,54%, Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.54%.
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